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CITY OF CARSON

February 28, 2017

Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Carson, California

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the City of Carson for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2016, is hereby submitted as mandated by both local ordinances and state statutes. These
ordinances and statutes require that the City of Carson issue annually a report on its financial
position and activity, and that an independent firm of certified public accountants audit this report.
Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data, and the completeness and fairness of the
presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the City. To the best of our knowledge and belief,
the enclosed data is accurate in all material respects and is reported in a manner that presents fairly
the financial position and results of operations of the various funds and component units of the City
of Carson. In addition, to the best of our knowledge, there are no untrue statements of material fact
within the financial statements or omissions of material fact to cause the financial statements to be
misleading. All disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an understanding of the City’s
financial activities have been included.

The financial section of the CAFR includes management’s discussion and analysis (MD&A) of the
financial activity. This letter of transmittal is designed to complement the MD&A and should be read
in conjunction with it.

THE REPORTING ENTITY

The financial reporting entity includes all the funds of the primary government (i.e., the City of
Carson as legally defined), as well as its component units. A component unit is a legally separate
entity for which the primary government is financially accountable. The City has three component
units, which are reported as blended component units: the Carson Financing Authority, which was
created to finance public capital improvements for the former Redevelopment Agency and the City;
the Carson Housing Authority, which was established to carry out the housing function of the
dissolved Carson Redevelopment Agency; and the Carson Reclamation Authority, which was
formed to oversee and facilitate the remediation of contaminated properties in the City. Separate
financial statements are also issued for the Carson Housing Authority and the Carson Reclamation
Authority, and are available on the City’s website or at City Hall.

CITY PROFILE

Located in the South Bay section of Los Angeles County, Carson has a population of approximately
94,000. Over the years, three annexations have increased the City’s size to 19.2 square miles.
Steady and continued growth has enabled Carson to become a city of regional significance. Carson
has been included in the top 20 highest valued cities in the county since 1998, according to the
Annual Report of the Assessor’s Office of the County of Los Angeles.



For 2016, the City of Carson is ranked 14™ highest in assessed value of all Los Angeles County
cities, recording a total of $14.1 billion. While Carson is well known as an industrial center with
unparalleled access to transportation and the Pacific Rim, it is also a culturally diverse community
that is an attractive place to live, work and play.

GOVERNMENTAL STRUCTURE

The City of Carson was incorporated as a General Law city on February 20, 1968. The City operates
under the Council-Manager form of government. Policymaking and legislative authority are vested in
the governing council, which consists of an elected Mayor and four Councilmembers. The Council is
elected on a nonpartisan basis. The Mayor is elected to a four-year term. Councilmembers are
elected to four-year, staggered terms with two Councilmembers elected every two years. The City
Council is responsible for, among other things, setting City policies, adopting ordinances and
resolutions, adopting the budget, appointing committees and hiring the City Manager and the City
Attorney. The City Manager is responsible for carrying out the policies and directives of the Council,
for overseeing the day-to-day operations of the City, and for appointing the directors and officers of
the City’s departments.

The City provides a broad range of services, including construction and maintenance of highways,
streets and infrastructure, planning and zoning activities, public transit, recreational activities and
cultural events for all ages. The City contracts with the County of Los Angeles for law enforcement,
building and safety services, library services and sewer services. The Los Angeles County Fire
Department and the Los Angeles Unified School District also serve the City’s residents. Solid waste
collection and disposal, gas, water, electric and communication services are provided by private
companies.

MAJOR INITIATIVES AND ACCOMPLISHMENTS

The City’s voters approved an extension of the 2% utility users’ tax in June 2016. The tax will
continue to provide about $7 million of annual revenue to the City’'s General Fund, and will sunset in
2023.

The Public Works Department completed the following construction projects during FY 2015/16.
e The Veterans Park athletic field renovation.
e Classroom flooring in the Community Center.
e Mills Park outdoor fitness zone.
e Anderson Park roof repairs.

Significant progress was made on the following major infrastructure projects, which are expected to
be completed in FY 2016/17.

e Carson Street Master Plan improvements, including street lighting, medians, sidewalks, and
bus shelters. The City’s improvements have led to various private business improvements
along the main thoroughfare.

o The Wilmington Ave/Interstate-405 interchange.

e Traffic signal at 223" Street and Lucerne.

e Carson Park pool upgrades.

In August 2015, the redevelopment Successor Agency issued tax allocation bonds, with $50 million
of proceeds being transferred to the Carson Reclamation Authority for remediation of the former Cal
Compact landfill site. The 157-acre site is now owned by the Carson Reclamation Authority, and
substantial progress was made on the site remediation during FY15-16. The City entered into an
Exclusive Negotiating Agreement with Macerich Company for construction of a 550,000 square foot
fashion outlet mall on a 46-acre portion of the site adjacent to the 1-405 freeway.
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The Porsche Experience Center opened in November 2016. The 53-acre complex includes
4.1 miles of driver development circuits, race car exhibits, a business center, a workshop, and a fine-
dining establishment.

Renovations at the South Bay Pavilion mall has resulted in a new Cinemark theatre; a series of new
restaurants, including Chipotle and Applebee’s; a new retail store, F21 Red; and a repurposing of
Sears to make room for additional tenants.

The Union at South Bay, a major mixed-use project at Carson Street and Avalon, is currently under
construction. The Union will have 357 multi-family residential units, ground floor commercial activity,
and a 10,000 square foot landscaped public plaza.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The officials having direct responsibility for the financial administration and management of the City
are the City Manager, the City Treasurer and the Director of Finance. Fiscal operations include
general accounting, financial reporting, treasury and investment management, business license,
payroll, accounts payable, accounts receivable, procurement of supplies and services, and budget
preparation.

The Finance Department is responsible for establishing and maintaining an appropriate internal
control structure. The internal control system is designed to ensure that the assets of the City are
protected from loss, theft, or misuse and to ensure that adequate accounting data is compiled to
allow for the preparation of financial statements in conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles. The internal control structure is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute,
assurance that these objectives are met. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that the
cost of the control should not exceed the benefits likely derived, and the valuation of costs and
benefits requires estimates and judgements by management.

The City of Carson maintains budgetary controls. The objective of these budgetary controls is to
ensure compliance with legal provisions contained in the annual appropriated budgets approved by
the City Council and the component unit Boards. Activities of the General Fund and Special
Revenue Funds are included in the annual appropriated budgets of the government units. The level
of budgetary control, that is the level at which expenditures cannot legally exceed the appropriated
amount, is established at the department level within each fund. Formal budgetary integration is
employed as a management control device. The City also maintains an encumbrance accounting
system as one method of maintaining budgetary control and the control of expenditures.
Encumbrances lapse at fiscal year-end, and unspent balances are eligible to be carried over to the
following year’s budget appropriations with City Council approval.

OTHER INFORMATION

The City requires an annual audit by independent certified public accountants. The accounting firm
of White Nelson Diehl Evans conducted this year’s audit. The auditor’s report on the financial
statements is included in the financial section of this report.

As a recipient of federal, state, and county financial assistance, the City is responsible for ensuring
that an adequate internal control structure is in place to ensure compliance with applicable laws and
regulations related to those programs. This internal control structure is subject to periodic evaluation
by management. In years when over $500,000 is expended on federal financial assistance
programs, the City is required to undergo an annual single audit in conformity with the provisions of
the Single Audit Act, as amended, and the U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133,
Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations.
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For the year ended June 30, 2016, $3,213,767 was expended on federal financial assistance
programs. Information related to this single audit, including a schedule of Federal financial
assistance, the independent auditors’ reports on internal controls and compliance with applicable
laws and regulations, and a schedule of findings are included in a separately issued single audit
report.

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City of Carson for its
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015. In order to be
awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government must publish an easily readable and efficiently
organized comprehensive annual financial report. This report must satisfy both generally accepted
accounting principle and applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our current
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement
Program’s requirements and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another
certificate.

The Finance Department staff continuously strives to ensure the integrity of the financial information
provided to elected officials, management and staff, and the public. | would like to thank the entire
Finance Department; especially the Accounting Manager Hrant Manuelian, the Senior Accountant
Daniel Zepeda, and the Accountants Phat Nguyen and Susan Delirio. They worked tirelessly with
our new auditors White Nelson Diehl Evans to complete the audit and this report. | would like to
thank the Directors and Analysts of the City’s departments for all the information they patiently
provided. Finally, | would like to thank the Mayor, the members of the City Council, the City
Treasurer, the City Clerk, the City Manager, and the City Attorney for their support towards
conducting the financial operations of the City in a fiscally responsible manner.

Respectfully submitted,

Hthion O gy

Kathryn Downs
Director of Finance
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WHITE NELSON\DIEHL EVANS LLP

Certified Public Accountants S&&Consultants

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the City Council
City of Carson
Carson, California

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activity, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of
Carson, California (the City), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2016, and the related notes to the
basic financial statements, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements as listed in
the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these basic financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America, and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the basic financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the City’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the City’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinions.

1
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Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activity, each major fund,
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Carson, as of June 30, 2016, and the
respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof, for the year then
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Emphasis of Matters

As discussed in Note 17 to the financial statements, the City made several prior period adjustments that
resulted in restatements of previously reported net position of the City’s governmental activities,
business-type activity, proprietary fund, and fiduciary successor agency private-purpose trust fund, as
well as previously reported fund balance of two of the City’s major special revenue funds. Our
opinions are not modified with respect to these matters.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis, the schedule of changes in net pension liability and related
ratios and the schedule of contributions for the California Public Employees’ Retirement System
(CalPERS) miscellaneous plan, the schedule of funding progress - other post-employment benefits
plan, and the budgetary comparison schedules for the General Fund, the Carson Housing Authority
Special Revenue Fund and the Cooperation Agreement Bond Proceeds Special Revenue Fund,
identified as Required Supplementary Information (RSI) in the accompanying table of contents, be
presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the
basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who
considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to
the RSI in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America,
which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and
comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during the audit of the basic financial
statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the RSI because the limited
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements. The introductory section, combining
statements and individual fund schedules (supplementary information), and statistical section, as listed
in the table of contents, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of
the basic financial statements.



Other Matters (Continued)
Other Information (Continued)

The supplementary information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements.
Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our
opinion, the supplementary information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic
financial statements as a whole.

The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in
the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide
any assurance on them.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
February 28, 2017, on our consideration of the City’s internal control over financial reporting and on
our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements
and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control
over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the City’s internal
control over financial reporting and compliance.

LA Doty MUt Chopna) 227

Irvine, California
February 28, 2017
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CITY OF CARSON

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

June 30, 2016

This discussion and analysis of the City of Carson’s (the City) financial performance offers
readers of the City’s financial statements an overview of the financial activities of the City for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2016. Our analysis includes information regarding the City’s overall
financial position and results of operations to assist users in evaluating the City’s financial position.
Please read it in conjunction with the accompanying transmittal letter, the basic financial statements,
and the accompanying notes to those financial statements.

Financial Highlights
Government-wide Financial Statements

» The assets and deferred outflows of resources of the City exceeded its liabilities and deferred
inflows of resources at June 30, 2016 by $449.9 million. This amount is referred to as the
net position of the City. Of this amount, $405.1 million represents net investment in capital
assets, $113.6 million is restricted, and the unrestricted net position is a deficit of
$68.8 million.

» The City’s net position increased by approximately $29.4 million during the fiscal year. This is
primarily due to a $57.3 million contribution from the redevelopment Successor Agency to the
Reclamation Authority, reflected in Business-type Activity. Governmental Activities expenses
exceeded revenues by $20.6 million. In FY 2014-15, the City received unspent bond proceeds
from the Successor Agency; and during FY 2015-16 spent down the balance by $13.5 million,
primarily for the Carson Street Master Plan improvement project. In addition, the City
accrued a liability for certain litigation matters for approximately $8 million.

» The City’s total long-term liabilities increased by $15.3 million for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2016, from $85.2 million to $100.5 million due mainly to increases in the pension
and Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) liabilities.

Fund Financial Statements

» As of June 30, 2016, the City’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of
$82.5 million, a decrease of $25.9 million over the prior fiscal year’s fund balance.

» As of June 30, 2016, the total fund balance of the City’s General Fund was $18.7 million,
a decrease of $8.9 million from the prior year level of $27.6 million.

» In the General Fund, expenditures exceeded revenues by $8.8 million, before other financing
sources/uses.



CITY OF CARSON

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(CONTINUED)

June 30, 2016

USING THIS ANNUAL REPORT

The financial statements presented herein include all of the activities of the City of Carson and its
component units using the integrated approach as prescribed by Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB) statement No. 34. The three components of the basic financial statements are as
follows:

1)

2)

3)

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The Government-Wide Financial Statements present the financial picture of the City from
the economic resources measurement focus using the accrual basis of accounting in a manner
similar to a private-sector business. These statements include all assets and deferred outflows
of resources of the City (including infrastructure) as well as all liabilities and deferred inflows
of resources (including long-term debt).

Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements include statements for each of the three categories of activities:
governmental, proprietary and fiduciary. For governmental activities, these fund statements
tell how these services were financed in the short term, as well as what remains for future
spending. Fund financial statements also report the City’s operations in more detail than the
government-wide statements by providing information about the City’s most significant funds
and other funds.

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

The notes provide additional information necessary to enable the user to fully understand the
various financial statements.

In addition to the basic financial statements and notes, this report contains required supplementary
information and other supplementary information.



CITY OF CARSON

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(CONTINUED)

June 30, 2016

REPORTING THE CITY AS A WHOLE - GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities

The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities report information about the City as a

whole. These statements include all assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred
inflows of resources of the City using the accrual basis of accounting, which is similar to the
accounting used by most private-sector companies. All of the current year’s revenues and expenses
are taken into account, regardless of when cash is received or paid.

The Statement of Net Position reports all of the City’s assets and deferred outflows of resources, and
liabilities and deferred inflows of resources, with the difference reported as net position. Over time,
increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position
of the City is improving or deteriorating.

The Statement of Activities presents information relating to how the City’s net position changed during
the fiscal year. All activities resulting in changes in net position are reported when earned or incurred,
regardless of the receipt or disbursement of the related transactions cash flows. Some of the revenues
and expenses reported in this statement will result in future fiscal period cash flows, such as the receipt
of uncollected taxes, payment of interest expense or compensated absences.

In the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities, we separate the City’s activities as
follows:

Governmental Activities - Most of the City’s basic services are reported in this category, including
public services, public works, community development (planning and engineering), parks, recreation
and community services. These activities are distinguished due to the use of property taxes, sales tax,
transient occupancy tax, user fees, interest income, franchise fees, state and federal grants,
contributions from other agencies and other revenues to finance these activities.

Business-Type Activity - City functions that are intended to be primarily self-supporting through the
imposition of user fees and charges are reported in the business-type activity category. The
business-type activity for the City consists of the Reclamation Authority. The purpose of the Authority
is to oversee and facilitate the remediation of contaminated properties in the City of Carson, California.



CITY OF CARSON

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(CONTINUED)

June 30, 2016

Component Unit Activities - The City of Carson is the primary government unit, with three
component units that are legally separate entities. The Carson Joint Powers Financing Authority is
reported as part of the City, as the City Council also serves as the governing board of the Finance
Authority. Separate financial statements are not issued for the Financing Authority.

The activity of the Carson Housing Authority is reported in a major special revenue fund. Separate
financial statements are issued for the Housing Authority, and may be viewed on the City’s website or
at City Hall.

The activity of the Carson Reclamation Joint Powers Authority is reported in a proprietary fund, which
is reported as business-type activity in the government-wide financial statements. Separate financial
statements are issued for the Reclamation Authority, and may be viewed on the City’s website or at
City Hall.

Fund Financial Statements

A fund is a grouping of related accounts used to account for and accumulate financial information
related to a specific activity or objective. The City, like other state and local governments, uses fund
accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. The City’s
three types of funds are governmental, proprietary and fiduciary funds.

Governmental Funds - Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions
reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the
government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term
inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at
the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating the City’s near-term financial
requirements. Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide
financial statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with
similar information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.
Reconciliation of the Fund Financial Statements to the Government-Wide Financial Statements are
provided to explain the differences created by this integrated approach.

The City maintains several individual governmental funds. The General Fund, Carson Housing
Authority Special Revenue Fund and Cooperation Agreement Bond Proceeds Special Revenue Fund
are presented separately as major funds in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the
Governmental Fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances. Financial
data for the remaining Nonmajor governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated
presentation. Individual fund data for each of these nonmajor governmental funds is provided in the
form of combining statements in the nonmajor governmental funds supplementary information section
of this report.



CITY OF CARSON

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(CONTINUED)

June 30, 2016

Proprietary Fund - The City maintains one type of proprietary fund known as an enterprise fund.
The enterprise fund is used to report the same functions presented as business-type activity in the
government-wide financial statements, but the proprietary fund statements provide more detail and
additional information, such as a statement of cash flows. The Carson Reclamation Authority accounts
for the remediation of contaminated properties in the City.

Fiduciary Funds - Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties
outside the government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements
because the resources of those funds are not available to support the City’s own programs. The
accounting used for fiduciary funds is much like that used for proprietary funds. The fiduciary funds
include the Successor Agency to the Dissolved Carson Redevelopment Agency Private-Purpose Trust
Fund and several Agency Funds. The Agency Funds are custodial in nature and the measurement of
operations is not appropriate.

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

The notes to the basic financial statements provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.

Other Information

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents certain
required supplementary information concerning the schedule of changes in the City’s net pension
liability and related ratios, the schedule of the City’s pension contributions, the schedule of funding
progress for other post-employment benefits plan, and the budgeted to actual results for the major
governmental funds. This section is located after the Notes to the Basic Financial Statements.

The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with the nonmajor governmental funds, and
agency funds are presented immediately following the required supplementary information described
in the previous paragraph in the supplementary information section.



CITY OF CARSON

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(CONTINUED)

Government-Wide Financial Analysis

June 30, 2016

The analysis below focuses on the net position (Tablel) and changes in net position (Table 2) of the
City’s governmental and business-type activities.

The City’s net position may be analyzed and used as an indicator of the City’s overall financial
condition. The City’s combined net position increased by $29.4 million, from $420.4 million in the
prior period as restated to $449.9 million in the current fiscal year.

ASSETS
Cash and other assets
Capital assets net of accumulated
depreciation, restated
Total assets

Deferred outflows of resources
Total deferred outflows of resources

LIABILITIES
Current and other liabilities
Long-term liabilities
Total liabilities

Deferred inflows of resources
Total deferred inflows of resources

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted
Total net position, restated

The City’s net position is made up of three components:

Table 1
City of Carson’s Net Position
June 30, 2016 and 2015
Governmental Activities Business-Type Activity Total
2015 2015 2015
2016 Restated 2016 Restated 2016 Restated
$ 104,711,084 $ 136,062,562 57,187,879 $ 7,428,407 $ 161,898,963 $ 143,490,969
369,068,436 345,239,031 36,000,000 36,000,000 405,068,436 381,239,031
473,779,520 481,301,593 93,187,879 43,428,407 566,967,399 524,730,000
11,164,331 5,728,251 - - 11,164,331 5,728,251
11,164,331 5,728,251 - - 11,164,331 5,728,251
21,951,957 11,835,295 965,734 1,200,000 22,917,691 13,035,295
100,527,970 85,169,899 - - 100,527,970 85,169,899
122,479,927 97,005,194 965,734 1,200,000 123,445,661 98,205,194
4,833,134 11,832,724 - - 4,833,134 11,832,724
4,833,134 11,832,724 - - 4,833,134 11,832,724
369,068,436 345,239,031 36,000,000 36,000,000 405,068,436 381,239,031
64,048,692 95,575,045 49,556,994 6,228,407 113,605,686 101,803,452
(75,486,338) (62,622,150) 6,665,151 - (68,821,187) (62,622,150)
$ 357,630,790 $ 378,191,926 92,222,145 $ 42,228,407 $ 449,852,935 $ 420,420,333

Net Position, and Unrestricted Net Position.

Net Investment in Capital Assets, Restricted

The largest component of the City’s net position is represented by its $405.1 million net investment in
capital assets (e.g., infrastructure, land, buildings and improvements, equipment, and construction in
progress) less accumulated depreciation and any outstanding debt used to acquire the capital assets.
These capital assets are used to provide services to the citizens, and therefore are not available to finance
future operations. In addition, resources necessary to repay the related debt must be provided by sources
other than the capital assets, as the assets themselves cannot be used to satisfy these liabilities.

10



CITY OF CARSON

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(CONTINUED)

June 30, 2016

Government-Wide Financial Analysis (Continued)

Revenues from governmental activities decreased by $100.4 million, or 53%, primarily due to
contribution of assets from the redevelopment Successor Agency in the current year. The cost of all
governmental activities this year was $109.9 million, an increase of $3.2 million, or 3.0%, over the
prior year. Overall the City’s governmental activities generated revenues of $89.4 million and total
expenses of $109.9 million, resulting in a $20.6 million decrease to net position. The business-type
activity increased its net position by $50.0 million primarily due to $57.3 million in contributions from
the Successor Agency to the Dissolved Redevelopment Agency.

Table 2
City of Carson’s Changes in Net Position
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016 and 2015

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activity Total
2015 2015 2015
2016 Restated 2016 Restated 2016 Restated

Program Revenues

Charges for sevices $ 13,725,032 $ 13,876,288 $ - $ 251,000 $ 13,725,032 $ 14,127,288

Grants and contributions 11,159,230 13,457,894 57,255,151 5,977,407 68,414,381 19,435,301

Capital grants and contributions 1,335,164 104,316,574 - 36,000,000 1,335,164 140,316,574
General Revenues
Taxes

Sales taxes 25,364,057 21,820,128 - - 25,364,057 21,820,128

Property taxes 15,128,210 14,720,272 - - 15,128,210 14,720,272

Utility user taxes 6,754,075 8,135,144 - - 6,754,075 8,135,144

Transient occupancy taxes 2,138,378 1,812,310 - - 2,138,378 1,812,310

Franchise taxes 8,587,698 8,274,908 - - 8,587,698 8,274,908

Admission taxes 256,343 458,117 - - 256,343 458,117
Motor vehicle license fee, unrestricted 37,584 40,296 - - 37,584 40,296
Use of money and property 1,199,856 748,051 45,695 - 1,245,551 748,051
Other revenue 3,699,275 2,161,737 - - 3,699,275 2,161,737

Total revenues 89,384,902 189,821,719 57,300,846 42,228,407 146,685,748 232,050,126

Expenses

General government 35,319,096 21,383,100 - - 35,319,096 21,383,100

Community development 12,330,080 25,005,910 - - 12,330,080 25,005,910

Public works 19,819,103 21,358,870 - - 19,819,103 21,358,870

Community services 42,477,759 38,696,281 - - 42,477,759 38,696,281

Capital maintenance programs - 301,315 - - - 301,315

Reclamation Authority - - 7,307,108 - 7,307,108 -

Total expenses 109,946,038 106,745,476 7,307,108 - 117,253,146 106,745,476

Change in net position (20,561,136) 83,076,243 49,993,738 42,228,407 29,432,602 125,304,650
Net position, beginning, as restated 378,191,926 295,115,683 42,228,407 - 420,420,333 295,115,683
Net position, ending $ 357,630,790 $ 378,191,926 $ 92,222,145 $ 42,228,407 $ 449,852,935 $ 420,420,333
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CITY OF CARSON

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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June 30, 2016

Governmental Funds Financial Analysis

The governmental funds reported a combined fund balance at the end of the current year of
$82.5 million, a decrease of $25.9 million over the prior year. Approximately $83.1 million is
nonspendable in form (e.g. inventory), restricted, committed and assigned for specific purposes.

The total governmental fund balance includes the general fund balance of $18.7 million, which
decreased by $8.9 million over the prior period. The General Fund is the primary operating fund of the
City of Carson. The fund balance decrease of $8.9 million is primarily due to a decrease in utility
users’ tax resulting from a decrease in the price of natural gas and an increase in litigation costs. More
detailed information about the City’s classification of fund balances are presented in Note 10 to the
financial statements.

Other Major Fund Balance Changes

Carson Housing Authority - The Carson Housing Authority fund balance decreased $4.6 million
from the prior year mainly due to increased spending in community development programs.

Cooperation Agreement Bond Proceeds Fund - The Cooperation Agreement Bond Proceeds fund
balance decreased by $13.5 million from the prior year, primarily due to construction of Carson Street
Master Plan improvements.

In addition to the major funds, the fund balances for the nonmajor governmental funds had an
aggregate increase of $1.1 million.

The City’s proprietary fund statements provide the same type of information found in the
government-wide financial statements, but in more detail. The total net position increased by
$50 million over the prior year, primarily due to a transfer of bond proceeds and land sale proceeds
from the Successor Agency to the Reclamation Authority.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights
In the General Fund, differences between the original budget and the final amended budget for

expenditures of $4.0 million was primarily due to a partial release of a hiring freeze and increases in
legal costs, some of which were reimbursable by third parties such as developers.

12



CITY OF CARSON

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(CONTINUED)

June 30, 2016

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital Assets - The City’s investment in capital assets for its governmental activities and
business-type activity totals $405.1 million (net of accumulated depreciation of $225.4 million) as of
June 30, 2016. This investment in capital assets includes land, buildings, improvements other than
building, infrastructure (roads, sidewalks, streetlights, etc.), and machinery and equipment.

(Net of Accumulated Depreciation)

June 30, 2016 and 2015
Governmental Activities Business-Type Activity Total
2015 2015 2015

2016 Restated 2016 Restated 2016 Restated
Land, land rights, land improvements $ 92,936,028 $ 92,936,028 $ 36,000,000 $ 36,000,000 $ 128,936,028 $ 128,936,028
Infrastructure - street trees 9,367,887 9,367,887 - - 9,367,887 9,367,887
Buildings and improvements 61,679,988 63,607,319 - - 61,679,988 63,607,319
Machinery and equipment 3,198,425 2,441,341 - - 3,198,425 2,441,341
Infrastructure 161,759,617 149,277,861 - - 161,759,617 149,277,861
Construction in Progress 40,126,491 42,377,855 40,126,491 42,377,855

$ 369,068,436 $ 360,008,291 $ 36,000,000 $ 36,000,000 $ 405,068,436 $ 396,008,291

Additional information on the City’s capital assets can be found in note 4 to the basic financial
statements of this report.

Debt Administration - At the end of the current fiscal year, the City had no outstanding bonded debt
as these are now part of the dissolved redevelopment agency reported in the fiduciary fund financial
statements. The City has a net OPEB obligation of $18.0 million and net pension liability of
$74.4 million as of June 30, 2016.

Outstanding Debt
June 30, 2016 and 2015
2015
2016 Restated
Other long-term debit:
Compensated absences $ 4,954,771 $ 5,232,799
Self-insurance claims payable 3,137,108 3,194.910
Net pension liability 74,441,723 61,417,016
Other post-employment benefits 17,994,368 15,325,174

Total § 100,527,970 § 85,169,899

Additional information on the City’s net pension liability can be found in note 8 to the basic financial
statements of this report. Additional information on the City’s OPEB obligation can be found in note 9
to the basic financial statements of this report.

13



CITY OF CARSON

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(CONTINUED)

June 30, 2016

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budget

Even though the City’s revenues continue to be stable overall, the City’s costs are increasing faster
than its revenues. Employee retirement costs, the City’s contract with the Los Angeles County
Sheriff’s Department, and litigation costs are the primary drivers of this trend. In the future, either the
City will have to decrease its service level to the community, or the City will have to secure new
revenue sources. Most new revenue sources require voter approval. The City Council is committed to
maintaining and improving service levels to the community.

FY 2016/17 General Fund revenues are projected to be $76.2 million, which is $2 million more than
the FY 2015/16 year-end actual revenues of $74.2 million.

FY 2016/17 General Fund expenditures are projected to be $78.3 million, which is $3.3 million more
than the year-end actual expenditures for FY 2015/16 of $75.0 million.

The following are issues that will impact the City in the near and long term future:

» The City’s employer contribution to the California Public Employee Retirement System
(CalPERS) is expected to increase by more than $1 million annually for the next five years.
The contribution for FY16-17 is approximately $7.1 million, including a $4.4 million
contribution to the unfunded liability and a normal cost of $2.7 million. The increased
contributions are due to CalPERS investment performance and assumption changes, such as
improved mortality rates and a decrease in the assumed rate of return.

» The City’s workforce continues to turn over with retirements, which increases the City’s
obligation to pay retiree health insurance, an “other post-employment benefit” or OPEB.
During FY 2011/12, the City established a Section 115 Trust to offset the OPEB liability.
Currently, due to budget constraints, the City is unable to continue making contributions to the
Section 115 Trust; and expects to use approximately $0.9 million of the trust balance during
FY 2016/17 to pay for retiree health insurance. Annual retiree health expenditures are expected
to increase by $1.9 million over the next five years.

14
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Request for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City’s finances for its readers of
the financial statements. Questions concerning any of the information in this report or request for
additional financial information should be addressed to the Finance Department at, 701 E Carson St.
Carson, CA 90745.
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CITY OF CARSON

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

ASSETS:
Cash and investments
Cash and investments with fiscal agents
Receivables:
Taxes
Accounts
Accrued interest
Loans, net of allowance for uncollectible accounts
Due from Successor Agency
Due from governmental agencies
Internal balances
Inventory
Prepaid and other assets
Land held for resale
Capital assets, not being depreciated
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation
TOTAL ASSETS

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Deferred amounts from pension

TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Accrued payroll
Due to governmental agencies
Due to Successor Agency
Unearned revenues
Retentions payable
Long-term liabilities:
Due within one year
Due in more than one year
Net pension liability
Net OPEB obligation
TOTAL LIABILITIES

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Deferred amounts from pension

TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

NET POSITION:

Investment in capital assets
Restricted for:

Public works

Housing projects

Community services
Unrestricted

TOTAL NET POSITION

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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June 30, 2016

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activity

Total

$ 67,317,617 $ 44,547,281

$ 111,864,898

15,908,717 - 15,908,717
9,402,352 - 9,402,352
289,806 - 289,806
21,005 5,116 26,121
7,394,780 - 7,394,780
34,861 6,665,151 6,700,012
851,684 - 851,684
7,076 (7,076) -
301,819 5,977,407 6,279,226
40,613 - 40,613
3,140,754 - 3,140,754
142,430,406 36,000,000 178,430,406
226,638,030 - 226,638,030
473,779,520 93,187,879 566,967,399
11,164,331 - 11,164,331
11,164,331 - 11,164,331
20,267,148 965,734 21,232,882
1,138,733 - 1,138,733
361,326 - 361,326
4,549 - 4,549
151,536 - 151,536
28,665 - 28,665
3,922,521 - 3,922,521
4,169,358 - 4,169,358
74,441,723 - 74,441,723
17,994,368 - 17,994,368
122,479,927 965,734 123,445,661
4,833,134 - 4,833,134
4,833,134 - 4,833,134
369,068,436 36,000,000 405,068,436
2,397,487 - 2,397,487
33,115,931 - 33,115,931
28,535,274 49,556,994 78,092,268
(75,486,338) 6,665,151 (68,821,187)

$ 357,630,790 $ 92,222,145

$ 449,852,935




CITY OF CARSON
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

For the year ended June 30, 2016

Program Revenues

Charges Operating Capital
for Grants and Grants and
Functions/programs Expenses Services Contributions Contributions
Governmental activities:
General government $ 35,319,096 10,427,599 $ - $ -
Community development 12,330,080 2,639,076 999,720 -
Public works 19,819,103 180,937 7,800,050 -
Community services 42,477,759 477,420 2,359,460 1,335,164
Total governmental activities 109,946,038 13,725,032 11,159,230 1,335,164
Business-type activity:
Reclamation Authority 7,307,108 - 57,255,151 -
Total primary government $ 117,253,146 13,725,032 $ 68,414,381 $ 1,335,164

General revenues:
Taxes:

Property taxes
Sales taxes

Transient occupancy taxes

Franchise taxes
Admissions tax
Utility users tax

Total general revenues

Change in net position

Net position at end of year

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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Motor vehicle license fee, unrestricted
Investment income
Other revenues

Net position at beginning of year, as restated



Net (Expenses) Revenues and
Changes in Net Position

Governmental Business-type

Activities Activity Total
$ (24,891,497) $ - $ (24,891,497)
(8,691,284) - (8,691,284)
(11,838,116) - (11,838,116)
(38,305,715) - (38,305,715)
(83,726,612) - (83,726,612)
- 49,948,043 49,948,043
(83,726,612) 49,948,043 (33,778,569)
15,128,210 - 15,128,210
25,364,057 - 25,364,057
2,138,378 - 2,138,378
8,587,698 - 8,587,698
256,343 - 256,343
6,754,075 - 6,754,075
37,584 - 37,584
1,199,856 45,695 1,245,551
3,699,275 - 3,699,275
63,165,476 45,695 63,211,171
(20,561,136) 49,993,738 29,432,602
378,191,926 42,228,407 420,420,333

$ 357,630,790 $ 92,222,145

$ 449,852,935
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CITY OF CARSON

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
BALANCE SHEET

June 30, 2016

ASSETS

Cash and investments
Cash and investments with fiscal agents
Receivables:

Taxes

Accounts

Accrued interest - other

Loans, net of allowance
Due from other funds
Due from Successor Agency
Due from government agencies
Inventory
Prepaids and other assets
Land held for resale

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Accrued payroll
Due to other funds
Due to Successor Agency
Due to government agencies
Retentions payable
Unearned revenue

TOTAL LIABILITIES

DEEFFERED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Unavailable revenues

FUND BALANCES:
Nonspendable
Restricted
Committed
Assigned
Unassigned
TOTAL FUND BALANCES

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCES

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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Carson Housing

Authority

General Special Revenue

Fund Fund
26,093,527 $ 7,112,377
- 15,908,717
9,402,352 -
161,679 2,232
16,883 -
27,362 7,006,092
510,258 -
18,317 -
69,111 -
301,819 -
40,613 -
- 3,140,754
36,641,921 $ 33,170,172
16,770,003 $ 8,462
1,019,804 10,255
- 35,524
4,270 -
17,249 -
120,160 -
17,931,486 54,241
342,432 -
1,431,403 33,115,931
16,710,504 -
226,096 -
18,710,435 33,115,931
36,641,921 $ 33,170,172




Cooperation

Agreement Bond Nonmajor Total
Proceeds Special Governmental Governmental
Revenue Fund Funds Funds

$ 26,542,550 $ 7,569,163 $ 67,317,617
- - 15,908,717

- - 9,402,352

- 125,895 289,806

4,122 - 21,005

- 361,326 7,394,780

62,711 31 573,000

4,047 12,497 34,861

- 782,573 851,684

- - 301,819

- - 40,613

- - 3,140,754

$ 26,613,430 $ 8,851,485 $ 105,277,008
$ 1,707,428 $ 1,781,255 $ 20,267,148
4,953 103,721 1,138,733

29,518 500,882 565,924

279 - 4,549

- 361,326 361,326

305 11,111 28,665

- 31,376 151,536

1,742,483 2,789,671 22,517,881

- 269,562 269,562

- - 342,432

24,870,947 6,403,356 65,821,637

- - 16,710,504

- - 226,096
- (611,104) (611,104)

24,870,947 5,792,252 82,489,565

$ 26,613,430 $ 8,851,485 $ 105,277,008
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CITY OF CARSON

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

June 30, 2016

Fund balances - total governmental funds $ 82,489,565

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position are
different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not current financial resources and,
therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds. The capital assets consist of:

Capital assets $ 594,428,634
Accumulated depreciation (225,360,198)
369,068,436
Long-term liabilities, are not due and payable in the current period and, therefore,
are not reported in the governmental funds:
Self-insurance claims (3,137,108)
Compensated absences (4,954,771)
Net pension liability (74,441,723)
Net OPEB liability (17,994,368)
(100,527,970)
Unavailable revenues are not available to pay for current period expenditures, and
therefore ate deferred in the funds and recognized as revenue in the Statement
of Activities. 269,562
Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions are not considered financial
resources and are not reported in the governmental funds. 11,164,331
Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions are not available to pay for
current period expenses and are not reported in the governmental funds. (4,833,134)
Net position of governmental activities $ 357,630,790

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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CITY OF CARSON

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

For the year ended June 30, 2016

Carson Housing

Authority
General Special Revenue
Fund Fund
REVENUES:
Taxes $ 58,228,761 $ -
Licenses and permits 7,111,989 -
Fines and forfeitures 1,588,678 -
Intergovernmental 342,461 210,475
Charges for services 2,445,836 -
Investment income 1,782,338 193,395
Miscellaneous 2,676,687 404,622
TOTAL REVENUES 74,176,750 808,492
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
General government 29,956,664 -
Community development 4,662,800 5,410,703
Public works 15,547,603 -
Community services 32,230,590 -
Capital improvement programs 529,861 -
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 82,927,518 5,410,703
EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES (8,750,768) (4,602,211)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers in 19,884 -
Transfers out (125,873) -
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) (105,989) -
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES (8,856,757) (4,602,211)
FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING OF YEAR, AS RESTATED 27,567,192 37,718,142
FUND BALANCES - END OF YEAR $ 18,710,435 $ 33,115,931

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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Cooperation

Agreement Bond Nonmajor Total
Proceeds Special Governmental Governmental
Revenue Fund Funds Funds
$ - $ 4,823,667 $ 63,052,428
- 161,631 7,273,620
- - 1,588,678
62,711 6,781,621 7,397,268
- 1,016,027 3,461,863
261,384 48,058 2,285,175
- 1,260,182 4,341,491
324,095 14,091,186 89,400,523
- - 29,956,664
13,831,219 1,379,391 25,284,113
- 78,476 15,626,079
- 5,492,509 37,723,099
- 6,168,411 6,698,272
13,831,219 13,118,787 115,288,227
(13,507,124) 972,399 (25,887,704)
- 125,873 145,757
- (19,884) (145,757)
- 105,989 -
(13,507,124) 1,078,388 (25,887,704)
38,378,071 4,713,864 108,377,269

$ 24,870,947 $ 5,792,252 $ 82,489,565
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CITY OF CARSON

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

For the year ended June 30, 2016

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities are different
because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the Statement
of Activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives as
depreciation expense or are allocated to the appropriate functional expense when the
cost is below the capitalization threshold. This activity is reconciled as follows:
Capital outlay $ 18,871,650

Depreciation expense (9,811,505)

Governmental funds do not report the unpaid balances of long-term debt. These debts
are reported in the government-wide financial statements
Claims and judgments

Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require the use of current
financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in the governmental

funds.
Compensated absences 278,027
Other post-employment benefits (2,669,193)
Pension expense (589,037)

Revenues that are measurable but not available are recorded as unavailable revenue
under the modified accrual basis of accounting.

Change in net position of governmental activities

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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$ (25,887,704)

9,060,145

(737,753)

(2,980,203)

(15,621)

$ (20,561,136)



CITY OF CARSON

PROPRIETARY FUND
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

June 30, 2016

Reclamation
Authority
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and investments $ 44,547,281
Accrued interest 5,116
Due from Successor Agency to the Dissolved Redevelopment Agency 6,665,151
Inventory 5,977,407
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 57,194,955
NONCURRENT ASSETS:
Land 36,000,000
TOTAL ASSETS 93,194,955
LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 965,734
Due to other funds 7,076
TOTAL LIABILITIES 972,810
NET POSITION:
Investment in capital assets 36,000,000
Restricted for future projects 56,222,145
TOTAL NET POSITION $ 92,222,145

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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CITY OF CARSON

PROPRIETARY FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

For the year ended June 30, 2016

Reclamation
Authority
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Development services $ 7,307,108
OPERATING LOSS (7,307,108)
NONOPERATING REVENUES:
Contributions from Successor Agency to the Dissolved Redevelopment Agency 57,255,151
Investment income 45,695
TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUES 57,300,846
CHANGE IN NET POSITION 49,993,738
NET POSITION, BEGINNING OF YEAR, AS RESTATED 42,228,407
NET POSITION, END OF YEAR $ 92,222,145

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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CITY OF CARSON

PROPRIETARY FUND
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the year ended June 30, 2016

Reclamation
Authority
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Cash paid for services $ (7,541,374)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Investment income 40,579
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Advances repaid by other funds 1,458,076
Contributions received for operating purposes 50,590,000
TOTAL CASH PROVIDED BY NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES 52,048,076
NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 44,547,281
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR -
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR $ 44,547,281
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING LOSS TO NET CASH USED
BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Operating loss $ (7,307,108)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Decrease in accounts payable and accrued expenses (234,266)
NET CASH USED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES $ (7,541,374

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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CITY OF CARSON

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

June 30, 2016

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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Successor Agency
to the Dissolved
Redevelopment

Agency
Private-Purpose Agency
Trust Fund Funds
ASSETS:
Cash and investments $ 19,217,625 $ 7,624,125
Cash and investments with fiscal agents 21,960,716 2,536,573
Receivables:

Loans, net - -
Due from the City of Carson 4,550 -
Land held for resale 4,993,961 -

TOTAL ASSETS 46,176,852 $ 10,160,698
LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 50,773 $ 609,793
Accrued interest payable 3,107,636 -
Retention and refundable deposits 236,172 2,822,515
Due to City of Carson 34,861 -
Due to Carson Reclamation Authority 6,665,151 -
Due to assessed parties - 735,101
Due to bondholders - 5,993,289
Noncurrent liabilities:
Due within one year 12,493,710 -
Due in more than one year 202,447,229 -
TOTAL LIABILITIES 225,035,532 $ 10,160,698
NET POSITION:
Held in trust for private purpose $(178,858,680)



CITY OF CARSON

FIDUCIARY FUND
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

For the year ended June 30, 2016
Successor Agency

to the Dissolved
Redevelopment

Agency
Private-Purpose
Trust Fund
ADDITIONS:
Property taxes $ 23,166,710
Investment income 202,352
Other income 1,651,608
TOTAL ADDITIONS 25,020,670
DEDUCTIONS:
General government 759,240
Property tax administration costs 555,819
Distributions to City of Carson 273,186
Distributions to Carson Reclamation Authority 57,255,151
Interest and fiscal charges 11,731,643
TOTAL DEDUCTIONS 70,575,039
CHANGE IN NET POSITION (45,554,369)
NET POSITION - BEGINNING OF YEAR, AS RESTATED (133,304,311)
NET POSITION - END OF YEAR $ (178,858,680)

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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1.

CITY OF CARSON

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2016

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

The financial statements of the City of Carson, California (the City) have been prepared in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States of America (GAAP)
as applied to government units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the
accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting
principles. The more significant of the City’s accounting policies are described below.

A. Reporting Entity:

The City was incorporated under the provisions of Act 279, P.A. 1909, as amended (Home
Rule City Act). The City operates under a Council-Manager form of government and provides
a full range of services, including city administration, economic development, public works,
community development, transportation, public safety and recreational and cultural activities.
The City contracts with the County of Los Angeles for police protection and building and
safety services. Library services, fire protection and sewer services are provided by Special
Districts of the County of Los Angeles.

As defined by generally accepted accounting principles established by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board, the financial reporting entity consists of the primary government,
as well as its component financial reporting units, which are legally separate organizations for
which the elected officials of the primary government are financially accountable.

The accompanying basic financial statements present the City of Carson (the primary
government) and its component units, the Carson Joint Powers Financing Authority (Financing
Authority), the Carson Housing Authority (Housing Authority), and the Carson Reclamation
Joint Powers Authority (Reclamation Authority). The financial activities of these entities are
blended with the financial activities of the City because of the operational responsibility the
City has, as well as the significant financial relationship each has with the City.
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1.

CITY OF CARSON

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

June 30, 2016

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED):

A. Reporting Entity (Continued):

Blended Component Units:

The Financing Authority was established pursuant to a Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement
dated November 17, 1992, between the City and the former Carson Redevelopment Agency.
The Financing Authority was created for the purpose of providing financing for public capital
improvements for the former Redevelopment Agency and the City. Even though it is legally
separate, it is reported as if it were part of the City because the City Council also serves as the
governing board of the Financing Authority. Separate financial statements of the Financing
Authority are not issued.

The Housing Authority was established on March 8, 2011, to carry out the housing function of
the former Carson Redevelopment Agency in accordance with the California Housing
Authority Law and other applicable housing-related regulations. Even though it is legally
separate, it is reported as if it were part of the City because the City Council also serves as the
governing board of the Housing Authority. Separate financial statements of the Housing
Authority may be obtained at City Hall.

The Reclamation Authority was formed in February 2015 by the governing boards of the
Housing Authority and the Carson Community Facilities Districts Nos. 2012-1 and 2012-2.
Even though it is legally separate, it is reported as if it were part of the City because the City is
able to impose its will on the Reclamation Authority and the Reclamation Authority’s services
almost exclusively benefit the City. Separate financial statements of the Reclamation Authority
may be obtained at City Hall.

The purpose of the Reclamation Authority is to oversee and facilitate the remediation of
contaminated properties in the City. The Reclamation Authority’s role is to facilitate and fund
the environmental study, investigation, and remediation and reclamation of any and all
contaminated properties in the City, or the acquisition and subsequent reclamation of
contaminated properties. These powers also include any improvements on property related to
environmental clean up and any negotiations or processing of property reclamation required in
connection with the California Department of Toxic Substances Control or any other state or
federal environmental agency.
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1.

CITY OF CARSON

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

June 30, 2016

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED):

B. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Presentation:

The statement of net position and statement of activities (i.e., the government-wide financial
statements) display information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the primary government
(the City) and its blended component units. Eliminations have been made to minimize the
effect of interfund activity. These statements distinguish between the City’s governmental and
business-type activities. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and
intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from the business-type activity, which
relies to a significant extent on fees charged to external parties.

The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program
revenues for each function of the City’s governmental activities and for the City’s
business-type activity. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a
program or function and are clearly identifiable to a particular function. Program revenues
include 1) charges paid by the recipients of goods or services offered by the functions or
programs and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital
requirements of a particular function or program. Revenues that are not classified as program
revenues, including all taxes, are presented as general revenues.

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund financial
statements. Under the economic resources measurement focus, all assets, deferred outflows of
resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources (whether current or noncurrent)
associated with their activity are included on their statement of net position. Operating
statements present increases (revenues) and decreases (expenses) in total net position. Under
the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded
when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Proprietary funds
distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues and
expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in
connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. Nonexchange transactions,
in which the City gives (or receives) value without directly receiving (or giving) equal value in
exchange include property taxes, grants, entitlements, and donations. On an accrual basis,
revenue from property taxes is recognized in the fiscal year, which the taxes are levied.
Revenue from grants, entitlements, and donations is recognized in the fiscal year in which all
the eligibility requirements have been satisfied. Operating expenses for proprietary funds
include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital
assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating
revenues and expenses.
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1.

CITY OF CARSON

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

June 30, 2016

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED):

B. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Presentation (Continued):

The accounts of the City are organized on the basis of funds, each of which is considered a
separate accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts established for the purpose of
carrying out specific activities or attaining certain objectives in accordance with applicable
regulations, restrictions or limitations. The governmental funds financial statements are
provided for major funds individually and nonmajor funds in the aggregate, the proprietary
fund, and the fiduciary funds, even though the last is excluded from the government-wide
financial statements.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under the current financial
resources measurement focus, only current assets, current liabilities and deferred inflows of
resources are generally included on their balance sheets. The reported fund balance is
considered to be a measure of “available spendable resources”.

Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are considered to be available when
they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the
current period. For this purpose, the government considers revenues to be available if they are
collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are
recorded when a liability is incurred, except for principal and interest on long-term liabilities,
claims payable, and compensated absences which are recognized as expenditures to the extent
they have matured. Capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental
funds. Proceeds of long-term liabilities are reported as other financing sources.

Sales taxes, property taxes, franchise fees, gas taxes, motor vehicle in-lieu, and transient
occupancy taxes, and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all considered to be
susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period. All
other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when the related cash is
received by the government.

Exchange transactions are recognized as revenues in the period in which they are earned
(i.e., the related goods or services are provided). Locally imposed derived tax revenues are
recognized as revenues in the period in which the underlying exchange transaction upon which
they are based takes place. Imposed nonexchange transactions are recognized as revenues in the
period for which they were imposed. If the period of use is not specified, they are recognized as
revenues when an enforceable legal claim to the revenues arises or when they are received,
whichever occurs first. Government-mandated and voluntary nonexchange transactions are
recognized as revenues when all applicable eligibility requirements have been met.
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1.

CITY OF CARSON

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

June 30, 2016

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED):

B.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Presentation (Continued):

Governmental fund operating statements present increases (revenues and other financing
sources) and decreases (expenditures and other financing uses) in fund balance. Accordingly,
they are said to present a summary of sources and uses of “available spendable resources”
during a period.

The City’s fiduciary fund financial statements are comprised of a private-purpose trust fund
and agency funds. The private-purpose trust fund is reported using the “economic resources
measurement focus” and the “accrual basis of accounting”. The agency funds have no
measurement focus but utilize the “accrual basis of accounting” for reporting their assets and
liabilities.

Fund Classifications:

The funds designated as major funds are determined by a mathematical calculation consistent
with GASB No. 34, Basic Financial Statements and Management’s Discussion and Analysis
for State and Local Governments and GASB No.63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows
of Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position.

The City reports the following major governmental funds:

General Fund - The General Fund is the general operating fund of the City. All general tax
revenues and other receipts that are not allocated by law or contractual agreement to a specific
fund are accounted for in this fund. Expenditures of this fund include general operating costs
and capital improvement costs that are not paid through other funds.

Carson Housing Authority Special Revenue Fund - The Carson Housing Authority Fund
accounts for assets used for low and moderate income housing activities in accordance with the
applicable housing-related regulations. The housing assets of the dissolved redevelopment
agency’s Low and Moderate Income Housing Fund were transferred to Carson Housing
Authority.

Cooperation Agreement Bond Proceeds Special Revenue Fund - The Cooperation Agreement
Bond Proceeds Fund accounts for unspent bond proceeds transferred to the City from the
Successor Agency to the Dissolved Carson Redevelopment Agency (Successor Agency) in
accordance with the Cooperation Agreement entered into by and between the City of Carson and
the Successor Agency. Under this fund, the City will report the expenditures of the bond
proceeds pursuant to the original bond covenants.
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CITY OF CARSON

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

June 30, 2016

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED):
C. Fund Classifications (Continued):
The City reports the following major proprietary fund:

The Reclamation Authority Enterprise Fund oversees and facilitates the remediation of
contaminated properties in the City of Carson.

The City’s fund structure also includes the following fund types:

Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are
legally restricted to expenditure for specific purposes.

Fiduciary Funds are used to account for assets held by the City as an agent for individuals,
private organizations, other governmental units and/or other funds. The City has the following
Fiduciary Funds:

o Successor Agency to the Dissolved Redevelopment Agency Private-purpose Trust Fund -
This fund is used by the City to report trust arrangements under which principal and income
benefit other governments. This fund reports the assets, liabilities and activities of the
Successor Agency to the Dissolved Carson Redevelopment Agency. Unlike the limited
reporting typically utilized for Agency Funds, the Private-purpose Trust Fund reports a
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position and a Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position.

e Agency Funds - These funds account for money and property held by the City as trustee or
custodian. Among the activities are the disposition of funds, deposits made for the account
of other governmental agencies, developers, and others under the terms of agreements for
which the deposits were made.
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1.

CITY OF CARSON

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

June 30, 2016

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED):

D. New Accounting Pronouncements:

Current Year Standards:

In fiscal year 2015-2016, the City implemented Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(GASB) Statement No. 72, “Fair Value Measurement and Application”. GASB Statement
No. 72 requires the City to use valuation techniques which are appropriate under the
circumstances and are either a market approach, a cost approach or income approach. GASB
Statement No. 72 establishes a hierarchy of inputs used to measure fair value consisting of
three levels. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, which are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly. Level 3 inputs are
unobservable inputs, and typically reflect management’s estimates of assumptions that market
participants would use in pricing the asset or liability. GASB Statement No. 72 also contains
note disclosure requirements regarding the hierarchy of valuation inputs and valuation
techniques that were used for the fair value measurements. There was no material impact on
the City’s financial statements as a result of the implementation of GASB Statement No. 72.

GASB Statement No. 73 - “Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions and Related
Assets That Are Not within the Scope of GASB Statement 68, and Amendments to Certain
Provisions of GASB Statements 67 and 68", was required to be implemented in the current
fiscal year, except for those provisions that address employer and governmental nonemployer
contributing entities for pensions that are not within the scope of GASB Statement No. 68,
which are effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2016, and did not impact the City.

GASB Statement No. 76 - “The Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles for
State and Local Governments”, was required to be implemented in the current fiscal year and
did not impact the City.

GASB Statement No. 79 - “Certain External Investment Pools and Pool Participants”, was
required to be implemented in the current fiscal year, except for certain provisions on portfolio
quality, custodial credit risk, and shadow pricing, which are effective for periods beginning
after December 15, 2015, and did not impact the City.

GASB Statement No. 82 - “Pension Issues an Amendment of GASB Statements No. 67, No. 68

and No. 73", changed the measurement of covered payroll reported in required supplementary
information and has been early implemented.
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1.

CITY OF CARSON

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

June 30, 2016

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED):

D. New Accounting Pronouncements (Continued):

Pending Accounting Standards:

GASB has issued the following statements, which may impact the City’s financial reporting
requirements in the future:

GASB 73 - “Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions and Related Assets That
Are Not within the Scope of GASB Statement 68, and Amendments to Certain Provisions of
GASB Statements 67 and 68", the provisions that address employers and governmental
nonemployer contributing entities for pensions that are not within the scope of GASB 68,
effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2016.

GASB 74 - “Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefit Plans Other Than Pension
Plans”, effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2016.

GASB 75 - “Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than
Pensions”, effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2017.

GASB 77 - “Tax Abatement Disclosure”, effective for periods beginning after
December 15, 2015.

GASB 78 - “Pensions Provided through Certain Multiple-Employer Defined Benefit
Pension Plans”, effective for periods beginning after December 15, 2015.

GASB 79 - “Certain External Investment Pools and Pool Participants”, the certain
provisions on portfolio quality, custodial credit risk, and shadow pricing, effective for
periods beginning after December 15, 2015.

GASB 80 - “Blending Requirements for Certain Component Units”, effective for periods
beginning after June 15, 2016.

GASB 81 - “Irrevocable Split-Interest Agreements”, effective for periods beginning after
December 15, 2016.

GASB 82 - “Pension Issues”, effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2016, except

for certain provisions on selection of assumptions, which is effective in the first reporting
period in which the measurement date of the pension liability is on or after June 15, 2017.
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CITY OF CARSON

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

June 30, 2016

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED):

E. Investments:

Investments are stated at fair value. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value of the investments is generally based on published market
prices and quotations from custodians. Investment earnings are allocated based on the source of
funds.

Changes in fair value that occur during a fiscal year are recognized as investment income
reported for that fiscal year. Investment income also reports interest earnings, rental income,
and any gains or losses realized upon the liquidation, maturity, or sale of investments.

Property Taxes:

Property tax revenue is recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes have been levied
providing they become available. Available means due, or past due and receivable within the
current period and collected within the current period or expected to be collected soon enough
thereafter (not to exceed 60 days) to be used to pay liabilities in the current period.

The former Carson Redevelopment Agency receives annual property tax increment funds from
the County of Los Angeles. In addition, the City receives funds from the State of California via
the County, as the City is considered to be a “no and low” property tax City. The City’s current
year allocation of the “no and low” property tax of $7,351,395 was included in the General
Fund tax revenues.

Under California law, property taxes are assessed and collected by the counties up to 1% of
assessed value plus other increases approved by the voters. Property taxes are assessed and
collected each fiscal year according to the following property tax calendar:

Lien Date: January 1%

Levy Date: July 1** to June 30™

Due Date: First Installment - November 1
Second Installment - March 1%

Delinquent Date: First Installment - December 10™

Second Installment - April 10™
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CITY OF CARSON

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

June 30, 2016

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED):

G. Receivables:

The City extends credit to customers in the normal course of operations. Uncollectible amounts
are accounted for by the reserve method, which establishes an allowance for doubtful accounts
based upon historical losses and review of past due accounts.

. Interfund Transactions:

Interfund transactions are reflected as either loans, services provided, reimbursements, or
transfers. Loans are reported as receivables and payables as appropriate, are subject to
elimination upon consolidation and are referred to as either “due to/from other funds” (i.e., the
current portion of interfund loans) or “advances to/from other funds” (i.e., the noncurrent
portion of interfund loans). Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental
activities and the business-type activity are reported in the government-wide financial
statements as “internal balances”.

Services provided, deemed to be at market or near market rates, are treated as revenues and
expenditures/expenses. Reimbursements are when one fund incurs costs, charges the
appropriate benefiting fund and reduces its related costs as a reimbursement. All other
interfund transactions are treated as transfers.

Inventory:

Inventory is stated at cost on a first-in, first-out (FIFO) basis. Inventory in the General Fund
consists principally of fuel, office supplies, recreational activity supplies and other
miscellaneous materials and supplies. Inventory in the Reclamation Authority Enterprise Fund
consists principally of liner, backfill material, gravel, pile cap boots, geotextile and
miscellaneous landfill gas components. Materials and supplies are charged to inventories when
purchased and treated as expenditure when issued. Inventory amounts in the General Fund are
classified as nonspendable in the fund balance since they do not represent available spendable
resources.

Capital Assets:
Capital assets are recorded at cost where historical records are available and at estimated
historical cost where no historical records exist. Contributed capital assets are valued at their

acquisition value at the date of the contribution. Generally, capital asset purchases in excess of
$5,000 are capitalized if they have an expected useful life of one year or more.
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1.

CITY OF CARSON

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

June 30, 2016

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED):

J. Capital Assets (Continued):

Capital assets include additions to public domain (infrastructure) consisting of certain
improvements including land rights, roads, streets, overpass, sidewalks, medians, trees and
storm drains.

Depreciation has been provided using the straight-line method over the estimated useful life of
the asset in the government-wide financial statements.

The following schedule summarizes capital assets’ estimated useful lives:

Buildings and improvements 25 - 50 years
Machinery and equipment 5 -20 years
Infrastructure:
Roadways 7 - 100 years
Sewer 25 - 30 years
Storm drain 20 - 50 years
. Land Held for Resale:

Land held for resale in the Housing Authority Fund represents housing properties transferred to
the Housing Authority from the Low and Moderate Income Housing Fund of the former
Redevelopment Agency. Land held for resale in the Fiduciary Funds represents land purchased
by the former Redevelopment Agency to further the Redevelopment Plan. This property will be
sold and proceeds will be sent to the County of Los Angeles for distribution to affected taxing
agencies. Land held for resale is recorded at the lower of acquisition cost or estimated net
realizable value.

. Employee Compensated Absences:

It is the policy of the City to record the cost of employee compensated absences in the
government-wide financial statements as earned. A liability is recorded for unused vacation and
similar compensatory leave balances since the employees’ entitlement to these balances are
attributable to services already rendered and it is probable that virtually all of these balances
will be liquidated by either paid time off or payments upon leave redemption, termination, or
retirement.
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CITY OF CARSON

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

June 30, 2016

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED):

L. Employee Compensated Absences (Continued):

A liability is recorded for unused sick leave balances only to the extent that it is probable that
the unused balances will result in termination payments. This is estimated by including in the
liability the unused balances of employees currently entitled to receive termination payment, as
well as those who are expected to become eligible to receive termination benefits as a result of
continuing their employment with the City. Other amounts of unused sick leave are excluded
from the liability since their payment is contingent solely upon the occurrence of a future event
(illness), which is outside the control of the City and the employee.

. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources:

In addition to assets, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of
resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period and will not
be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until that time. The City has
the following items that qualify for reporting in this category:

e Deferred outflows related to pensions equal to employer contributions made after the
measurement date of the net pension liability.

e Deferred outflows related to pensions for differences between actual and expected
experiences. These amounts are amortized over a closed period equal to the average of
the expected remaining service lives of all employees that are provided with pensions
through the plan, which is 3.9 years.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position and governmental funds balance sheet
will sometimes report a separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate
financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net
position that applies to a future period and will not be recognized as an inflow of resources
(revenue) until that time. The City has the following items that qualify for reporting in this
category:

e Deferred inflows from unavailable revenues, which is only reported in the
governmental funds balance sheet. Unavailable revenues come from one source, which
is grants. These amounts are deferred and recognized as an inflow of resources in the
period that the amounts become available.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED):

M. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources (Continued):

e Deferred inflows from pensions resulting from changes of assumptions. These amounts
are amortized over a closed period equal to the average of the expected remaining
service lives of all employees that are provided with pensions through the plan, which
is 3.9 years.

e Deferred inflows related to pensions resulting from the difference in projected and
actual earnings on investments of the pension plan’s fiduciary net position. These
amounts are amortized over five years.

N. Pensions:

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows/inflows of resources
related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the
City’s California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS) plan (Plan) and additions
to/deductions from the Plan’s fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis
as they are reported by CalPERS. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of
employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit
terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

. Fund Balances and Flow Assumptions:

The fund balances reported in the governmental funds financial statements consist of the
following classifications that comprise a hierarchy based primarily on the extent to which a
government is bound to observe constraints imposed upon the use of the resources reported in
governmental funds:

Nonspendable fund balance includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are either
(a) not in spendable form or (b) legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. The
City’s nonspendable fund balance represents inventory, and prepaid and other assets.

Restricted fund balance includes resources that are subject to externally enforceable legal
restrictions. It includes amounts that can be spent only for the specific purposes stipulated by
constitution, external resource providers, or through enabling legislation. The City’s restricted
fund balances represent resources restricted for programs funded by grants and other restricted
sources, capital projects and the low/moderate income housing program, and more.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED):

O. Fund Balances and Flow Assumptions (Continued):

Committed fund balance includes amounts that can be used only for the specific purposes
determined by a formal action of the City’s highest level of decision-making authority. The
City Council, as the City’s highest level of decision-making authority, may commit, through a
resolution, fund balance for specific purposes pursuant to constraints imposed by such formal
actions taken. Committed amounts cannot be used for any other purpose unless the City
Council removes or changes the specific use through the same type of formal action taken to
establish the commitment.

Assigned fund balance consists of funds that are set aside for specific purposes by the City’s
highest level of decision making authority or a body or official that has been given the authority
to assign funds. The City Council delegates the authority to assign fund balance to the City
Manager and the Administrative Services General Manager for purposes of reporting in the
annual financial statements in accordance with Resolution No. 11-084, Classifying the Various
Components of the Fund Balance of the City of Carson.

Unassigned fund balance is the residual classification for the City’s fund balance and includes
all spendable amounts not contained in the other classifications. This category also provides the
resources necessary to meet unexpected expenditures and revenue shortfalls. The general fund
is the only fund that reports a positive unassigned fund balance amount. In other governmental
funds, if expenditures incurred for specific purposes exceeded the amounts restricted,
committed, or assigned to those purposes, it may be necessary to report a negative unassigned
fund balance in that fund.

The City considers the restricted fund balances to have been spent when expenditures are
incurred for purposes for which both unrestricted and restricted fund balance is available. The
City considers unrestricted fund balances to have been spent when an expenditure is incurred
for purposes for which amounts in any of the unrestricted classifications of fund balance could
be used. When expenditures are incurred for purposes for which amounts in any of the
unrestricted fund balance classifications could be used, it is the policy of the City to reduce the
committed amounts first, followed by assigned amounts, and then unassigned amounts.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED):

P. Net Position and Flow Assumptions:

Net position is the excess of all the City’s assets and deferred outflows of resources over all its
liabilities and deferred inflows of resources. Net position is divided into three captions. These
captions are described below and apply only to net position, which is applicable only to the
government-wide statements, proprietary fund statements, private-purpose trust fund
statements.

Net investment in capital assets - describes the portion of net position which is represented by
the current net book value of the City’s capital assets, less the outstanding balance of any debt
issued to finance these assets, unspent bond proceeds from debt, and the deferral on refunding.

Restricted - describes the portion of net position which is restricted as to use by the terms and
conditions of agreements with outside parties, governmental regulations, laws, or other
restrictions which the City cannot unilaterally alter.

Unrestricted - describes the portion of net position which is not restricted as to use.

Sometimes the City will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted
(e.g., restricted bond or grant proceeds) and unrestricted resources. In order to calculate the
amounts to report as restricted net position and unrestricted net position in the
government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements, a flow assumption must be made
about the order in which the resources are considered to be applied.

It is the City’s practice to consider restricted net position to have been depleted before
unrestricted net position is applied.

. Statement of Cash Flows:

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash equivalents are defined as investments with
original maturities of 90 days or less, which are readily convertible to known amounts of cash
and not subject to significant changes in value from interest rate fluctuations.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED):
R. Use of Estimates:

The preparation of basic financial statements in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires City management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenue and expenditures during the reporting period. Actual results could
differ from those estimates.

2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS:
Cash and Investments:

Cash and investments as of June 30, 2016, are classified in the accompanying financial statements

as follows:
Government- Fiduciary Funds
Wide Statement of Net Position
Statement of Private-Purpose Agency
Net Position Trust Fund Funds Total

Unrestricted assets:
Cash and investments $ 111,864,898 $ 19,217,625 $ 7,624,125 $ 138,706,648
Restricted assets:
Cash and investments with
fiscal agents 15,908,717 21,960,716 2,536,573 40,406,006

Total cash and investments $ 127,773,615 $ 41,178,341 $ 10,160,698 $ 179,112,654

Cash and investments at June 30, 2016, consist of the following:

Cash on hand $ 4,050
Dep osits with financial institutions 92,475,029
Investments 86.633.575

Total cash and investments $ 179,112,654
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2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED):

Investments Authorized by the California Government Code and the City’s Investment
Policy:

The following table identifies the investment types that are authorized for the City by the
California Government Code and the City’s investment policy. The table also identifies certain
provisions of the California Government Code (or the City’s investment policy, if more restrictive)
that address interest rate risk, credit risk, and concentration of credit risk. This table does not
address investments of debt proceeds held by bond trustee that are governed by the provisions of
debt agreements of the City, rather than the general provisions of the California Government Code
or the City’s investment policy.

Authorized
by Maximum Maximum
Investment ~ Maximum Percentage Investment

Authorized Investment Type Policy Maturity* of Portfolio* _in One Issuer
United States Treasury Bills Yes 5 Years None None
Federal Government Obligations Yes 5 Years None None
Collateralized Time Deposits Yes 5 Years None None
Banker’s Acceptances Yes 7 Days 10% None
Commercial Paper Yes 7 Days 15% 10%
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit Yes 5 Years 10% None
Certificates of Deposit -

Private Placement Yes 5 Years 30% None
Local Agency Investment Fund Yes N/A $50 Million None
Money Market Funds or

Mutual Funds Yes 5 Years 20% 10%
Medium Term Corporate Notes Yes 5 Years 20% 5%
State/Municipal Bonds Yes 5 Years 20% None
Common Stocks No N/A N/A N/A
Long-Term Notes and Bonds No N/A N/A N/A
Derivative Based Instruments No N/A N/A N/A
Repurchase Agreements No N/A N/A N/A
Reverse Repurchase Agreements No N/A N/A N/A
Inverse Floaters No N/A N/A N/A
Futures and Options No N/A N/A N/A
Mortgage Backed Securities No N/A N/A N/A

* - Based on state law requirements or investment policy requirements, whichever is more
restrictive.

N/A - Not Applicable
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2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED):
Investments Authorized by Debt Agreements:

Investments of debt proceeds held by fiscal agent are governed by provisions of the debt
agreements, rather than the general provisions of the California Government Code or the City’s
investment policy. The table below identifies the investment types that are authorized for
investments held by fiscal agent. The table also identifies certain provisions of these debt
agreements that address interest rate risk, credit risk, and concentration of credit risk.

Maximum Maximum
Maximum Percentage Investment
Authorized Investment Type Maturity of Portfolio in One Issuer

Local Agency Bonds None None None
U.S. Treasury Obligations None None None
U.S. Agency Securities None None None
Banker’s Acceptances 1 year None None
Commercial Paper 270 days None None
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit None None None
Repurchase Agreements 30 days None None
Money Market Mutual Funds N/A None None
Local Agency Investment Fund N/A None None
Investment Agreements N/A None None

N/A - Not Applicable
Disclosures Relating to Interest Rate Risk:

Interest rate risk pertains to the changes in market interest rates that will adversely affect the fair
value of an investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the
sensitivity of its fair value to changes in market interest rates. One of the ways that the City
manages its exposure to interest rate risk is by purchasing a combination of shorter-term and
longer-term investments and by timing cash flows from maturities so that a portion of the portfolio
is maturing or coming close to maturity over time as necessary to provide the cash flow and
liquidity needed for operations.
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2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED):
Disclosures Relating to Interest Rate Risk (Continued):
Information about the sensitivity of the fair values of the City’s investments (including investments

held by fiscal agent) to market interest rate fluctuations is provided by the following table that
shows the distribution of the City’s investments by maturity:

Remaining Maturity (in Months)

12 Months 13-24 25 -60
Investment Type or Less Months Months Total

Local Agency Investment Fund $ 8,484,895 $ -3 - $ 8,484,895
Money Market Funds 961,136 - - 961,136
U.S. Treasury Securities 1,020,120 - - 1,020,120
U.S. Agency Securities 2,830,351 11,038,818 7,639,441 21,508,610
Medium-Term Corporate Notes 648,185 1,318,475 100,704 2,067,364
State/Municipal Bonds 753,980 872,146 - 1,626,126
Held by Fiscal Agent:

Money Market Funds 26,620,715 - - 26,620,715

U.S. Treasury Securities 3,508,130 - - 3,508,130

U.S. Agency Securities 13,747,687 2,706,055 1,938,312 18,392,054

State/Municipal Bonds 2,444,425 - - 2,444,425

$ 61,019,624 § 15935494 § 9,678,457 §$ 86,633,575
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2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED):
Disclosures Relating to Credit Risk:

Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the
holder of the investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized
statistical rating organization. Presented below is the minimum rating required by (where
applicable) the California Government Code, the City’s investment policy, or debt agreements, and
the actual rating by Standard & Poor’s or Moody, as of year-end for each investment type.

Total as Minimum Not
of June 30, Legal Not Required to
Investment Type 2016 Rating Aaa Other Rated be Rated

Local Agency Investment Fund $ 8,484,895 N/A $ - $ - $ 8,484,895 § -

Money Market Funds 961,136 AA+ 961,136 - - -

U.S. Treasury Securities 1,020,120 N/A - - - 1,020,120

U.S. Agency Securities 21,508,610 N/A - 21,508,610 - -

Medium-Term Corporate Notes 2,067,364 N/A - 2,067,364 - -

State/Municipal Bonds 1,626,126 Aaa - 1,626,126 - -
Held by Fiscal Agent:

Money Market Funds 26,620,715 N/A 26,620,715 - - -

U.S. Treasury Securities 3,508,130 N/A - - - 3,508,130

U.S. Agency Securities 18,392,054 N/A - 18,392,054 - -

State/Municipal Bonds 2,444,425 N/A - 2.444.425 - -

Total $ 86,633,575 $ 27,581,851 $ 46,038,579 § 8.484.895 $ 4,528,250

N/A - Not Applicable

The actual ratings for the “Other” category above are as follows:

Investment Type AA+ AA AA- At A A- Total
U.S. Agency Securities $ 21,508,610 $ - $ - $ -8 - $ - $ 21,508,610
Medium-Term

Corporate Notes - - - 815,890 901,154 350,320 2,067,364
State/Municipal Bonds - 974,422 401,364 250,340 - - 1,626,126
Held by Fiscal Agent:

U.S. Agency Securities 18,392,054 - - - - - 18,392,054

State/Municipal Bonds - 2.,444.425 - - - - 2,444,425

Total $ 39,900,664 $ 3.418.847 § 401,364 $§ 1,066,230 § 901,154 § 350,320 $ 46,038,579
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2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED):
Concentration of Credit Risk:

The investment policy of the City contains no limitations on the amount that can be invested in any
one issuer beyond that stipulated by the California Government Code. Investments in any one
issuer (other than U.S. Treasury securities, mutual funds, and external investment pools) that
represent 5% or more of total City investments are as follows:

Reported

[ssuer Investment Type Amount
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corp. Notes U.S. Agency Securities § 14,210,318
Federal Home Loan Bank Notes U.S. Agency Securities 19,615,955

Custodial Credit Risk:

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial
institution, a government will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover
collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The custodial credit risk for
investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty (e.g., broker-dealer) to a
transaction, a government will not be able to recover the value of its investment or collateral
securities that are in the possession of another party. The California Government Code and the
City’s investment policy do not contain legal or policy requirements that would limit the exposure
to custodial credit risk for deposits or investments, other than the following provision for deposits:
The California Government Code requires that a financial institution secure deposits made by state
or local governmental units by pledging securities in an undivided collateral pool held by a
depository regulated under state law (unless so waived by the governmental unit). The market
value of the pledged securities in the collateral pool must equal at least 110% of the total amount
deposited by the public agencies. California law also allows financial institutions to secure City
deposits by pledging first trust deed mortgage notes having a value of 150% of the secured public
deposits.
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2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED):
Investment in State Investment Pool:

The City is a voluntary participant in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) that is regulated
by the California Government Code under the oversight of the Treasurer of the State of California.
The fair value of the City’s investment in this pool of $8,484,895 reported in the accompanying
financial statements at amounts based upon the City’s pro rata share of the fair value provided by
LAIF for the entire LAIF portfolio (in relation to the amortized cost of that portfolio). The balance
available for withdrawal is based on the accounting records maintained by LAIF, which are
recorded on an amortized cost basis. LAIF’s and the City’s exposure to risk (credit, market or
legal) is not currently available.

Fair Value Measurements:

The City categorizes its fair value measurement within the fair value hierarchy established by
generally accepted accounting principles. The hierarchy is based on the relative inputs used to
measure the fair value of the investments. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted
quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurements) and the
lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurements).

The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are described as follows:

Level 1: Inputs to the valuation methodology are unadjusted quoted prices for identical
assets or liabilities in active markets that the City has the ability to access.

Level 2: Inputs to the valuation methodology include:
¢ Quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets;
¢ Quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in inactive markets;
e Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability;
e Inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by observable
market data by correlation or other means.

Level 3: Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to the fair
value measurement. Unobservable inputs reflect the City’s own assumptions
about the inputs market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability
(including assumptions about risk). Unobservable inputs are developed based on
the best information available in the circumstances and may include the City’s
own data.

The asset’s or liability’s level within the hierarchy is based on the lowest level of input that is
significant to the fair value measurement. Valuation techniques used need to maximize the use of
observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs.
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2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED):
Fair Value Measurements (Continued):

The determination of what constitutes observable requires judgment by the City’s management.
City management considers observable data to be that market data which is readily available,
regularly distributed or updated, reliable, and verifiable, not proprietary, and provided by multiple
independent sources that are actively involved in the relevant market.

The categorization of an investment or liability within the hierarchy is based upon the relative
observability of the inputs to its fair value measurement and does not necessarily correspond to
City management’s perceived risk of that investment or liability.

The following is a description of the recurring valuation methods and assumptions used by the City
to estimate the fair value of its investments. The methods described may produce a fair value
calculation that may not be indicative of net realizable value or reflective of future fair values. The
use of different methodologies or assumptions to determine the fair value of certain financial
instruments could result in a different fair value measurement at the reporting date.

When available, quoted prices are used to determine fair value. When quoted prices in active
markets are available, investments are classified within Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy. When
quoted prices in active markets are not available, fair values are based on evaluated prices received
by City’s asset manager from third party service provider.

For a large portion of the City’s portfolio, the City’s asset manager applies their leveling
methodology across all securities in a specific sector (i.e. U.S. Government Sponsored Agency
Securities). Inputs to their pricing models are based on observable market inputs in active markets.

The City has no investments categorized in Level 3. When valuing Level 3 securities, the inputs or
methodology are not necessarily an indication of the risks associated with investing in those
securities. Changes in valuation techniques may result in transfers into or out of an assigned level
within the disclosure hierarchy.
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2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED):

Fair Value Measurements (Continued):

Quoted Observable Unobservable
Prices Inputs Inputs
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
U.S. Treasury Securities $ 1,020,120 $ - 8 - 8 1,020,120
U.S. Agency Securities - 21,508,610 - 21,508,610
Medium-Term Corporate Notes - 2,067,364 - 2,067,364
State/Municipal Bonds - 1,626,126 - 1,626,126
Held by Fiscal Agent:
U.S. Treasury Securities 3,508,130 - - 3,508,130
U.S. Agency Securities - 18,392,054 - 18,392,054
State/Municipal Bonds - 2,444,425 - 2,444,425
Total Leveled Investments $ 4,528,250 $ 46,038,579 §$ - 50,566,829
Local Agency Investment Fund* 8,484,895
Money Market Funds* 961,136
Held by Fiscal Agent
Money Market Funds* 26,620,715
Total Investment Portfolio 3 86,633,575

* Not subject to fair value measurements.
3. LOANS RECEIVABLE:
Details of the City’s loans receivable as of June 30, 2016 are as follows:

Loans relative to development projects under various

disposition and development agreements $ 43,734,668
First Time Homebuyer Loan Program 7,006,092
Computer Loan Program 27,362
HOME Loan Program 196,326
Neighborhood Stabilization Program Loans 165,000

Total Loans Receivable 51,129,448
Less: Allowance for uncollectible accounts (43.734.668)
Loans Receivable, Net $  7.394,780

Because of the nature of various loans receivable in relation to development projects under various
disposition and development agreements, the City provides an allowance for uncollectibility
against such loans. The City reports such loans as program costs.
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CAPITAL ASSETS:
Governmental Activities:

The following is a summary of changes in capital assets of the Governmental Activities for the year
ended June 30, 2016:

Balance at
July 1, 2015 Balance at
as Restated (1) Additions Deletions June 30, 2016
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land $ 15,344,218 $ - $ - $ 15,344,218
Land rights 75,285,334 - - 75,285,334
Land improvements 2,306,476 - - 2,306,476
Infrastructure - street trees 9,367,887 - - 9,367,887
Construction-in-progress 42,377,855 17,571,270 (19,822,634) 40,126,491
Total capital assets, not
being depreciated 144.681.770 17,571,270 (19.822.634) 142.430.406
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements 96,709,824 - - 96,709,824
Machinery and equipment 14,678,489 1,410,929 (1,830,324) 14,259,094
Infrastructure:
Roadways 294,701,711 19,822,634 - 314,524,345
Sewer 20,123,476 - - 20,123,476
Storm drain 6,381,489 - - 6,381.489
Total capital assets,
being depreciated 432,594,989 21.233.563 (1.830,324) 451,998,228
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements (33,102,505) (1,927,331) - (35,029,836)
Machinery and equipment (12,237,148) (543,296) 1,719,775 (11,060,669)
Infrastructure:
Roadways (152,302,139) (6,872,334) - (159,174,473)
Sewer (16,069,537) (349,241) - (16,418,778)
Storm drain (3.557,139) (119.303) - (3.676,442)
Total accumulated depreciation (217.268.468) (9.811,505) 1,719,775 (225.360,198)
Total capital assets,
being depreciated, net 215,326,521 11,422,058 (110,549) 226,638,030
Total governmental activities
capital assets, net § 360,008,291 $ 28,993,328 $(19,933,183) $§ 369,068,436

(1) Beginning balances of construction-in-progress, buildings and improvements, machinery and equipment, and
roadways have been restated to add governmental-use assets reported previously in the Successor Agency
Private-Purpose Trust Fund that should have been reported as City capital assets, and to make corrections for
capital assets that had been inadvertently removed, and for construction-in-progress amounts that were not
capitalizable.
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4. CAPITAL ASSETS (CONTINUED):
Governmental Activities (Continued):

Depreciation expense was charged to the following functions in the Statement of Activities for the
year ended June 30, 2016:

General government $ 1,726,129
Community services 4,885,141
Public works 2,363,754
Community development 836,481

Total depreciation expense $ 9.811,505

Business-type Activity:

The following is a summary of changes in capital assets of the Business-type Activity for the year
ended June 30, 2016:

Balance at
July 1, 2015 Balance at
as Restated (1) Additions Deletions June 30, 2016
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land $ 36,000,000 $ - $ - $ 36,000,000

(1) The beginning balance of land was increased by $36,000,000, the estimated fair value for
157 acres of land that had been contributed to the Reclamation Authority in May 2015.

58



CITY OF CARSON

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

June 30, 2016

5. INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS:
Due From/To Other Funds:

Due from/due to other funds as of June 30, 2016, are as follows:

Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount
General Fund Carson Housing Authority
Special Revenue Fund $ 35,524
Cooperation Agreement Bond
Proceeds Special Revenue Fund 29,487
Nonmajor Governmental Funds 438,171
Reclamation Authority
Enterprise Fund 7,076
Cooperation Agreement Bond
Proceeds Special Revenue Fund Nonmajor Governmental Funds 62,711
Nonmajor Governmental Funds Cooperation Agreement Bond
Proceeds Special Revenue Fund 31
$ 573,000

Current interfund receivables and payables were due to (1) short-term borrowings to eliminate
negative cash, (2) reimbursement of certain administrative costs, and (3) short-term borrowing for
project costs.

Interfund Transfers:

Transfers in and out for the year ended June 30, 2016, were as follows:

Transfer In to Fund Transfer Out of Fund Amount
General Fund Nonmajor Governmental Funds $ 19,884
Nonmajor Governmental Funds General Fund 125.873
$ 145,757

Interfund transfers were principally used to (1) transfer monies to make debt service payments on
outstanding bonds, and (2) transfer monies to reimburse the General Fund and other nonmajor
governmental funds for street maintenance costs and other costs.
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6. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES:

The following is a summary of changes in long-term liabilities for the year ended June 30, 2016:

Due Within Due in
Balance at Balance at One More Than
July 1, 2015 Additions Deletions June 30, 2016 Year One Year
Compensated absences $ 5,232,798 $ 3,149,016 $ (3,427,043) $ 4,954,771 $ 3,922,521 $ 1,032,250
Self-insurance claims payable 3.194.910 2,537,509 (1,799,756) 3,932,663 795,555 3,137,108
Total $ 8.427,708 $ 5,686,525 § (5,226,799) $ 8.887.434 $ 4.718,076 § 4,169,358

The City’s policies relating to compensated absences are described in Note 1. The liability is
primarily liquidated from the General Fund.

The City’s self-insurance claims payable are described in Note 7.

7. SELF-INSURANCE PROGRAMS:

The City is self-insured for dental and unemployment insurance. Additionally, the City is
self-insured for the first $250,000 per liability claim, including employment practices. The liability
excess insurance carrier is Lloyds of London/BRIT. The City is self-insured for the first $750,000
per workers’ compensation claim. The workers’ compensation excess insurance carrier is Arch
Insurance Company. The City is self-insured for the first $10,000 per property claim. The property
insurance carrier is Affiliated FM Insurance Company. The City is self-insured for the first $10,000
per crime claim. The crime insurance carrier is Fidelity and Deposit Company of Maryland.

At June 30, 2016, $3,932,663 has been accrued for claims payable. Such amount represents
estimates of amounts to be paid for reported claims as well as a provision for incurred but not
reported claims, which amount is based upon the City’s past experience, as modified for current
trends and information of the total liability. A total of $795,555 has been recorded in the General
Fund as the City anticipates that such amount will be paid from current resources. While the
ultimate amount of losses incurred through June 30, 2016, is dependent on future developments,
based upon information from the independent claims administrators and others involved with the
administration of the programs, City management believes that the aggregate accrual is adequate to
cover such losses.
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7. SELF-INSURANCE PROGRAMS (CONTINUED):

A summary of the City’s claims activity for the two years through June 30, 2016, is as follows:

Workers’ General
Compensation Liability
Claims Claims Totals
Balance at June 30, 2014 $ 3,275,442 $ 1,747,462 $ 5,022,904
Additions 315,982 657,027 973,009
Payments (1,187,817) (1,613,186) (2,801,003)
Balance at June30, 2015 2,403,607 791,303 3,194,910
Additions 572,114 1,965,395 2,537,509
Payments (833,534) (966,222) (1,799,756)
Balance at June 30, 2016 $ 2,142,187 $ 1.790.476 $ 3,932,663

8. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN:
A. General Information about the Pension Plan:
Plan Description:

All qualified permanent and probationary employees are eligible to participate in the City’s
Miscellaneous Plan, an agent multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by
the California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS). Benefit provisions under the
Plan are established by State statute and City resolution. CalPERS issues publicly available
reports that include a full description of the pension plan regarding benefit provisions,
assumptions, and membership information that can be found on the CalPERS website.

Benefits Provided:

CalPERS provides service retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living adjustments
and death benefits to plan members, who must be public employees and beneficiaries. Benefits
are based on years of credited service, equal to one year of full time employment. Members
with five years of total service are eligible to retire at age 50 to 62 with statutorily reduced
benefits. All members are eligible for non-industrial disability benefits after five (5) years of
service. The death benefit is one of the following: the Basic Death Benefit, the 1957 Survivor
Benefit, or the Optional Settlement 2W Death Benefit. The cost of living adjustments for each
plan are applied as specified by the Public Employees’ Retirement Law.
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8. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED):

A. General Information about the Pension Plan (Continued):

The Plan’s provisions and benefits in effect are summarized as follows:

Miscellaneous
Prior to On or After

Hire date January 1, 2013 January 1, 2013

Benefit formula 2. 7% @55 2% @62
Benefit vesting schedule 5 years of service 5 years of service
Benefit payments monthly for life monthly for life
Retirement age 50-55 52-67
Monthly benefits, as a % of eligible compensation 2.0% to 2.7% 1.0% to 2.5%
Required employee contribution rates 8% 6.75%
Required employer contribution rates 23.73% 23.73%

Employees Covered:

The following employees were covered by the benefit terms of the Plan:

Miscellaneous

Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 430

Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 200

Active employees 344

Total 974
Contributions:

Section 20814(c) of the California Public Employees’ Retirement Law requires that the
employer contribution rates for all public employers be determined on an annual basis by the
actuary and shall be effective on the July 1 following notice of a change in the rate. Funding
contributions for the Plan is determined annually on an actuarial basis as of June 30 by
CalPERS. The actuarially determined rate is the estimated amount necessary to finance the
costs of benefits earned by employees during the year, with an additional amount to finance any
unfunded accrued liability. The City is required to contribute the difference between the
actuarially determined rate and the contribution rate of employees.
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8. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED):
B. Net Pension Liability:

The City’s net pension liability for the Plan is measured as the total pension liability, less the
pension plan’s fiduciary net position. The net pension liability of the Plan is measured as of
June 30, 2015, using an annual actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2014, rolled forward to
June 30, 2015, using standard update procedures. A summary of principal assumptions and
methods used to determine the net pension liability is shown below.

Actuarial Assumptions:

The total pension liability in the June 30, 2014, actuarial valuation was determined using the
following actuarial assumptions:

Miscellaneous
Valuation Date June 30, 2014
Measurement Date June 30, 2015
Actuarial Cost Method Entry-Age Normal
Cost Method

Actuarial Assumptions:

Discount Rate 7.65%

Inflation 2.75%

Payroll Growth 3.00%

Projected Salary Increase (1)

Investment Rate of Return 7.5% (2)

Mortality 3)

(1) Depending on age, service and type of employment.

(2) Net of pension plan investment expenses, including inflation.

(3) The probabilities of mortality are derived using CalPERS' membership data for all funds.
The mortality table used was developed based on CalPERS' specific data. The table
includes 20 years of mortality improvements using Society of Actuaries Scale BB. For
more details on this table, please refer to the 2014 experience study report.

All other actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2014 valuation were based on the results of
an actuarial experience study for the period from 1997 to 2011, including updates to salary
increase, mortality and retirement rates. The Experience Study report can be obtained at the
CalPERS website under Forms and Publications.
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8. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED):
B. Net Pension Liability:
Change of Assumptions:

GASB 68, paragraph 68 states that the long-term expected rate of return should be determined
net of pension plan investment expense but without reduction for pension plan administrative
expense. The discount rate of 7.50% used for the June 30, 2014 measurement date was net of
administrative expenses. The discount rate of 7.65% used for the June 30, 2015 measurement
date is without reduction of pension plan administrative expense.

Discount Rate:

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.65% for the Plan. To
determine whether the municipal bond rate should be used in the calculation of a discount rate
for each plan, CalPERS stress tested plans that would most likely result in a discount rate that
would be different from the actuarially assumed discount rate. Based on the testing of the plans,
the tests revealed the assets would not run out. Therefore, the current 7.65% discount rate is
appropriate and the use of the municipal bond rate calculation is not deemed necessary. The
long-term expected discount rate of 7.65% is applied to all plans in the Public Employees
Retirement Fund (PERF). The stress test results are presented in a detailed report called
“GASB Crossover Testing Report” that can be obtained from the CalPERS website under the
GASB 68 section.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a
building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return
(expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each
major asset class.

In determining the long-term expected rate of return, CalPERS took into account both
short-term and long-term market return expectations as well as the expected pension fund cash
flows. Such cash flows were developed assuming that both members and employers will make
their required contributions on time and as scheduled in all future years. Using historical
returns of all the funds’ asset classes, expected compound (geometric) returns were calculated
over the short-term (first 10 years) and the long-term (11-60 years) using a building-block
approach. Using the expected nominal returns for both short-term and long-term, the present
value of benefits was calculated for each fund. The expected rate of return was set by
calculating the single equivalent expected return that arrived at the same present value of
benefits for cash flows as the one calculated using both short-term and long-term returns. The
expected rate of return was then set equivalent to the single equivalent rate calculated above
and rounded down to the nearest one quarter of one percent.

64



CITY OF CARSON

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

June 30, 2016

8. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED):
B. Net Pension Liability (Continued):
Discount Rate (Continued):
The table below reflects the long-term expected real rate of return by asset class. The rate of

return was calculated using the capital market assumptions applied to determine the discount
rate and asset allocation. The target allocation shown was adopted by the CalPERS Board

effective on July 1, 2014.

New Real Return Real Return
Strategic Years Years
Asset Class Allocation 1-10(a) 11+ (b)
Global Equity 51.00% 5.25% 5.71%
Global Fixed Income 19.00% 0.99% 2.43%
Inflation Sensitive 6.00% 0.45% 3.36%
Private Equity 10.00% 6.83% 6.95%
Real Estate 10.00% 4.50% 5.13%
Infrastructure and Forestland 2.00% 4.50% 5.09%
Liquidity 2.00% -0.55% -1.05%
Total 100.00%

(a) An expected inflation of 2.5% used for this period
(b) An expected inflation of 3.0% used for this period
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8. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED):
C. Changes in the Net Pension Liability:

The changes in the net pension liability for the Miscellaneous Plan, using the measurement date
of June 30, 2015, are as follows:

Increase (Decrease)

Total Plan Net Pension
Pension Fiduciary Liability
Liability Net Position (Asset)

Balance at June 30, 2014 $ 229,790,020 $ 168,373,004 $ 61,417,016

Changes in the Year:

Service cost 4,326,829 - 4,326,829
Interest on the total pension liability 17,550,999 - 17,550,999
Changes of assumptions (4,237,527) - (4,237,527)
Differences between expected

and actual experience 6,597,837 - 6,597,837
Plan to plan resource movement - (228,538) 228,538
Contribution - employer - 5,746,641 (5,746,641)
Contribution - employee - 2,169,417 (2,169,417)
Net investment income - 3,717,143 (3,717,143)

Benefit payments, including refunds

of employee contributions (9,777,863) (9,777,863) -
Administrative expenses - (191,232) 191,232
Net Changes 14,460,275 1,435,568 13,024,707

Balance at June 30, 2015

(Measurement Date) $ 244,250,295 $ 169,808,572 $§ 74,441,723
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8. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED):
C. Changes in the Net Pension Liability (Continued):

Sensitivity of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the
Discount Rate:

The following presents the net pension liability of the City for the Plan, calculated using the
discount rate for the Plan of 7.65%, as well as what the City’s net pension liability would be if
it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage point lower (6.65%) or
1-percentage point higher (8.65%) than the current rate:

Miscellaneous
1% Decrease 6.65%
Net Pension Liability $ 106,694,803
Current Discount Rate 7.65%
Net Pension Liability $ 74,441,723
1% Increase 8.65%
Net Pension Liability $ 47,643,407

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position:

Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the
separately issued CalPERS financial reports.
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8. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED):
D. Pension Expenses and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions:
For the year ended June 30, 2016, the City recognized pension expense of $6,865,674. At

June 30, 2016, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows Inflows
of Resources of Resources
Pension contributions subsequent to measurement date  $ 6,258,247 $ -
Differences between actual and expected experience 4,906,084 -
Change of assumptions - (3,150,982)
Net differences between projected and actual

earnings on plan investments - (1,682,152)
Total $ 11,164,331 §  (4,833,134)

$6,258,247 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to contributions subsequent to the
measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year
ending June 30, 2017. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized as pension expense as follows:

Year
Ending
June 30, Amount
2017 $ (554,875)
2018 (554,875)
2019 (615,397)
2020 1,798,097
2021 -
Thereafter -

E. Payable to the Pension Plan:

At June 30, 2016, the City had no outstanding amount of contributions to the pension plan
required for the year ended June 30, 2016.
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9. OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) PLAN:
Plan Description:

The City administers a defined benefit plan, which provides medical insurance benefits to eligible
retirees and qualified family members.

An employee is eligible for the City contribution provided they are vested in their CalPERS
pension benefit and commence payment of their pension benefit within 120 days of retirement with
the City. Vesting requires at least 5 years of PERS eligible service. The surviving spouse of an
eligible retiree who elected spouse coverage under CalPERS is eligible for the employer
contribution upon the death of the retiree.

The City contributes to the retiree health coverage of eligible retirees and eligible surviving
spouses. The City’s financial obligation is to pay for the retiree and eligible dependent coverage up

to a monthly maximum.

Eligible participants to the plan as of July 1, 2015, the date of the most recent actuarial valuation,
are as follows:

Retirees Receiving Benefits:

Age 65 and above 172
Age below 65 79
Subtotal 251

Active Employees:

Full-time 317
Unclassified/Part-time 139
Subtotal 456
Total 707

City’s Funding Policy:

The Plan provisions and contribution requirements of plan members and the City are established
and may be amended by City Council. The City joined the California Employer’s Retiree Benefit
Trust (CERBT) and has made a contribution of $318,044 for the fiscal year 2015-2016 in addition
to direct contributions it paid for retiree benefits of $1,804,366. Direct contributions of $57,897
were for the benefit of the dissolved redevelopment agency employees. Total contributions during
the fiscal year 2015-2016 amounted to $2,122,410.
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9. OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) PLAN (CONTINUED):
Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation:

The City’s annual other post-employment benefit (OPEB) cost (expense) is calculated based on the
annual required contribution of the employer (ARC), an amount actuarially determined in
accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement No. 45. The ARC represents a level of funding
that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize any
unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to exceed thirty years.

The following table shows the components of the annual OPEB cost for the current fiscal year, the
amount actually contributed to the Plan, and changes in the City’s net OPEB obligation for these
benefits:

Annual required contribution (ARC) § 5,128,216
Interest on net OPEB obligation 881,198
Adjustments to ARC (1,217.811)
Annual OPEB cost 4,791,603
Benefit payments and contributions made (2,122,410)
Increase in net OPEB obligation 2,669,193
Net OPEB obligation, beginning of year 15,325,175
Net OPEB obligation, end of year § 17,994,368

Three-Year Trend Information:

The City’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and the
net OPEB obligation for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016 and the two preceding years were as

follows:
Percentage

Fiscal Annual of Annual Net

Year OPEB OPEB Cost OPEB
Ended Cost Contributed Obligation
06/30/14 $ 4,664,809 129.1 % $ 14,380,295
06/30/15 4,603,539 79.5 % 15,325,175
06/30/16 4,791,603 443 % 17,994,368
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9. OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) PLAN (CONTINUED):
Funded Status and Funding Progress:

As of July 1, 2015, the most recent valuation date, the actuarial accrued liability for benefits was
$55,196,794, and the actuarial value of assets was $16,112,035, resulting in an unfunded actuarial
accrued liability (UAAL) of $39,084,759 and a funded ratio (actuarial value of assets as a
percentage of the actuarial accrued liability) of 29%. The covered payroll (annual payroll of active
employees covered by the plan) was $29,602,000, and the ratio of the UAAL to the covered payroll
was 132%.

The projection of future benefit payments for an ongoing plan involves estimates of the value of
reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of occurrences of events far into the
future. Examples include assumptions about future employment, mortality and healthcare cost
trends. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required
contributions of the employer are subject to continual revision, as actual results are compared with
past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. The schedule of funding progress
presents multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets are increasing
or decreasing over time, relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions:

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and
assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include
assumptions about future employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts
determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required contributions of the
employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and
new estimates are made about the future. The schedule of funding progress, presented in the
required supplementary information section, presents multiyear trend information about whether
the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial
accrued liabilities for the benefits.
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9. OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) PLAN (CONTINUED):
Actuarial Methods and Assumptions (Continued):

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the plan
as understood by the employer and the plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at
the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between employer
and plan members to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques
that are designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the
actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations.

The actuarial cost method used for determining the benefit obligations is the Projected Unit Credit
Method. The actuarial assumptions included a 5.75% discount rate, which reflects a blend between
a pay-as-you-go discount rate of 5% and the 7.61% discount rate for invested assets, and actual
annual cost trend rates for 2016, and annual cost trend rates of 6.5% for HMO and 7.0% for PPO
for 2017, reduced by decrements of 0.5% per year to an ultimate rate of 5% after the third and
fourth year, respectively. All the rates included a 2.75% inflation assumption. The UAAL is being
amortized over 30 years using a level-dollar method on a closed basis. The remaining period at
June 30, 2015 is 23 years. It is assumed the City’s payroll will increase 3.00% per year.
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10. GOVERNMENTAL FUND BALANCE CLASSIFICATIONS:
The various fund balance classifications established as of June 30, 2016, were as follows:

Special Revenue Funds

Cooperation
Carson Agreement Nonmajor
Housing Bond Governmental
General Authority Proceeds Funds Total
Nonspendable:
Inventory $ 301,819 $ - 3 -3 - % 301,819
Prepaids and other assets 40,613 - - - 40,613
Total Nonspendable 342.432 - - - 342.432
Restricted for:
Housing projects - 33,115,931 - - 33,115,931
Special revenue funds - - - 6,403,356 6,403,356
1% PEG fees 431,403 - - - 431,403
Alameda Corridor Projects 1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000
Capital projects - - 24.870.947 - 24.870,947
Total Restricted 1.431.403 33,115,931 24,870,947 6.403.356 65.821,637
Committed:
Economic uncertainties 16,585,504 - - - 16,585,504
Reward funds 125,000 - - - 125,000
Total Committed 16,710.504 - - 16,710.504
Assigned:
Loan shed program 226,096 - - - 226,096
Unassigned - - - (611,104) (611,104)
Total Fund Balances $§ 18,710,435 $ 33,115931 §$§ 24870947 §$§ 5,792,252 § 82,489,565
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11. OTHER REQUIRED INDIVIDUAL FUND DISCLOSURES:
Deficit Fund Balances:

The following funds reported an accumulated deficit in fund balance as of June 30, 2016:

Accumulated
Deficit
Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds:
TDA Atrticle 3 Fund $ (3,834)
Los Angeles County Park District Fund (131,346)
Proposition 1B Fund (32,311)
State CIP Grants Fund (5,040)
Federal Highway Planning Grant Fund (438,573)

Management expects that these deficits will be remedied after the related reimbursements from the
grants are received.

Excess of Expenditures over Appropriations:

For the year ended June 30, 2016, expenditures by function exceeded appropriations of the
following City funds:

Final Variance with
Budget Actual Final Budget
Major Fund:
General Fund:
General government:
City Attorney $ 4,570,550 $§ 12,586,274 § (8,015,724)
City Manager 4,019,728 4,020,640 (912)
Community development 4,631,819 4,662,800 (30,981)
Capital improvement programs 264,298 529,861 (265,563)
Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds:
Proposition A Local Return Fund:
Capital improvement programs 14,000 14,382 (382)
Self-Supporting Fund:
Community services 971,883 1,101,739 (129,856)
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11. OTHER REQUIRED INDIVIDUAL FUND DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED):

Excess of Expenditures over Appropriations (Continued):

Final Variance with
Budget Actual Final Budget
Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds (Continued):
Capital Asset Replacement Fund:
Capital improvement programs $ 124,754 $ 126,149 $ (1,395)
Park Development Fund:
Capital improvement programs 29,288 31,545 (2,257)
Proposition 1B Fund:
Capital improvement programs 54,649 54,652 3)
Federal Highway Planning Grant Fund:
Capital improvement programs 1,636,718 1,703,194 (66,476)

12. DEBT ISSUED WITHOUT GOVERNMENT COMMITMENT:
Assessment District No. 2006:

In September 2006, the City of Carson issued $25,000,000 and $7,955,000 of Assessment District
No. 2006-1 (Dominguez Technology Center West) Reassessment Revenue Bonds, Series A and
Subordinate Series B, respectively, (collectively, the Bonds). The Bonds were issued to finance
certain public capital improvements within the Assessment District, purchase the outstanding
Reassessment District No. 2001-1 Limited Obligation Refunding Improvement Bonds, establish
the Reserve Fund, pay the premium, and to pay the cost of issuing the bonds.

The City is not liable for repayment of this debt but is only acting as an agent for the property
owners in collecting the assessments, forwarding the collections to bondholders, and initiating
foreclosure proceedings for the benefit of the bondholders.

For these reasons, neither the debt nor the related debt service transactions are recorded on the

City’s basic financial statements. The principal balances outstanding at June 30, 2016, are
$19,075,000 and $6,175,000, for Series A and Subordinate Series B, respectively.
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12. DEBT ISSUED WITHOUT GOVERNMENT COMMITMENT (CONTINUED):

13.

Assessment District No. 92-1:

In October 1992, the City of Carson issued $13,100,000 of Assessment District No. 92-1
(Sepulveda Special District) Limited Obligation Improvement Bonds, Series 1992 (the Bonds). The
Bonds were issued to finance a portion of the costs of the construction of certain street
improvements, particularly the widening of a portion of Sepulveda Boulevard and included the
reconstruction, removal, modification and relocation of pipelines, facilities, and the relocation of
railroad tracks from the public right-of-way, storm drainage improvements, signalizing, and
landscaping. Bond proceeds were also used to establish the Reserve Fund, and to pay the cost of
issuing the bonds.

The City’s obligation to transfer funds to the Redemption Fund in the event of delinquent
installments is limited to the balance in the Reserve Fund. The City is in no way liable for
repayment but is only acting as an agent for the property owners in collecting the assessments,
forwarding the collections to bondholders, and initiating foreclosure proceedings for the benefit of
the bondholders.

For these reasons, neither the debt nor the related debt service transactions are recorded on the
City’s basic financial statements. The principal balance outstanding at June 30, 2016 is $1,030,000.

CONTINGENCIES - CLAIMS:
The City is a defendant in several general damage and personal injury lawsuits and claims. These
claims arise primarily from injuries sustained by the claimants while on property owned or

maintained by the City.

The City has accrued a liability of $7,964,718 in the General Fund for certain claims that existed as
of June 30, 2016, that were either settled or a judgment against the City made subsequently.
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14. HOUSING AUTHORITY COMMITMENTS UNDER DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENTS:
Following are details of the Housing Authority’s commitments under Development Agreements:
East Carson Housing Partners, L.P.:

On June 15, 2010, the former Carson Redevelopment Agency (Agency) entered into a disposition
and development agreement (DDA) with East Carson Housing Partners, L.P. (Developer) for the
development of a 65-unit workforce housing community on a 1.75 acre Agency-owned property
(Property) located at 425 E. Carson Street. The development was completed and fully leased by
June 2012. The site provides housing for very-low, low and moderate income households. The
product type ranges from one-bedroom to three-bedroom units.

The Agency provided assistance for the development of the project by selling the Property to the
Developer for the fair market value of $1,906,500 (Purchase Price). In addition, the Agency
provided project assistance in the amount of $6,888,000 towards Project development costs
(Agency Assistance). The combined value of the land and set-aside funds are evidenced by a
promissory note and secured by a Deed of Trust recorded on March 9, 2011. The Purchase Price
and the Agency Assistance totals $8,794,500. This amount is to be repaid by the Developer with
residual receipts over a 55 year period, with interest accruing at 0.5% per annum (Note). Any
balance on the Note is due and payable at the end of 55 years from commencement of their
permanent loan. The permanent loan commenced March 1, 2013. At June 30, 2016, the balance on
the Note is $7,865,891.

East Carson II Housing Partners, L.P.:

On February 19, 2013, the Housing Authority entered into an Affordable Housing Agreement with
East Carson II Housing Partners, L.P. (Developer) for the development of a 40-unit workforce
housing community on approximately 1.0 acre Housing Authority-owned property. On
November 25, 2013 the Housing Authority closed escrow for the sale of the property and the
Developer began construction. The project was completed with a grand opening ceremony held on
April 2, 2015. The development serves as phase two to the East Carson Housing Partners, L.P.
project at 425 E. Carson Street, which was completed in June 2012.

The Housing Authority’s financial assistance for this project included a loan of $3,320,000 for
pre-development and construction costs and the property purchase price of $1,565,446 for a total
assistance amount of $4,885,446. The total assistance amount was provided by a promissory note
(Note) and secured by a Deed of Trust to be recorded at the time the Housing Authority sells the
property to Developer. The Note is to be repaid by the Developer with residual receipts over a
55 year period, with interest accruing at 0.5% per annum. Any balance on the Note will be due and
payable at the end of 55 years from commencement of the permanent senior loan. The permanent
financing began on November 25, 2013.
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14. HOUSING AUTHORITY COMMITMENTS UNDER DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENTS
(CONTINUED):

City View - 616 E. Carson Street:

On February 17, 2011, the Agency and City View 616 East Carson, LLC (Developer) entered into
a disposition and development agreement (DDA) to develop a mixed-use commercial/retail and
residential development on a 9.57 acre Agency-owned property located at 616, 542, and 550 East
Carson Street (Property). The project will include 23 condominiums for moderate income
households, 129 market rate homes, and 13,000 square feet of commercial space. The Property
was sold to the Developer on April 17, 2013. The project has been built and the Developer is
waiting to receive its certificate of occupancy. All affordable units have been sold.

Affirmed Housing Group - 21227 Figueroa Street:

On March 1, 2011, the Agency entered into a disposition and development agreement (DDA) with
Affirmed Housing Group, Inc. (Developer) for the development of a 40-unit workforce housing
community on Agency-owned property located at 21227 Figueroa Street (Property). The Agency’s
financial assistance for this project included a loan of $2,855,000 for pre-development and
construction costs, and the property purchase price of $1,345,000 for a total assistance amount of
$4,200,000 (Agency Assistance). The Agency Assistance is evidenced by a promissory note and
secured by a Deed of Trust recorded on December 24, 2012. The Agency Assistance is to be repaid
by the Developer with residual receipts over a 55 year period, with interest accruing at 0.5% per
annum (Note). Any balance on the Note is due and payable at the end of 55 years from issuance of
a certificate of occupancy. The certificate of occupancy was issued on March 6, 2014.

City Ventures - 2666 Dominguez Street:

On September 17, 2013, the Housing Authority entered into a Purchase and Sale Agreement with
City Ventures (Developer) for the sale of approximately 0.5-acre Housing Authority-owned
property located at 2671 Tyler Street (Property). Escrow closed in October 2014. The sales price
of the Property was $238,000. The Developer is building a for-sale single family detached, market
rate residential project in accordance with the Property’s land use and zoning regulations. The
homes will be on fee simple lots. There was no Housing Authority assistance provided for this
project. The sales proceeds will be used to assist future affordable housing developments.
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14. HOUSING AUTHORITY COMMITMENTS UNDER DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENTS
(CONTINUED):

City Ventures - 2666 Dominguez Street (Continued):

Concurrently with the sale of the Property, the Housing Authority facilitated the sale, to the
Developer, of a 1.0-acre parcel of contiguous land at 2666 Dominguez (Site), owned by the City.
The Site was the former Dominguez Trailer Park, which the City acquired using $1,162,261 of
CDBG funds for an affordable housing development. The City eventually sold the Site and
received sales proceeds of $463,484. The market rate residential project is being built on both lots.

Since the property was not used for an affordable housing development, HUD required that the
City reimburse its CDBG fund $698,777 for the difference between the acquisition and the sales
proceeds. Subsequent to the year end, the City reimbursed these funds. Construction of the Carson
Collection, a 13-unit single-family market rate housing development is 90% complete. Each unit is
a three-bedroom, two-bathroom detached home with a 2-car garage. The Carson Collection is
designed with drought tolerant landscaping and all homes are “Green Key Solar”, which means
they are all electric homes powered by solar energy. Advanced energy-efficient appliances and
other innovations allow these sustainable homes to significantly reduce utility bills. These are the
most energy-efficient new homes on the market, and their technologies come standard at the
Carson Collection. All homes have been sold.

Avalon Courtyard Senior Apartments:

In July 1992, the Agency entered into a disposition and development agreement (DDA) with
Thomas Safran & Associates (Developer) for development and operation of an affordable senior
citizen housing project (Project). Pursuant to the DDA, the Developer executed a promissory note
for a loan in the amount of $2,681,000 with a simple interest rate of 5%. The amount of Developer
loan repayments is equal to 50% of the positive cash flow generated by the Project. As of
June 30, 2016, the outstanding loans receivable from the Developer is $2,681,000. Pursuant to the
DDA, as amended, the Agency is also required to provide the Developer a rent subsidy in the
amount of $160,524 per year for 30 years following the date of the certificate of occupancy for the
Project (or until August 1, 2025).
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14. HOUSING AUTHORITY COMMITMENTS UNDER DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENTS

15.

(CONTINUED):
Carson Terrace, L.P.:

In June 1999, the Agency entered into an Owner Participation Agreement (OPA) with Carson
Terrace, L.P. (Developer) for development and operation of an affordable senior citizen housing
project (Project). Pursuant to the OPA, the Developer executed a promissory note for a short-term
construction loan in the amount of $2,205,000 with a simple interest rate of 3%. Subsequently, the
Developer executed a promissory note for a long- term loan with a 5% simple interest rate for the
purpose of retiring the construction loan. An amendment dated December 15, 2000, increased the
amount of the long-term loan to $2,296,988. The amount of Developer loan repayments are equal
to 50% of the positive cash flow generated by the Project. At June 30, 2016, the balance on the
note is $2,296,988. Pursuant to the OPA, the Agency is also required to provide the Developer a
rent subsidy in the amount of $73,320 per year for 30 years following the date of the certificate of
occupancy issued in 2001 (or until December 26, 2030).

Gramercy Urban Housing, LL.C. - 21521 Avalon Boulevard:

On January 21, 2014, the Housing Authority entered into a purchase and sale agreement with
Gramercy Urban Housing, LLC (Developer) for the sale of approximately 1.0-acre Housing
Authority-owned property located at 21521 Avalon Boulevard. Once purchased, the Developer will
build a mixed-use commercial/residential project generally consistent with the City’s Carson Street
Master Plan. The Developer desires to assemble the property with its property at the northwest
corner of Avalon Boulevard and Carson Street, and the Carson Successor Agency-owned property
located at 615 E. Carson Street for the mixed-use development. There was no Housing Authority
assistance in connection with this sale. The property was sold for the highest and best use fair
market appraised value of $1,000,000. Escrow closed on August 12, 2015.

RECENT CHANGES IN LEGISLATION AFFECTING CALIFORNIA REDEVELOPMENT
AGENCIES:

On June 28, 2011, Assembly Bills x1 26 (the Dissolution Act) and x1 27 was enacted as part of the
fiscal year 2011-12 state budget package which dissolved Redevelopment.

On June 27, 2012, as part of the fiscal year 2012-13 state budget package, the Legislature passed
and the Governor signed AB 1484, which made technical and substantive amendments to the
Dissolution Act based on experience to-date at the state and local level in implementing the
Dissolution Act.
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15. RECENT CHANGES IN LEGISLATION AFFECTING CALIFORNIA REDEVELOPMENT
AGENCIES (CONTINUED):

In September 2015, the Legislature passed and the Governor signed SB 107, which made
additional changes to the Dissolution Act.

Under the Dissolution Act, each California redevelopment agency (each Dissolved RDA) was
dissolved as of February 1, 2012, and the sponsoring community that formed the Dissolved RDA,
together with other designated entities, have initiated the process under the Dissolution Act to
unwind the affairs of the Dissolved RDA. A Successor Agency was created for each Dissolved
RDA which is the sponsoring community of the Dissolved RDA unless it elected not to serve as
the Successor Agency. On January 10, 2012, the City became the Successor Agency of the former
redevelopment agency by operation of law in accordance with the Bill.

The Dissolution Act also created oversight boards which monitor the activities of the successor
agencies. The roles of the successor agencies and oversight boards is to administer the wind down
of each Dissolved RDA which includes making payments due on enforceable obligations,
disposing of the assets (other than housing assets) and remitting the unencumbered balances of the
Dissolved RDAs to the County Auditor-Controller for distribution to the affected taxing entities.

The Dissolution Act allowed the sponsoring community that formed the Dissolved RDA to elect to
assume the housing functions and take over the certain housing assets of the Dissolved RDA. If the
sponsoring community does not elect to become the Successor Housing Agency and assume the
Dissolved RDA’s housing functions, such housing functions and all related housing assets will be
transferred to the local housing authority in the jurisdiction. AB 1484 modified and provided some
clarifications on the treatment of housing assets under the Dissolution Act. The Housing Authority
elected on January 27, 2012 to serve as the Housing Successor Agency.

The housing assets, obligations, and activities of the Dissolved RDA have been transferred and are
reported in the Carson Housing Authority Special Revenue Fund in the financial statements of the
City. All other assets, obligations, and activities of the Dissolved RDA have been transferred and
are reported in a fiduciary fund (private-purpose trust fund) in the financial statements of the City.

The Dissolution Act and AB 1484 also establish roles for the County Auditor-Controller (CAC),
the California Department of Finance (the DOF) and the California State Controller’s office in the
dissolution process and the satisfaction of enforceable obligations of the Dissolved RDAs.

The County Auditor-Controller is charged with establishing a Redevelopment Property Tax Trust
Fund (the RPTTF) for each Successor Agency and depositing into the RPTTF the amount of
property taxes that would have been redevelopment property tax increment had the Dissolved RDA
not been dissolved. The deposit in the RPTTF is to be used to pay to the Successor Agency the
amounts due on the Successor Agency’s enforceable obligations.
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15. RECENT CHANGES IN LEGISLATION AFFECTING CALIFORNIA REDEVELOPMENT
AGENCIES (CONTINUED):

The Successor Agency is required to prepare a recognized obligation payment schedule (the
ROPS) approved by the oversight board setting forth the amounts due for each enforceable
obligation. The ROPS is submitted to the DOF for approval. The County Auditor-Controller will
make payments to the Successor Agency from the RPTTF based on the ROPS amount approved by
the DOF. The ROPS is prepared in advance for the enforceable obligations.

The process of making RPTTF deposits to be used to pay enforceable obligations of the Dissolved
RDA will continue until all enforceable obligations have been paid in full and all non-housing
assets of the Dissolved RDA have been liquidated.

As part of the dissolution process AB1484 required the Successor Agency to have due diligence
reviews of both the low and moderate income housing funds and all other funds to be completed by
October 15, 2012 and January 15, 2013 to compute the funds (cash) which were not needed by the
Successor Agency to be retained to pay for existing enforceable obligations. These funds were to
be remitted to the CAC after the DOF completed its review of the due diligence reviews. The
former redevelopment agency (Successor Agency) did not have to remit any funds to the CAC as a
result of the due diligence reviews.

The DOF issued a Finding of Completion on August 9, 2013, in which DOF concurred that the
Successor Agency has made full payments of any payments required as a result of the due
diligence reviews even though no payment was required.

The Successor Agency’s use and disposition of all properties held (Long Range Property
Management Plan or LRPMP) was approved by the California Department of Finance on
September 24, 2013. As a result, the Successor Agency transferred the properties designated for
governmental purposes to the City in June 2015.

Management believes, in consultation with legal counsel, that the obligations of the Dissolved
RDA due to the City are valid enforceable obligations payable by the Successor Agency under the
requirements of the Dissolution Act and AB 1484. The City’s position on this issue is not a
position of settled law and there is considerable legal uncertainty regarding this issue. It is
reasonably possible that a legal determination may be made at a later date by an appropriate
judicial authority that would resolve this issue unfavorably to the City.
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16. SUCCESSOR AGENCY DISCLOSURES:

The accompanying financial statements also include the Private-purpose Trust Fund for the
Successor Agency to the City’s former Redevelopment Agency (Successor Agency). The City, as
the Successor Agency, serves in a fiduciary capacity, as custodian for the assets and to wind down
the affairs of the former Redevelopment Agency. Its assets are held in trust for the benefit of the
taxing entities within the former Redevelopment Agency’s boundaries and as such, are not
available for the use of the City.

Loans Receivable:
Details of the Successor Agency’s loans receivable as of June 30, 2016, are as follows:

Loans relative to development projects under various

disposition and development agreements $ 22,248,975
Less: Allowance for uncollectible accounts (22.248.975)
Loans Receivable, Net $ -

Because of the nature of various loans receivable in relation to development projects under various
disposition and development agreements, the Successor Agency provides an allowance for
uncollectibility against such loans. The Successor Agency reports such loans as program costs.
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16. SUCCESSOR AGENCY DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED):

The following is a summary of changes in long-term liabilities for the year ended June 30, 2016:

Redevelopment Project Area 1:
2003B Tax Allocation Bonds
2001 Tax Allocation

Refunding Bonds
2009A Tax Allocation Bonds
2009 Revenue Bonds
2014A Tax Allocation
Refunding Bonds

Redevelopment Project Area 2:

2007A Tax Allocation
Refunding Bonds

2014A Tax Allocation
Refunding Bonds

Redevelopment Project Area 4:
2006 Tax Allocation Bonds

Low and Moderate Income

Housing:
2010A-T Tax Allocation
Housing Bonds
2010A Tax Allocation
Housing Bonds
Successor Agency:
2015B Subordinate
Tax Allocation
Refunding Bonds
County deferred loans

Total

Due Within Due in
Balance at Balance at One More Than
July 1, 2015 Additions Deletions June 30, 2016 Year One Year
$ 10,054,234 §$ 567,995 -9 10,622,229 $ - 10,622,229
5,410,000 - (2,635,000) 2,775,000 2,775,000 -
20,845,000 - (445,000) 20,400,000 470,000 19,930,000
11,635,000 - (285,000) 11,350,000 295,000 11,055,000
25,945,000 - (215,000) 25,730,000 225,000 25,505,000
16,260,000 - (130,000) 16,130,000 135,000 15,995,000
15,380,000 - (1,255,000) 14,125,000 1,300,000 12,825,000
24,335,000 - (510,000) 23,825,000 535,000 23,290,000
10,315,000 - (1,440,000) 8,875,000 1,505,000 7,370,000
25,620,000 - - 25,620,000 - 25,620,000
- 52,920,000 - 52,920,000 2,685,000 50,235,000
2.568.710 - - 2.568.710 2.568,710 -

$ 168,367,944 $ 53,487,995

(6,915.000) $ 214940939 $

12,493,710 § 202,447,229

All bonds are in compliance with their respective reserve requirements, by either the purchase of a
surety bond or the placement of cash in a reserve account with the fiscal agent trustee.
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16. SUCCESSOR AGENCY DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED):
Long-Term Liabilities - Redevelopment Project Area 1:

2003B Tax Allocation Bonds

In December 2003, the Carson Redevelopment Agency issued $32,495,863 of Tax Allocation
Bonds, Series 2003B for Redevelopment Project Area No. 1 to fund redevelopment projects within
the project area. The first principal installment was due on October 1, 2004; and then on
October 1, 2017 annually thereafter ranging from $466,575 to $3,940,000 plus interest at 2.0%
to 5.25% through October 2034. In April 2014, this debt was partially defeased when the Successor
Agency of the former Carson Redevelopment Agency issued the Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds,
Series 2014A. The capital appreciation bonds of $5,410,863 that were issued as part of the bond
issuance Tax Allocation Bonds, Series 2003B with maturity dates from October 1, 2023
through 2032 were not defeased. Prior to their applicable maturity dates, each capital appreciation
bond will accrete interest on the principal component, with all interest accreting through the
applicable maturity date and payable only upon the maturity or prior payment of the principal
component. Accreted interest of $5,211,366 has been reflected as long-term debt.

The following schedule summarizes the debt service to maturity requirement for the
Redevelopment Project Area 1 - 2003B Tax Allocation Bonds as of June 30, 2016:

Year Ending
June 30, Principal Interest Total

2017 $ - $ - $ -
2018 - - -
2019 - - -
2020 - - -
2021 - - -
2022 -2026 2,153,026 4,476,974 6,630,000
2027 - 2031 2,296,614 6,983,386 9,280,000
2032 -2033 961,223 3,678,777 4,640,000
Totals $  5.410,863 $ 15,139,137 $ 20,550,000
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Long-Term Liabilities - Redevelopment Project Area 1 (Continued):

2001 Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds

Of the 2001 series proceeds, $31,174,303 were used to purchase U.S. Government securities to
advance refund a portion of the 1992 series and advance refund in full the 1993B series. Those
securities were placed in an irrevocable trust with an escrow agent to provide for all future debt
service payments on $14,160,000 of the 1992 series and the entire outstanding balance of the
1993B series in the amount of $15,000,000. As a result, the portion of the 1992 series and the
entire 1993B series tax allocation bonds are considered to be defeased. The corresponding
liabilities for the $14,160,000 and $15,000,000, respectively, have been removed from the
statement of fiduciary net position in the accompanying fiduciary fund financial statements.

The following schedule summarizes the debt service to maturity requirement for the
Redevelopment Project Area 1 - 2001 Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds as of June 30, 2016:

Year Ending
June 30, Principal Interest Total
2017 $ 2775000 $ 76,313 $ 2851313
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16. SUCCESSOR AGENCY DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED):
Long-Term Liabilities - Redevelopment Project Area 1 (Continued):

2009A Tax Allocation Bonds

On June 23, 2009, the Carson Redevelopment Agency issued $22,810,000 of Tax Allocation
Bonds, Series 2009A for Redevelopment Project Area No. 1 to fund redevelopment projects within

the project area. Principal installments are due and begin October 1, 2010 annually ranging from
$290,000 to $3,350,000 plus interest at 0.98% to 6.23% through October 2036.

The following schedule summarizes the debt service to maturity requirement for the
Redevelopment Project Area 1 - 2009A Tax Allocation Bonds as of June 30, 2016:

Year Ending
June 30, Principal Interest Total

2017 $ 470,000 $ 1,332,550 $ 1,802,550
2018 545,000 1,305,225 1,850,225
2019 575,000 1,272,988 1,847,988
2020 615,000 1,237,288 1,852,288
2021 650,000 1,198,900 1,848,900
2022 -2026 7,330,000 4,827,056 12,157,056
2027 - 2031 1,795,000 3,277,575 5,072,575
2032 -2036 5,070,000 2,440,550 7,510,550
2037 3,350,000 117,250 3,467,250
Totals $ 20,400,000 $ 17,009,382 $ 37.409,382
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Long-Term Liabilities - Redevelopment Project Area 1 (Continued):

2009 Revenue Bonds

In July 2009, the Carson Redevelopment Agency issued $12,165,000 of Revenue Bonds, Series
2009, for Redevelopment Project Area No.l to fund redevelopment activities within the project
area. Principal payments are due annually ranging from $260,000 to $930,000 plus interest at
3.75% to 5.5% through October 1, 2036.

The following schedule summarizes the debt service to maturity requirement for the
Redevelopment Project Area 1 - 2009 Revenue Bonds as of June 30, 2016:

Year Ending
June 30, Principal Interest Total

2017 $ 295,000 $ 687,075 $ 982,075
2018 310,000 672,688 982,688
2019 325,000 656,813 981,813
2020 340,000 639,763 979,763
2021 360,000 621,387 981,387
2022 -2026 2,105,000 2,773,937 4,878,937
2027 - 2031 2,830,000 2,025,706 4,855,706
2032 -2036 3,855,000 960,537 4,815,537
2037 930,000 30,225 960,225
Totals $ 11,350,000 $ 9,068,131 $ 20.418,131

2014A Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds

In April 2014, the Successor Agency of the former Carson Redevelopment Agency issued
$26,190,000 Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds, Series 2014A, for Redevelopment Project Area
No. 1 to advance refund $1,540,000 of the outstanding 2003 Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds and
$26,850,000 of the outstanding 2003B Tax Allocation Bonds, establish a reserve account for the
bonds, and to pay the cost of issuing the bonds. Principal installments are due annually ranging in
amounts from $245,000 to $2,225,000 plus interest at 3.0% to 5.0% through October 1, 2034. The
interest and principal of the bonds are payable from pledged tax increment revenues of the
Redevelopment Obligation Retirement Fund.
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Long-Term Liabilities - Redevelopment Project Area 1 (Continued):

2014A Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds (Continued)

Of the Series 2014A proceeds, $28,543,351 were used to purchase U.S. Government securities to
refund in full the 2003 Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds and refund a portion of the Series 2003B
Tax Allocation Bonds. Those securities were placed in an irrevocable trust with an escrow agent to
provide for all future debt service payments on the entire balance of the of the 2003 Tax Allocation
Refunding Bonds in the amount of $1,540,000 and $26,850,000 of the 2003B Tax Allocation
Bonds. As a result, the entire 2003 Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds and a portion of 2003B Tax
Allocation Bonds are considered to be defeased and the liability for these bonds has been removed
from the statement of fiduciary net position in the accompanying fiduciary fund financial
statements.

The following schedule summarizes the debt service to maturity requirement for the
Redevelopment Project Area 1 - 2014A Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds as of June 30, 2016:

Year Ending
June 30, Principal Interest Total

2017 $ 225,000 $ 1,218,788 $ 1,443,788
2018 2,830,000 1,157,688 3,987,688
2019 2,950,000 1,027,338 3,977,338
2020 3,095,000 876,213 3,971,213
2021 3,245,000 717,712 3,962,712
2022 -2026 7,005,000 1,786,812 8,791,812
2027 - 2031 2,025,000 976,062 3,001,062
2032 - 2035 4,355,000 557,281 4,912,281
Totals $ 25,730,000 $ 8.317.894 $ 34,047.894
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Long-Term Liabilities - Redevelopment Project Area 2:

2007A Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds

In October 2007, the Carson Redevelopment Agency issued $16,845,000 of Tax Allocation
Refunding Bonds, Series 2007A for Redevelopment Project Area No. 2 to advance refund
$14,925,000 of the outstanding 2003 Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds, establish a reserve account
for the bonds and to pay the cost of issuing the bonds. Principal installments are due annually
ranging in amounts from $105,000 to $1,655,000 plus interest at 0.5% to 5.3% through January 1,
2036.

Of the 2007A series proceeds, $16,361,635 were used to purchase U.S. Government securities to
advance refund in full the 2003D series. Those securities were placed in an irrevocable trust with
an escrow agent to provide for all future debt service payments on the entire outstanding balance of
$14,925,000. As a result, the entire 2003D Tax Allocation Bonds are considered to be defeased and
the liability for this bond has been removed from the statement of fiduciary net position in the
accompanying fiduciary fund financial statements.

The following schedule summarizes the debt service to maturity requirement for the
Redevelopment Project Area 2 - 2007A Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds as of June 30, 2016:

Year Ending
June 30, Principal Interest Total

2017 $ 135,000 $ 736,500 $ 871,500
2018 145,000 731,100 876,100
2019 150,000 725,300 875,300
2020 150,000 719,300 869,300
2021 155,000 713,300 868,300
2022 -2026 1,780,000 3,458,819 5,238,819
2027 - 2031 6,050,000 2,620,263 8,670,263
2032 -2036 7,565,000 1,107,337 8,672,337
Totals $ 16,130,000 $ 10,811,919 $ 26,941,919
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Long-Term Liabilities - Redevelopment Project Area 2 (Continued):

2014A Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds

In April 2014, the Successor Agency of the former Carson Redevelopment Agency issued
$17,040,000 Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds, Series 2014A, for Redevelopment Project Area
No. 2 to advance refund $10,720,000 of the outstanding 2003A Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds,
$2,455,000 of the outstanding 2003B Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds, $7,885,000 of the
outstanding 2003C Tax Allocation Bonds, and to pay the cost of issuing the bonds. To the
$17,040,000 principal amount was added $2,507,463 representing refunded bonds available funds,
$2,085,073 of original issue premium and deducted $68,620 in underwriter discount for a total of
$21,563,916. Principal installments are due annually ranging in amounts from $1,660,000 to
$1,925,000 plus interest at 4.0% to 5.0% through October 1, 2024. The interest and principal of the
bonds are payable from pledged tax increment revenues of the Redevelopment Obligation
Retirement Fund.

Of the Series 2014A proceeds, $21,563,916 were used to purchase U.S. Government securities to
refund in full the 2003A Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds, partially refund the 2003B Tax
Allocation Refunding Bonds and 2003C Tax Allocation Bonds. Those securities were placed in an
irrevocable trust with an escrow agent as follows: $10,875,744 for the Series 2003A Tax
Allocation Refunding Bonds escrow fund; $2,464,287 for the Series 2003B Tax Allocation
Refunding Bonds -escrow fund; $7,918,643 for the Series 2003C Tax Allocation Bonds to provide
for all future debt service payments on the entire balance of the of 2003A Tax Allocation
Refunding Bonds in the amount of $10,720,000, 2003B Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds in the
amount of $2,455,000 and 2003C Tax Allocation Bonds in the amount of $7,885,000. The
remaining proceeds of $305,241 were used for the bond issuance cost.

As a result of the refunding, entire 2003A Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds, 2003B Tax Allocation
Refunding Bonds and 2003C Tax Allocation Bonds are considered to be defeased and the liability
for these bonds has been removed from the statement of fiduciary net position in the accompanying
fiduciary fund financial statements.
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16. SUCCESSOR AGENCY DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED):

Long-Term Liabilities - Redevelopment Project Area 2 (Continued):

2014A Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds (Continued)

The following schedule summarizes the debt service to maturity requirement for the
Redevelopment Project Area 2 - 2014A Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds as of June 30, 2016:

Year Ending
June 30, Principal Interest Total

2017 $ 1,300,000 $ 653,750 $ 1,953,750
2018 1,350,000 600,750 1,950,750
2019 1,405,000 538,625 1,943,625
2020 1,475,000 466,625 1,941,625
2021 1,550,000 391,000 1,941,000
2022 - 2025 7,045,000 729,125 7,774,125
Totals $ 14,125,000 $ 3,379,875 $ 17,504,875

Long-Term Liabilities - Redevelopment Project Area 4:

2006 Tax Allocation Bonds

In December 2006, the Carson Redevelopment Agency issued $28,000,000 of Tax Allocation
Bonds, Series 2006 for Redevelopment Project Area No. 4 to fund redevelopment projects within
the project area. Principal installments are due and begin October 1, 2007 annually ranging from
$385,000 to $1,485,000 plus interest at 3.5% to 4.25% through October 204 1.

The following schedule summarizes the debt service to maturity requirement for the
Redevelopment Project Area 4 - 2006 Tax Allocation Bonds as of June 30, 2016:

Year Ending
June 30, Principal Interest Total

2017 $ 535,000 $ 1,005,960 $ 1,540,960
2018 550,000 986,698 1,536,698
2019 575,000 966,160 1,541,160
2020 590,000 944,460 1,534,460
2021 615,000 921,482 1,536,482
2022 - 2026 3,460,000 4,210,606 7,670,606
2027 - 2031 4,245,000 3,403,750 7,648,750
2032 - 2036 5,260,000 2,370,531 7,630,531
2037 - 2041 6,510,000 1,084,784 7,594,784
2042 1,485,000 33.413 1,518,413
Totals $ 23,825,000 $ 15,927,844 $ 39,752,844

92



CITY OF CARSON

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

June 30, 2016

16. SUCCESSOR AGENCY DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED):
Long-Term Liabilities - Low and Moderate Income Housing:

2010A-T Tax Allocation Housing Bonds

In October 2010, the Carson Redevelopment Agency issued $14,940,000 of Tax Allocation
Housing Bonds, Series 2010A-T to fund low and moderate income housing projects. Principal

installments are due annually beginning on October 1, 2011 with interest rates ranging from
1.725% to 5.8% through October 1, 2021.

The following schedule summarizes the debt service to maturity requirement for the Low and
Moderate Income Housing - 2010A-T Tax Allocation Housing Bonds as of June 30, 2016:

Year Ending
June 30, Principal Interest Total

2017 $ 1,505,000 $ 439,295 $ 1,944,295
2018 1,570,000 362,175 1,932,175
2019 1,655,000 273,488 1,928,488
2020 1,750,000 179,850 1,929,850
2021 1,845,000 80,987 1,925,987
2022 550,000 15,125 565,125

Totals $ 8.875.000 $ 1,350,920 $ 10,225,920
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June 30, 2016

16. SUCCESSOR AGENCY DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED):
Long-Term Liabilities - Low and Moderate Income Housing (Continued):

2010A Tax Allocation Housing Bonds

In October 2010, the Carson Redevelopment Agency issued $25,620,000 of Tax Allocation
Housing Bonds, Series 2010A to fund low and moderate income housing projects. Principal

installments are due annually beginning on October 1, 2011 with interest rates ranging from 4.25%
to 5.35% through October 1, 2036.

The following schedule summarizes the debt service to maturity requirement for the Low and
Moderate Income Housing - 2010A Tax Allocation Housing Bonds as of June 30, 2016:

Year Ending
June 30, Principal Interest Total

2017 $ - $ 1,294,063 $ 1,294,063
2018 - 1,294,063 1,294,063
2019 - 1,294,063 1,294,063
2020 - 1,294,063 1,294,063
2021 - 1,294,063 1,294,063
2022 -2026 9,510,000 5,369,643 14,879,643
2027 - 2031 6,700,000 3,266,875 9,966,875
2032 -2036 7,695,000 1,501,368 9,196,368
2037 1,715,000 45,019 1,760,019
Totals $ 25,620,000 $ 16,653,220 $ 42,273,220
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June 30, 2016

16. SUCCESSOR AGENCY DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED):
Long-Term Liabilities - Successor Agency:

2015B Subordinate Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds

In August 2015, the Successor Agency to the Carson Redevelopment Agency issued $52,920,000
of Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds Series, 2015B to refund certain outstanding indebtedness
previously issued by the Successor Agency. Interest payments are due semi-annually beginning on
February 1, 2016 with interest rates ranging from 2.26% to 5.41% through February 1, 2036.
Principal installments are due annually beginning on February 1, 2020.

The following schedule summarizes the debt service to maturity requirement for the Successor
Agency - 2015B Subordinate Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds as of June 30, 2016:

Year Ending
June 30, Principal Interest Total

2017 $ 2,685,000 $ 2,373,771 $ 5,058,771
2018 3,035,000 2,313,064 5,348,064
2019 3,105,000 2,229,662 5,334,662
2020 3,205,000 2,126,979 5,331,979
2021 3,335,000 2,006,568 5,341,568
2022 -2026 19,235,000 7,796,320 27,031,320
2027 - 2031 9,960,000 3,452,766 13,412,766
2032 -2036 8,360,000 1,408.813 9,768.813
Totals $ 52,920,000 $ 23,707,943 $ 76,627,943

The above outstanding debt issuances are collateralized by pledged tax increment revenue. The
term of the commitment of pledged revenues and the purposes for which the proceeds of these debt
issuances were utilized are disclosed in the debt descriptions provided herein. The amount of the
remaining commitment of the pledge is equal to the amount of the remaining debt service to
maturity of the related debt issuances as disclosed above.

As discussed above, certain bond reserve requirements were satisfied through surety bonds issued
by MBIA Insurance Corporation, currently named National Public Finance Guarantee Corporation
(NPFGC). In May 21, 2014, Moody’s Investors Service upgraded the insurance financial strength
rating of NPFGC from Baal to A3.
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16. SUCCESSOR AGENCY DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED):
Long-Term Liabilities - County Deferred Loans:

The former Carson Redevelopment Agency, the County of Los Angeles, and the Consolidated Fire
Protection District entered into an Agreement of Reimbursement of Tax Increment Funds on
February 15, 1983, upon the authority of Health and Safety Code Section 33401 and the provisions
of Amendment No. 6 to the Carson Redevelopment Plan for the Project Area No. 2 (the Project) as
required by Health and Safety Code Section 33338.1, whereby the County agreed to loan tax
increment up to $200,000 annually not to exceed $8 million dollars for the project.

As of June 30, 2016, the cumulative deferred loan balance payable to the County of Los Angeles
was $2,568,710.

Transfers:

The Successor Agency transferred $50,590,000 bond proceeds to the Reclamation Authority. The
Reclamation Authority will utilize the bond proceeds in a manner consistent with the original bond
covenants. The Successor Agency also owed $6,665,151 of land sale proceeds pursuant to an
existing enforceable obligation to the Reclamation Authority. The land sale proceeds will be used
to continue remediation efforts on a former landfill site.

Commitments Under Development Agreements:

Carson Real Estate Leasing, LL.C

On May 18, 2004, the Agency entered into a Disposition and Development Agreement (DDA) with
the Carson Real Estate Leasing, LLC, a California limited liability company (Developer), for the
development of approximately 92,000 square feet of a new and used car sales facility in the then
Merged and Amended Project Area. The Agency agreed to sell the land to the Developer for a total
purchase price of $8,581,718. The purchase price consists of a $4,666,848 cash payment and a
promissory note of $3,914,870 - the Agency’s subsidy to the project. The term shall be for 20 years
with an option to extend for an additional five years. Each year, an amount equal to 50% of the
sales tax generated from the site in excess of the average sales tax amount generated in year
2002-2003 shall be credited towards the payment of the principal amount and any interest accrued.
As of June 30, 2016, the balance of the loan from this developer is $3,625,951.

BP West Coast Products, LLC/Tesoro Corporation

On November 15, 2005, the Agency entered into an agreement with BP West Coast Products, LLC,
a Delaware limited liability company (Developer), for development of a new office/business park
campus of up to 280,000 square feet in potentially three different phases. The first phase consisted
of an office building of approximately 125,000 square feet.
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16. SUCCESSOR AGENCY DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED):
Commitments Under Development Agreements (Continued):

BP West Coast Products, LLC/Tesoro Corporation (Continued)

The Agency agreed to sell the 4.5 acre development parcel, located at 2254 E. 223" Street, to the
Developer for the sum of one dollar ($1.00) and a note amount equal to $2,960,000 (Note). Each
year, seventy-five percent (75%) of the site tax increment is credited against any amounts
outstanding under the Note. The term is for 15 years and simple interest accrues at two percent
(2%) per annum. On June 1, 2013, the Developer sold the property and transferred all rights and
responsibilities under the Note to Tesoro Corporation. As of June 30, 2016, the balance on the
Note is $1,832,532.

501 Albertoni, LLC - University Village

On May 16, 2006, the Agency entered into a Disposition and Development Agreement (DDA) with
501 Albertoni, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (Developer), for development of retail
space as follows: new commercial retail center of approximately 40,000 square feet, a 6,500 square
feet freestanding El Pescador restaurant, and an additional 33,500 square feet of commercial space.
The Agency agreed to sell the land to the Developer in the amount of $3,049,200. Upon the close
of escrow, the Developer made a cash payment of $750,000 to the Agency. A promissory note and
deed of trust was issued for the remaining $2,299,200. After the completion of the project,
$799,000 was forgiven. Repayment of the remaining $1,500,000 is tied to the operation of the El
Pescador restaurant - each year the restaurant is in operation, the amount of the note will be
reduced by 20%. On September 20, 2014, the loan was fully amortized. On January 31, 2008, the
Agency sold the property to 501 Albertoni, LLC. A dispute arose over the meaning of Attachment
No. 9 to the DDA entitled “Purchase Price Adjustment” and whether Developer was required to
pay the Agency an additional purchase price of $586,654. On April 6, 2010, both parties entered
into a settlement agreement whereby the Developer agreed to pay $400,000 in full consideration.

Payment of the settlement was agreed as follows: $50,000 to be paid in the form of a certified
check and $350,000 in the form of an unsecured promissory note at an interest rate of 3% per year.
Specifically, the Developer is required to make an interest payment of $2,625 per quarter for
10 years commencing on June 30, 2010, with the $350,000 balance due at the earlier of
March 20, 2020, or the date of the sale of the property. The property was sold by Primestor on
July 18, 2014, and the Agency received the $350,000 balance at closing.
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16. SUCCESSOR AGENCY DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED):

Commitments Under Development Agreements (Continued):

Carson Marketplace, LL.C

On July 25, 2006, the Agency entered into an Owner Participation Agreement (OPA) with Carson
Marketplace LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (Developer), to effectuate the
redevelopment plan for Redevelopment Project Area No. 1 by providing for public improvements
and the remediation of the 157-acre portion of the total 168-acre property. Under the OPA, the
Agency is committed to providing $110 million in public financial assistance. In addition, the
Agency committed to finance the improvements to the 1-405/Avalon Boulevard on-off ramp
system. Developer is obligated to contribute $25 million toward this project. Total financial
assistance granted to the Developer as of June 30, 2015, amounted to $69.6 million. This project
was cancelled and a settlement agreement between the Agency and the Developer was drafted and
approved by the State Department of Finance on April 27, 2015.

On May 18, 2015, the Carson Reclamation Authority (Authority) took title to the Site, becoming
the successor in interest to the Developer. The Successor Agency issued bonds in the amount of
$50.5 million, and the Series 2015B bonds closed on August 20, 2015, and the funds were
transferred to the Authority. In 2015, the Site was proposed as the location for an NFL stadium;
however, on January 12, 2016, that the NFL instead approved a location in the nearby City of
Inglewood for the relocation of up to two NFL teams to the Los Angeles area. The two NFL teams
proposed for the Site have since terminated their option, which would have expired on
April 30, 2016.

Alternatively, the Site remains approved for the mixed-use development, and the City and
Authority negotiated an Exclusive Negotiating Agreement with The Macerich Company for a
560,000 square foot fashion outlet mall. The mall is anticipated to open in late 2020.

The Gateway at City Center - 720 E. Carson St. & the Renaissance at City Center -
21800 S. Avalon

On March 18, 2008, the Agency entered into three separate agreements with Thomas Safran
(Developer), for a mixed-use development with two major components: an affordable senior
housing component and a commercial component. This large scale development is located on a
4.5 acre site at the southeast corner of Carson Street and Avalon Boulevard.

On April 7, 2009, the Agency entered into an Owner Participation Agreement (OPA) with the
Developer to develop a mixed-use project that includes 85 units of affordable senior rental housing
plus one market-rate manager’s unit, approximately 10,000 square foot of commercial space, and
underground and surface-level parking (Phase I). On May 3, 2010, the Agency provided
$13,900,000 in financial assistance in the form of an interest-free loan for the senior housing
component. Phase I was completed in April 2011.
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16. SUCCESSOR AGENCY DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED):

Commitments Under Development Agreements (Continued):

The Gateway at City Center - 720 E. Carson St. & the Renaissance at City Center -
21800 S. Avalon

On June 1, 2010, the Agency entered into a Disposition and Development Agreement (DDA) with
Thomas Safran & Associates, Inc. and Carson City Center South LLC (Developer) for Phase I, a
mixed-used project consisting of 150 new market-rate rental housing units, and approximately
25,000 square feet of commercial space, including subterranean and surface parking. The Agency
sold three parcels to the developer immediately adjacent to the site for $2,340,000 (fair market
value). The Agency-owned properties together with the Developer’s properties constitute the full
development site.

On July 29, 2010, the Agency provided $7,500,000 in financial assistance in the form of a grant to
assist with the commercial component of the project.

WIN Chevrolet, Properties, LLC - 2201 E. 223rd St.

On April 21, 2009, the Agency approved the purchase of the C-P Land Company (Developer)
property at 2201 E. 223rd Street (Property). The Agency then leased Property to the Cormier
Chevrolet Company (Dealership) at the same address. In November 2011, after entering into a
partnership with the Win Company (Win), with Win as majority interest partner, the Dealership
exercised its repurchase rights of the Property under the DDA. The Agency sold the Property to the
partnership, which renamed the new dealership Win Chevrolet. The Property was sold for
$12,000,000; there was a $5,000,000 cash payment and a performance promissory note (Note) of
$7,000,000 which was carried back by the Agency. The Note amount will be reduced at a rate of
1/20 of the original principal balance each year that the dealership operates in compliance with the
20-year operating covenant. If the new dealership ceases to operate, the balance of the Note will
become due and payable to the Agency. As of June 30, 2016, WIN Chevrolet has a loan balance of
$5,600,000.

Hilland - Nissan Real Estate - 1505 E. 223rd St.

On July 6, 2010, the Agency and Hilland Nissan (Owner) entered into a Disposition and
Development Agreement (DDA) pursuant to which the Agency provided the Owner with
$3,000,000 of financial assistance to facilitate the Owner’s long-term operation of a new Nissan
dealership at the property located at 1505 E. 223rd St. (Site). Pursuant to the terms of the DDA, the
Agency provided the Owner with a $3 million loan backed by a performance promissory note
(Note), secured by a deed of trust on the Site. Principal due on the 15-year Note is reduced
annually by an amount equal to 50% of the sales tax generated above a threshold gross sales
amount defined in the Note. As of June 30, 2016, the loan balance is $2,022,790.

99



CITY OF CARSON

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

June 30, 2016

17. RESTATEMENTS:

Restatements of the Government-Wide and the Successor Agency Private-purpose Trust Fund’s net
position as of July 1, 2015, are as follows:

Successor
Government-Wide Agency
Governmental Business-type Private-purpose
Activities Activity Total Trust Fund

Net position at July 1, 2015, as
originally reported $327,232,242 $

$327,232,242 $ (70,120,674)

To transfer assets with governmental
purposes from the Successor
Agency to the City 62,881,206

62,881,206 (62,881,206)

To record a receivable/payable for
reimbursement of prior year City
expenditures incurred by Successor
Agency (1,714,390)

(1,714,390) 1,714,390

To correct capital asset balances
related to buildings, improvements
and construction-in-progress 2,847,738

2,847,738 -

To include the Reclamation
Authority as a blended component
unit of City since it had not been
included previously - 251,000 251,000 -

To record estimated acquisition value
of land and inventory contributed
in the prior year. - 41,977,407 41,977,407 -

To create allowances for
uncollectible loans receivable due
to their long-term nature and

repayment terms (13.054.870) (13.054.870) (2,016,821)

Net position at July 1, 2015, as
restated $378.191,926 $42,228.,407 $420,420,333 $(133.304,311)
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June 30, 2016

17. RESTATEMENTS (CONTINUED):

Restatements of the Governmental Funds (the Carson Housing Authority and the Cooperation
Agreement Bond Proceeds Special Revenue Funds) fund balances as of July 1, 2015, are as

follows:

Fund balances at July 1, 2015,
as originally reported

To eliminate unavailable revenue
related to long-term loans receivable

To record a receivable/payable for
reimbursement of prior year City
expenditures incurred by Successor
Agency

Fund balances at July 1, 2015, as restated

Carson Cooperation
Housing Agreement
Authority Bond Proceeds
Special Special
Revenue Revenue
Fund Fund
$ 30,712,050 $ 40,092,461
7,006,092 -
- (1,714.390)
$ 37,718,142 § 38,378,071

Restatements of the Proprietary Fund’s net position as of July 1, 2015, are as follows:

Net position at July 1, 2015,
as originally reported

To include the Reclamation Authority
as a blended component unit of City

To record estimated fair value of land
and inventory contributed in the prior

year.

Net position at July 1, 2015, as restated
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June 30, 2016

18. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS:
Reclamation Authority Settlement Agreement:

On November 1, 2016, the City and Reclamation Authority entered into a settlement agreement
with the developer of the proposed stadium project that elected not to proceed with the
development. As part of the settlement, the City and Reclamation Authority retained the property,
the City received $1,823,952 from the final accounting of the existing reimbursement agreement
and California Department of Finance settlement, and the Reclamation Authority received
$5,179,504 for the carrying costs of the property.

Issuance of Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds, Series 2016A:

On December 22, 2016, the Successor Agency to the former Carson Redevelopment Agency issued
$21,350,000 of Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds, Series 2016A. The proceeds were used to
advance refund and defease all of the outstanding Carson Redevelopment Agency Redevelopment
Project Area No. 1 Tax Allocation Bonds, Series 2009A. The advance refunding resulted in a
reduction of total debt service requirements by $1,575,720 and an economic gain (difference
between the present value of the debt service payments on the old and new debt) of $2,301,527.

Other Events:
Other events occurring after June 30, 2016, have been evaluated for possible adjustments to the

financial statements or disclosure as of February 28, 2017, which is the date these financial
statements were available to be issued.
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CITY OF CARSON

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE NET PENSION LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS
CALIFORNIA PUBLIC EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM - MISCELLANEOUS PLAN

Last Ten Fiscal Years*

Fiscal year ended
Measurement period

Total Pension Liability:
Service cost
Interest on total pension liability
Changes of benefit terms
Changes of assumptions
Differences between expected and actual experience

Benefit payments, including refunds of employee contributions

Net Change in Total Pension Liability
Total Pension Liability - Beginning of Year

Total Pension Liability - End of Year (a)

Plan Fiduciary Net Position:
Contributions - employer
Contributions - employee
Net investment income

Benefit payments, including refunds of employer contributions

Plan to plan resource movement
Administrative expense

Net Change in Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Beginning of Year
Plan Fiduciary Net Position - End of Year (b)

Net Pension Liability - Ending (a)-(b)

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension liability

Covered - employee payroll
Net pension liability as percentage of covered- employee payroll

Notes to Schedule:
Benefit Changes:

June 30, 2016

June 30, 2015

June 30, 2015

June 30, 2014

$ 4326829 $ 4,634,164
17,550,999 16,199,814
(4,237,527) -

6,597,837 -
(9,777,863) (9,448,777)
14,460,275 11,385,201

229,790,020 218,404,819

$ 244,250,295

$ 229,790,020

$ 5746641 $ 6,276,475
2,169,417 2,460,111
3,717,143 25,449,700

(9,777,863) (9,448,777)
(228,538) -
(191,232) -

1,435,568 24,737,509
168,373,004 143,635,495

$ 169,808,572

$ 168,373,004

$ 74,441,723 $ 61,417,016
69.52% 73.27%

$ 23,784,241 $ 23,683,572
312.99% 259.32%

The figures above do not include any liability impact that may have resulted from plan changes which occurred after June
30, 2014. This applies for voluntary benefit changes as well as any offers of Two Years Additional Service Credit (a.k.a.

Golden Handshakes).

Changes of Assumptions:

The discount rate was changed from 7.5% (net of administrative expense) to 7.65%.

* - Fiscal year 2015 was the 1st year of implementation, therefore only two years are shown.
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CITY OF CARSON

SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS

CALIFORNIA PUBLIC EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM - MISCELLANEOUS PLAN

Last Ten Fiscal Years*

Fiscal year ended

June 30, 2016

June 30, 2015

Actuarially determined contribution $ 6,258,247 $ 5,746,641
Contributions in relation to the actuarially determined contributions (6,258,247) (5,746,641)
Contribution deficiency (excess) $ - $ -
Covered - employee payroll $ 23,931,419 $ 23,784,241
Contributions as a percentage of covered - employee payroll 26.15% 24.16%
Notes to Schedule:
Valuation Date June 30,2013 June 30,2012
Methods and Assumptions Used to Determine Contribution Rates:
Actuarial Cost Method Entry age normal**
Amortization method Level percentage of payroll, closed**
Asset valuation method Market value***
Inflation 2.75%**
Salary increases Depending on age, service and type of employment**
Payroll growth 3%**
Investment rate of return 7.50%, net of pension plan investment expense, including inflation**
Retirement age 50 years (2.7% @55), 52 years (2.0%@62)**
Mortality Mortality assumptions are based on mortality rates resulting from the most recent

CalPERS Experience Study adopted by the CalPERS Board, first used in the June 30,
2009 valuation. For purposes of the post-retirement mortality rates, those revised rates
include 5 years of projected ongoing mortality improvement using Scale AA published by
the Society of Actuaries until June 30, 2010. There is no margin for future mortality

improvement beyond the valuation date.**

* - Fiscal year 2015 was the 1st year of implementation, therefore only two years are shown.
** _ The valuation for June 30, 2012 (applicable to fiscal year ended June 30, 2015) included the same actuarial

assumptions.

*** - The valuation for June 30, 2012 (applicable to fiscal year ended June 30, 2015) valued assets using a 15 Year

Smoothed Market method.
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CITY OF CARSON

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS
OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS PLAN

For the year ended June 30, 2016

Actuarial
Actuarial Accrued
Value Liability Unfunded UAAL asa

Actuarial of Assets (AAL) AAL Funded Covered % of
Valuation (AVA) Entry Age (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll

Date (@) (b) (b)- (@) (a)/(b) (©) [(0)-(a)]/c]
07/01/2011 - $ 48,138,659 $ 48,138,659 0.00% $ 25,455,297 189.11%
07/01/2013 7,287,038 48,365,461 41,078,423 15.07% 23,621,000 173.91%
07/01/2015 16,112,035 55,196,794 39,084,759 29.19% 29,602,000 132.03%
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CITY OF CARSON

MAJOR GOVERMENTAL FUNDS

GENERAL FUND

The General Fund accounts for all financial resources that are not restricted as to their use or required
to be accounted for in another fund. These resources include sales and use tax, property taxes, utility
users tax, franchise taxes, business license fees, building permits, interest on investments, fines and
forfeitures, charges for services, and other miscellaneous revenues.

General Fund resources are used to finance the general governmental operations of the City of Carson.
The city departments that are listed below are supported by the General Fund. The list likewise shows

the services that each department provides.

City Council
Local legislative policy

City Attorney

Legal advisor to City Council and departments
Preparations of resolutions and ordinances
Contract review

Litigation

City Clerk

Records management
Preparation of minutes
Codification of municipal code
Elections

City Treasurer
Investments

Cash management
Cashiering

Community Development
Employment development

Business development

Successor Agency

Housing Authority

Housing and neighborhood development
Planning

Building and safety

Administrative Services
Revenue collection
Business license

Budget preparation
Financial reporting
Grants accounting
Accounts payable
Payroll

Purchasing
Reproduction and mail services
Warehouse operations
Information technology

Community Services

Parks and recreation

Special events

Sherriff's contract

Code enforcement and compliance
Security services

Youth services

Safety and emergency services
Pedestrian safety

Senior services

Fine Arts

Transportation

Community center

City Manager

Implementation of City Council policies

Intergovernmental relations
Public information

Preparation of agendas

Human resources
Recruitment/training

Worker's compensation

Risk assessment and management
Benefits administration

Public Works

General engineering

Contract administration
Construction engineering

Public Works

Street and parkway maintenance
Vehicle and equipment maintenance
Median and tree maintenance

Waste management

Environmental

Building and landscape maintenance

Non-Departmental
Retiree health insurance
Program support

CARSON HOUSING AUTHORITY SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

The Carson Housing Authority Special Revenue Fund accounts for assets used for low and moderate income
housing activities in accordance with the applicable housing-related regulations. The housing assets of the
dissolved redevelopment agency’s Low and Moderate Income Housing Fund were transferred to Carson Housing
Authority.

COOPERATION AGREEMENT BOND PROCEEDS SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

The Cooperation Agreement Bond Proceeds Special Revenue Fund accounts for unspent bond proceeds
transferred to the City from the Successor Agency to the Dissolved Carson Redevelopment Agency (Successor
Agency) in accordance with the Cooperation Agreement entered into by and between the City of Carson and the
Successor Agency. Under this fund, the City will report the expenditures of the bond proceeds pursuant to the
original bond covenants.
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CITY OF CARSON

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
GENERAL FUND

For the year ended June 30, 2016

REVENUES:
Taxes:
Sales and use tax
Franchise tax
Property tax allocation from state
Transient occupancy tax
Utility users tax
Real property transfer tax
Admissions tax
Total Taxes

Licenses and Permits:
Business licenses
Building permits
Other licenses and permits
Total Licenses and Permits

Fines and Forfeitures:
Traffic and parking fines
Other fines, forefitures aand penalties
Total Fines and Forfeitures

Intergovernmental:
Motor vehicle licenses
Other intergovernmental
Total Intergovernmental

Charges for Services:
Planning and public works
Recreation
Other service charges
Total Charges for Services

Investment Income:
Intetest on investments
Rents and commissions
Community Center revenue
Total Investment Income

Miscellaneous

TOTAL REVENUES

See note to required supplementary information.

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive

Original Final Actual (Negative)
$ 18,919,942 $ 21,019,942 $ 24,504,724 $ 3,484,782
8,740,177 9,540,177 8,587,698 (952,479)
18,857,688 18,804,743 15,674,990 (3,129,753)
1,711,664 1,981,664 2,138,378 156,714
8,650,000 7,670,000 6,754,075 (915,925)
308,677 368,677 312,553 (56,124)
400,132 250,132 256,343 6,211
57,588,280 59,635,335 58,228,761 (1,406,574)
2,600,000 2,600,000 2,791,432 191,432
2,958,000 2,958,000 3,835,990 877,990
775,503 775,503 484,567 (290,936)
6,333,503 6,333,503 7,111,989 778,486
1,480,000 1,360,000 1,174,627 (185,373)
372,208 372,208 414,051 41,843
1,852,208 1,732,208 1,588,678 (143,530)
41,102 41,102 37,584 (3,518)
302,591 302,591 304,877 2,286
343,693 343,693 342,461 (1,232)
399,620 399,620 393,429 (6,191)
1,521,938 1,521,938 1,581,332 59,394
320,450 320,450 471,075 150,625
2,242,008 2,242,008 2,445,836 203,828
292,242 292,242 178,156 (114,086)
730,712 764,312 757,992 (6,320)
835,584 835,584 846,190 10,606
1,858,538 1,892,138 1,782,338 (109,800)
1,315,441 2,572,391 2,676,687 104,296
71,533,671 74,751,276 74,176,750 (574,526)
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CITY OF CARSON

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE (CONTINUED)
GENERAL FUND

For the year ended June 30, 2016

EXPENDITURES:
Current:

General Government:
City Council
City Attorney
Human Resources
Non-Departmental
City Clerk
City Treasurer
City Manager
Administrative services

Total General Government
Community Development
Public Works
Community Services

Capital Improvement Programs
TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers in
Transfers out

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES)

NET CHANGE IN
FUND BALANCE

FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING OF YEAR

FUND BALANCE - END OF YEAR

See note to required supplementary information.

Variance with

Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Positive

Original Final Actual (Negative)
$ 1,155,434 $ 1,155,434 $ 970,625 $ 184,809
2,350,000 4,570,550 12,586,274 (8,015,724)
2,192,837 2,276,439 1,985,284 291,155
4,714,559 4,965,559 4,797,054 168,505
903,856 1,073,971 955,048 118,923
758,988 765,062 714,908 50,154
3,920,395 4,019,728 4,020,640 (912)
4,273,071 4,297,434 3,926,831 370,603
20,269,140 23,124,177 29,956,664 (6,832,487)
4,642,006 4,631,819 4,662,800 (30,981)
15,071,781 15,568,973 15,547,603 21,370
32,732,364 33,124,097 32,230,590 893,507
- 264,298 529,861 (265,563)
72,715,291 76,713,364 82,927,518 (6,214,154)
(1,181,620) (1,962,088) (8,750,768) (6,788,680)
19,884 19,884 19,884 -
(90,000) (90,000) (125,873) (35,873)
(70,116) (70,116) (105,989) (35,873)
(1,251,736) (2,032,204) (8,856,757) (6,824,553)
27,567,192 27,567,192 27,567,192 -
$ 26,315,456 $ 25,534,988 $ 18,710,435 $ (6,824,553)
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CITY OF CARSON
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
CARSON HOUSING AUTHORITY SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

For the year ended June 30, 2016

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
REVENUES:
Intergovernmental $ 233,844 $ 233,844 $ 210,475 $ (23,369)
Investment income 240,000 240,000 193,395 (46,605)
Miscellaneous 1,010,302 1,010,302 404,622 (605,680)
TOTAL REVENUES 1,484,146 1,484,146 808,492 (675,654)
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Community development 7,949,090 7,949,090 5,410,703 2,538,387
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 7,949,090 7,949,090 5,410,703 2,538,387
NET CHANGE IN
FUND BALANCE (6,464,944) (6,464,944) (4,602,211) 1,862,733
FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING OF YEAR,
AS RESTATED 37,718,142 37,718,142 37,718,142 -
FUND BALANCE - END OF YEAR $ 31,253,198 $ 31,253,198 $ 33,115,931 $ 1,862,733

See note to required supplementary information.
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CITY OF CARSON
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
COOPERATION AGREEMENT BOND PROCEEDS SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

For the year ended June 30, 2016

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
REVENUES:
Intergovernmental $ - $ - $ 62,711 $ 62,711
Investment income 385,000 385,000 261,384 (123,616)
TOTAL REVENUES 385,000 385,000 324,095 (60,905)
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Community development 24,938,336 14,037,303 13,831,219 206,084
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 24,938,336 14,037,303 13,831,219 206,084
NET CHANGE IN
FUND BALANCE (24,553,336) (13,652,303) (13,507,124) 145,179
FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING OF YEAR,
AS RESTATED 38,378,071 38,378,071 38,378,071 -
FUND BALANCE - END OF YEAR $ 13,824,735 $ 24,725,768 $ 24,870,947 $ 145,179

See note to required supplementary information.
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1.

CITY OF CARSON
NOTE TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

June 30, 2016

BUDGETARY CONTROL AND ACCOUNTING:

The following procedures are utilized by the City in formulating its annual budget:

Early in the calendar year, the Directors prepare estimates of required appropriations for the
following fiscal year. These estimates are compiled into a proposed operating budget.

The City Manager submits the proposed budget to the City Council for the subsequent
fiscal year. The operating budget includes both the sources and types of funds for the
proposed expenditures. The City Council and staff meet in budget workshops in order to
relate requests with available resources.

Public hearings are conducted to obtain taxpayer comments on the proposed budget being
adopted. Pursuant to provisions of the Carson Municipal Code, the General Fund budget
must be adopted no later than July 20 of the new fiscal year. The budget is legally enacted
through passage of a resolution.

The City Manager is authorized to transfer budgeted amounts between departments within
any fund; however, any revision that alters the total expenditures of any fund must be
approved by the City Council. The budget is generally amended during the fiscal year to
reflect adjustments, as authorized by the City Council. Expenditures may not legally exceed
appropriations at the fund level.

Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during the year.
Commitments for materials and services, such as purchase orders and contracts are
recorded during the year as encumbrances in order to reserve that portion of the applicable
appropriation. Encumbrances outstanding at year-end are treated as a reservation of fund
balance since they do not constitute expenditures or liabilities.

It is the practice of the City to give Finance staff some discretion with respect to budget
amounts for year-end purposes.

Budgeted amounts are reported on the same basis of accounting as the fund types they relate to
(modified-accrual) and adopted on a basis consistent with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America. All unexpended appropriations expire at year-end and if warranted
are reappropriated in the next budget cycle. Annual budgets are prepared for all governmental fund
types expected to have activity during the fiscal year. No budgets were adopted fro the Asset
Forfeiture Special Revenue Fund and the City Special Events Special Revenue Fund.
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SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Special Revenue funds are used to account for specific revenues that are legally restricted to
expenditure for a particular purpose. All the Special Revenue funds of the City are nonmajor
governmental funds.

The Asset Forfeiture Fund accounts for funds accumulated through seizure and forfeiture of
properties, which are then used to supplement funds for public safety services.

The State Gas Tax Fund accounts for revenues apportioned under the Streets and Highway Code of
the State of California. These funds can be expended for any street-related purpose.

The TDA Article 3 Fund accounts for Transportation Development Act grant monies received for
building or improving bicycle paths and handicapped accesses.

The Proposition A Local Return Fund is used to account for the City's share of an additional
one-half cent sales tax, which was approved by the electorate in November 1980. These funds must be
used for local transportation programs.

The Proposition C Local Return Fund is used to account for the City's share of an additional
one-half cent sales tax, which was approved by the electorate in November 1990. These funds must be
used for local transportation programs.

The Air Quality Improvement Fund accounts for revenues and expenditures for clean air measures
authorized by AB2766, which increased motor vehicle registration fees.

The Self-Supporting Fund accounts for the self-sustaining programs of the City.

The Capital Asset Replacement Fund is used to account for and finance the on-going replacement of
the City's stock of vehicles, heavy equipment, specialized equipment, and office furniture and
equipment. It is also used to renovate and construct City building and park facilities.

The Measure R Fund is used to account for the City's share of an additional half-cent sales tax that
became effective on July 1, 2009. The fund is used for transportation and highway projects.

The Restricted Administrative Tow Fee Fund represents the $56 out of the $175 collected for
administering the City's towing program, which is being exclusively used to address the public safety
and code enforcement issues in the City.

The Youth Services Program Fund accounts for funds related to the implementation of the following

youth services program: (a) Parent Project (b) Positive Choices (c) Anger Management (d) Youth and
the Law and (¢) Community Services.

113



(This page intentionally left blank.)

114



CITY OF CARSON

NONMAJOR GOVERMENTAL FUNDS
(CONTINUED)

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
(CONTINUED)

The City Special Events Fund accounts for restricted donations received from the Community for
various annual City events, as well as contributions from the General Fund.

The MTA Call for Projects Fund accounts for the Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation
Authority (MT A) Call-for-Project programs. The fund is used to improve all modes of surface
transportation.

The Parks and Recreation Funds represent two funds used to account for capital improvements at
City parks and recreation facilities. Included in this category is the Park Development Fund, which
accounts for monies used to implement capital improvements to various parks and the Los Angeles
County Park District Grant Fund.

The State Grant Funds represent five funds used for specific community programs. The Beverage
Container Recycling Fund is used for the effective disposal of recyclable containers while preserving
the environment. The State COPS Grant Fund is used to provide a Community Oriented Policing
program. The Used Oil State Grant Fund is used to increase public awareness of the benefits of
recycling oil. The Proposition 1 B passed in 2006, is also dedicated to the reduction of traffic
congestion and increase in traffic safety. The State CIP Grants Fund accounts for all grants received
from the State to fund the non-recurring CIP projects of the city.

The Federal Grant Funds account for seven types of federal grant monies. The Department of
Justice/OJP Grant Fund accounts for monies required to be expended for public safety services that
include anti-gang and community crime prevention activities. The Family Support Grant Fund
provides funds for a Youth Enrichment Scholarship Program available to children ages 17 and under,
who are local area residents and are in financial need. The HOME and Community Development
Block Grant Funds account for funds used for a variety of projects, and programs primarily benefiting
low-income residents. These funds were originally authorized under the Housing and Community
Development Act of 1974 and their expenditure is approved by the Department of Housing and Urban
Development (HUD). The Federal Highway Planning Grant Fund accounts for federal monies passed
through the State of California Department of Transportation to local cities for the construction and
repair of inter-connected Interstate highways and other public roads important to interstate commerce
and travel. The Workforce Investment Act (WIA) Grant Fund provides assistance for youth
employment, training efforts, and dislocated worker support services. The Neighborhood Stabilization
Program Grant Fund accounts for monies received for the purpose of stabilizing communities that have
suffered from foreclosures and abandonment. This grant was authorized under the American Recovery
and Reinvestment Act (ARRA).
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CITY OF CARSON

ALL NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

June 30, 2016

State Proposition A
Asset Gas TDA Local
Forfeiture Tax Article 3 Return
Fund Fund Fund Fund
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 7% $ 423,449 $ - 8 578,537
Receivables:
Accounts - - - -
Loans, net of allowance - - - -
Due from other funds - - - -
Due from Successor Agency - - - -
Due from government agencies - - 58,898 3,946
TOTAL ASSETS $ 7% 3% 423,449 % 58,898 % 582,483
LIABILITIES, DEFERRED
INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
AND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ - 3 173506 $ 3834 % 438,533
Accrued payroll - 2,045 - -
Due to other funds - - 58,898 -
Due to government agencies - - - -
Retentions payable - - - 5,054
Unearned revenue - - - -
TOTAL LIABILITIES - 175,551 62,732 443,587
DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES:
Unavailable revenues - - - -
FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT):
Restricted 76 247,898 - 138,896
Unassigned - (3,834) -
TOTAL FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT) 76 247,898 (3,834) 138,896
TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED
INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
AND FUND BALANCES $ 76 3% 423,449 % 58,898 % 582,483
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Proposition C Air Capital Restricted
Local Quality Asset Administrative
Return Improvement Self-Supporting Replacement Measure R Tow Fee
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund

$ 963,256 $ 236,459 $ 105,332 $ 543,053 $ 1,277,047 $ 84,806
92 - - - - -

- - - - 31 -

- 30,880 - - - 3,640

$ 963,348 $ 267,339 $ 105,332 $ 543,053 $ 1,277,078 $ 88,446
$ 328,870 $ - $ 25,785 $ 39,000 $ 2,134 $ 3,757
1,248 - 79,547 - - -

330,118 - 105,332 39,000 2,134 3,757
633,230 267,339 - 504,053 1,274,944 84,689
633,230 267,339 - 504,053 1,274,944 84,689

$ 963,348 $ 267,339 $ 105,332 $ 543,053 $ 1,277,078 $ 88,446
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CITY OF CARSON

ALL NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET (CONTINUED)

June 30, 2016

Youth Combined
Services City MTA Call Parks and
Program Special Events for Projects Recreation
Fund Fund Fund Funds
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 51,232 $ 53770  $ 815,190 $ 1,441,500
Receivables:
Accounts - - - -
Loans, net of allowance - - - -
Due from other funds - - - -
Due from Successor Agency - - - 12,497
Due from government agencies - - 224,734 264,494
TOTAL ASSETS $ 51,232 % 53,770 $ 1,039,924 $ 1,718,491
LIABILITIES, DEFERRED
INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
AND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ - 3 - 9 144599 $ 130,852
Accrued payroll - - - -
Due to other funds - - 62,711 127,405
Due to government agencies - - - -
Retentions payable - - - 5,941
Unearned revenue - - 31,376 -
TOTAL LIABILITIES - - 238,686 264,198
DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES:
Unavailable revenues - - - 264,494
FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT):
Restricted 51,232 53,770 801,238 1,321,145
Unassigned - - - (131,346)
TOTAL FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT) 51,232 53,770 801,238 1,189,799
TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED
INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
AND FUND BALANCES $ 51,232 % 53,770 $ 1,039,924 $ 1,718,491
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Combined Combined Total

State Federal Nonmajor
Grant Grant Governmental
Funds Funds Funds

$ 115,654 $ 879,802 $ 7,569,163

49 125,754 125,895

- 361,326 361,326

- - 31

- - 12,497
8,639 187,342 782,573

$ 124,342 $ 1,554,224 $ 8,851,485

$ 52,977  $ 437,408 $ 1,781,255
- 20,881 103,721

6,480 245,388 500,882

- 361,326 361,326

- 116 11,111

- - 31,376
59,457 1,065,119 2,789,671
5,068 - 269,562
97,168 927,678 6,403,356
(37,351) (438,573) (611,104)
59,817 489,105 5,792,252

$ 124,342 $ 1,554,224 $ 8,851,485
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CITY OF CARSON

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET - PARKS AND RECREATION FUNDS

June 30, 2016

Los Angeles Total
Park County Park Parks and
Development District Recreation
Fund Fund Funds
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 1,441,500 $ - $ 1,441,500
Due from Successor Agency - 12,497 12,497
Due from government agencies - 264,494 264,494
TOTAL ASSETS $ 1,441,500 $ 276,991 $ 1,718,491
LIABILITIES, DEFERRED
INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
AND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 114,414 $ 16,438 $ 130,852
Due to other funds - 127,405 127,405
Retentions payable 5,941 - 5,941
TOTAL LIABILITIES 120,355 143,843 264,198
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Unavailable revenues - 264,494 264,494
FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT):
Restricted 1,321,145 - 1,321,145
Unassigned - (131,346) (131,346)
TOTAL FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT) 1,321,145 (131,346) 1,189,799
TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED
INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
AND FUND BALANCES $ 1,441,500 $ 276,991 $ 1,718,491
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CITY OF CARSON

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET - STATE GRANT FUNDS

June 30, 2016

ASSETS
Cash and investments
Receivables:
Accounts

Due from government agencies

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED
INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
AND FUND BALANCES

LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Due to other funds
TOTAL LIABILITIES

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Unavailable revenues

FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS):
Restricted
Unassigned
TOTAL FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS)

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED
INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
AND FUND BALANCES

State
COPS
Grant

Fund

75,444

49
715

76,208

19,250

19,250

56,958

56,958

76,208




Used Oil State Total

State Proposition CIP State
Grant 1B Grants Grant
Fund Fund Fund Funds
$ 12,621 $ - $ - $ 115,654
- - - 49
- 2,856 5,068 8,639
$ 12,621 $ 2,856 $ 5,068 $ 124,342
$ - $ 31,189 $ 2,538 $ 52,977
- 3,978 2,502 6,480
- 35,167 5,040 59,457
- - 5,068 5,068
12,621 - - 97,168
- (32,311) (5,040) (37,351)
12,621 (32,311) (5,040) 59,817
$ 12,621 $ 2,856 $ 5,068 $ 124,342
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NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

CITY OF CARSON

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET - FEDERAL GRANT FUNDS

ASSETS
Cash and investments
Receivables:
Accounts

Loans, net of allowance
Due from government agencies

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED
INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
AND FUND BALANCES

LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Accrued payroll
Due to other funds
Due to government agencies
Retentions payable
TOTAL LIABILITIES

FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT):
Restricted
Unassigned
TOTAL FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT)

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED
INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
AND FUND BALANCES

June 30, 2016
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Department of Family
Justice/OJP Support
Grant Grant
Fund Fund
$ - -
- 37,076
$ - 37,076
$ - -
- 1,533
- 15,455
- 16,988
- 20,088
- 20,088
$ - 37,076




Community Federal Workforce Neighborhood Total
HOME Development Highway Investment Act Stabilization Federal
Grant Block Grant Planning (WIA) Grant Grant Grant
Fund Fund Grant Fund Fund Fund Funds
- $ 619,891 $ - $ - $ 259,911 $ 879,802
- 125,754 - - - 125,754
196,326 - - - 165,000 361,326
- - 101,970 48,296 - 187,342
196,326 $ 745,645 $ 101,970 $ 48,296 $ 424911 $ 1,554,224
- $ 91,399 $ 345,342 $ 667 $ - $ 437,408
- 6,667 - 12,681 - 20,881
- - 195,085 34,848 - 245,388
196,326 - - - 165,000 361,326
- - 116 - - 116
196,326 98,066 540,543 48,196 165,000 1,065,119
- 647,579 - 100 259,911 927,678
- - (438,573) - - (438,573)
- 647,579 (438,573) 100 259,911 489,105
196,326 $ 745,645 $ 101,970 $ 48,296 $ 424,911 $ 1,554,224
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CITY OF CARSON

ALL NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

For the year ended June 30, 2016

State Proposition A
Asset Gas TDA Local
Forfeiture Tax Article 3 Return
Fund Fund Fund Fund
REVENUES:
Taxes $ - $ 1762219 $ - $ 1,672,103
Licenses and permits - - - -
Intergovernmental - - 58,898 203,772
Charges for services - - - -
Investment income - 4,138 - 4,245
Miscellaneous - 34,276 - 163,326
TOTAL REVENUES - 1,800,633 58,898 2,043,446
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Community development - - - -
Public works - - - -
Community services - - - 2,364,121
Capital improvement programs - 1,816,074 69,632 14,382
TOTAL EXPENDITURES - 1,816,074 69,632 2,378,503
EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES - (15,441) (10,734) (335,057)
OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES):
Transfers in - - - -
Transfers out - - - -
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES) - - - -
NET CHANGE IN
FUND BALANCES - (15,441) (10,734) (335,057)
FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT) -
BEGINNING OF YEAR 76 263,339 6,900 473,953
FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT) -
END OF YEAR $ 7% $ 247,898 $ (3,834) % 138,896
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Proposition C Air Capital Restricted
Local Quality Asset Administrative
Return Improvement Self-Supporting Replacement Measure R Tow Fee
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund

$ 1,389,345 - $ - - $ - $ -
- - 103,223 - - 58,408

- 117,691 - - 1,040,853 -

- - 1,015,907 - - -

7,871 1,910 - - 10,319 682

65,558 - - 136,079 - -
1,462,774 119,601 1,119,130 136,079 1,051,172 59,090

- - - - 26,871 -

1,084,834 18,940 1,101,739 - - 41,694
505,113 97,169 - 126,149 2,134 -
1,589,947 116,109 1,101,739 126,149 29,005 41,694
(127,173) 3,492 17,391 9,930 1,022,167 17,396

- - 72,103 - - -

- - 72,103 - - -

(127,173) 3,492 89,494 9,930 1,022,167 17,396
760,403 263,847 (89,494) 494,123 252,777 67,293

$ 633,230 267,339 $ - 504,053 $ 1,274,944 $ 84,689
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CITY OF CARSON

ALL NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

For the year ended June 30, 2016

Youth Combined
Services City MTA Call Parks and
Program Special Events for Projects Recreation
Fund Fund Fund Funds
REVENUES:
Taxes $ - % - % - % -
Licenses and permits - - - -
Intergovernmental - - 2,054,658 2,500
Charges for services 120 - - -
Investment income - - - 10,912
Miscellaneous - - - 87,616
TOTAL REVENUES 120 - 2,054,658 101,028
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Community development - - - -
Public works - - - 855
Community services - - - -
Capital improvement programs - - 1,350,686 119,929
TOTAL EXPENDITURES - - 1,350,686 120,784
EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES 120 - 703,972 (19,756)
OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES):
Transfers in - 53,770 - -
Transfers out - - - -
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES) - 53,770 - -
NET CHANGE IN
FUND BALANCES 120 53,770 703,972 (19,756)
FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT) -
BEGINNING OF YEAR 51,112 - 97,266 1,209,555
FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT) -
END OF YEAR $ 51,232 % 53,770 % 801,238 $ 1,189,799
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Combined Combined Total

State Federal Nonmajor
Grant Grant Governmental
Funds Funds Funds
$ - $ - $ 4,823,667
- - 161,631
529,636 2,773,613 6,781,621
- - 1,016,027
935 7,046 48,058
- 773,327 1,260,182
530,571 3,553,986 14,091,186
- 1,379,391 1,379,391
50,750 - 78,476
193,394 687,787 5,492,509
363,949 1,703,194 6,168,411
608,093 3,770,372 13,118,787
(77,522) (216,386) 972,399
- - 125,873
(19,884) - (19,884)
(19,884) - 105,989
(97,406) (216,386) 1,078,388
157,223 705,491 4,713,864
$ 59,817 $ 489,105 $ 5,792,252
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CITY OF CARSON
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
PARKS AND RECREATION FUNDS

For the year ended June 30, 2016

Los Angeles Total
Park County Park Parks and
Development District Recreation
Fund Fund Funds
REVENUES:
Intergovernmental $ - $ 2,500 $ 2,500
Investment income 10,912 - 10,912
Miscellaneous 87,616 - 87,616
TOTAL REVENUES 98,528 2,500 101,028
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Public works - 855 855
Capital improvement programs 31,545 88,384 119,929
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 31,545 89,239 120,784
NET CHANGE IN
FUND BALANCES 66,983 (86,739) (19,756)
FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT) -
BEGINNING OF YEAR 1,254,162 (44,607) 1,209,555
FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT) -
END OF YEAR $ 1,321,145 $ (131,346) $ 1,189,799
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CITY OF CARSON

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

STATE GRANT FUNDS

For the year ended June 30, 2016

Beverage State
Container COPS
Recycling Grant
Fund Fund
REVENUES:
Intergovernmental $ 24,568 $ 167,033
Investment income 224 609
TOTAL REVENUES 24,792 167,642
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Public works 47,622 -
Community services - 193,394
Capital improvement programs 14,229 -
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 61,851 193,394
EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES (37,059) (25,752)
OTHER FINANCING USES:

Transfers out (9,841) -
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING USES (9,841) -
NET CHANGE IN

FUND BALANCES (46,900) (25,752)
FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT) -
BEGINNING OF YEAR 74,489 82,710
FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS) -
END OF YEAR $ 27,589 $ 56,958
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Used Qil State Total

State Proposition CIP State
Grant 1B Grants Grant
Fund Fund Fund Funds

$ 25,690 $ 22,345 $ 290,000 $ 529,636

102 - - 935
25,792 22,345 290,000 530,571

3,128 - - 50,750

- - - 193,394

54,652 295,068 363,949

3,128 54,652 295,068 608,093

22,664 (32,307) (5,068) (77,522)
(10,043) - - (19,884)
(10,043) - - (19,884)
12,621 (32,307) (5,068) (97,406)

- @) 28 157,223

$ 12621  $  (32311) $ (5,040) $ 59,817
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CITY OF CARSON

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

FEDERAL GRANT FUNDS

For the year ended June 30, 2016

Department of Family
Justice/OJP Support
Grant Grant
Fund Fund
REVENUES:
Intergovernmental $ 33,606 86,236
Investment income - -
Miscellaneous - -
TOTAL REVENUES 33,606 86,236
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Community development - -
Community services 33,606 86,236
Capital improvement programs - -
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 33,606 86,236
NET CHANGE IN
FUND BALANCES - -
FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT) -
BEGINNING OF YEAR - 20,088
FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT) -
END OF YEAR $ - 20,088
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Community Federal Workforce Neighborhood Total
HOME Development Highway Investment Act Stabilization Federal
Grant Block Grant Planning (WIA) Grant Grant Grant
Fund Fund Grant Fund Fund Fund Funds
348,000 $ 402,662 $ 1,335,164 $ 567,945 $ - 2,773,613
- 4,946 - - 2,100 7,046
- 773,327 - - - 773,327
348,000 1,180,935 1,335,164 567,945 2,100 3,553,986
348,000 996,840 - - 34,551 1,379,391
- - - 567,945 - 687,787
- - 1,703,194 - - 1,703,194
348,000 996,840 1,703,194 567,945 34,551 3,770,372
- 184,095 (368,030) - (32,451) (216,386)
- 463,484 (70,543) 100 292,362 705,491
- $ 647,579 $ (438,573) % 100 $ 259,911 489,105
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CITY OF CARSON

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

STATE GAS TAX SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

For the year ended June 30, 2016

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
REVENUES:
Taxes $ 2,077,145 $ 2,077,145 $ 1,762,219 $ (314,926)
Investment income - - 4,138 4,138
Miscellaneous - - 34,276 34,276
TOTAL REVENUES 2,077,145 2,077,145 1,800,633 (276,512)
EXPENDITURES:
Capital improvement programs 1,838,516 1,818,871 1,816,074 2,797
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 1,838,516 1,818,871 1,816,074 2,797
NET CHANGE IN
FUND BALANCE 238,629 258,274 (15,441) (273,715)
FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING OF YEAR 263,339 263,339 263,339 -
FUND BALANCE - END OF YEAR $ 501,968 $ 521,613 $ 247,898 $ (273,715)
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CITY OF CARSON
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
TDA ARTICLE 3 SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

For the year ended June 30, 2016

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
REVENUES:
Intergovernmental $ 84,100 $ 136,725 $ 58,898 $ (77,827)
TOTAL REVENUES 84,100 136,725 58,898 (77,827)
EXPENDITURES:
Capital improvement programs 91,000 82,625 69,632 12,993
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 91,000 82,625 69,632 12,993
NET CHANGE IN
FUND BALANCE (6,900) 54,100 (10,734) (64,834)
FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING OF YEAR 6,900 6,900 6,900 -
FUND BALANCE - END OF YEAR $ - $ 61,000 $ (3834) $ (64,834)
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CITY OF CARSON
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
PROPOSITION A LOCAL RETURN SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

For the year ended June 30, 2016

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
REVENUES:
Taxes $ 1,672,788 $ 1,672,788 $ 1,672,103 $ (685)
Intergovernmental 245,734 245,734 203,772 (41,962)
Investment income 5,100 5,100 4,245 (855)
Miscellaneous 171,500 171,500 163,326 (8,174)
TOTAL REVENUES 2,095,122 2,095,122 2,043,446 (51,676)
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Community services 2,396,820 2,397,057 2,364,121 32,936
Capital improvement programs 14,000 14,000 14,382 (382)
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 2,410,820 2,411,057 2,378,503 32,554
NET CHANGE IN
FUND BALANCE (315,698) (315,935) (335,057) (19,122)
FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING OF YEAR 473,953 473,953 473,953 -
FUND BALANCE - END OF YEAR $ 158,255 $ 158,018 $ 138,896 $ (19,122)
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CITY OF CARSON
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
PROPOSITION C LOCAL RETURN SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

For the year ended June 30, 2016

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
REVENUES:
Taxes $ 1,387,534 $ 1,387,534 $ 1,389,345 $ 1,811
Investment income 5,800 5,800 7,871 2,071
Miscellaneous 92,100 92,100 65,558 (26,542)
TOTAL REVENUES 1,485,434 1,485,434 1,462,774 (22,660)
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Community services 1,166,054 1,165,720 1,084,834 80,886
Capital improvement programs 516,000 771,371 505,113 266,258
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 1,682,054 1,937,091 1,589,947 347,144
NET CHANGE IN
FUND BALANCE (196,620) (451,657) (127,173) 324,484
FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING OF YEAR 760,403 760,403 760,403 -
FUND BALANCE - END OF YEAR $ 563,783 $ 308,746 $ 633,230 $ 324,484
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CITY OF CARSON
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
AIR QUALITY IMPROVEMENT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

For the year ended June 30, 2016

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
REVENUES:
Intergovernmental $ 115,500 $ 175,500 $ 117,691 $ (57,809)
Investment income 1,800 1,800 1,910 110
TOTAL REVENUES 117,300 177,300 119,601 (57,699)
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Community services 42,349 42,349 18,940 23,409
Capital improvement programs 215,000 180,000 97,169 82,831
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 257,349 222,349 116,109 106,240
NET CHANGE IN
FUND BALANCE (140,049) (45,049) 3,492 48,541
FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING OF YEAR 263,847 263,847 263,847 -
FUND BALANCE - END OF YEAR $ 123,798 $ 218,798 $ 267,339 $ 48,541
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CITY OF CARSON
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
SELF-SUPPORTING SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

For the year ended June 30, 2016

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
REVENUES:
Licenses and permits $ 150,000 $ 150,000 $ 103,223 $ (46,777)
Charges for services 927,500 927,500 1,015,907 88,407
TOTAL REVENUES 1,077,500 1,077,500 1,119,130 41,630
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Community services 971,883 971,883 1,101,739 (129,856)
Capital improvement programs 6,127 6,127 - 6,127
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 978,010 978,010 1,101,739 (123,729)
EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES 99,490 99,490 17,391 (82,099)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:
Transfers in - - 72,103 72,103
TOTAL OTHER
FINANCING SOURCES - - 72,103 72,103
NET CHANGE IN
FUND BALANCE 99,490 99,490 89,494 (9,996)
FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT) -
BEGINNING OF YEAR (89,494) (89,494) (89,494) -
FUND BALANCE - END OF YEAR $ 9,996 $ 9,996 $ - $ (9,996)
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CITY OF CARSON
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
CAPITAL ASSET REPLACEMENT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

For the year ended June 30, 2016

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
REVENUES:
Miscellaneous $ - $ - $ 136,079 $ 136,079
TOTAL REVENUES - - 136,079 136,079
EXPENDITURES:
Capital improvement programs 484,889 124,754 126,149 (1,395)
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 484,889 124,754 126,149 (1,395)
NET CHANGE IN
FUND BALANCE (484,889) (124,754) 9,930 134,684
FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING OF YEAR 494,123 494,123 494,123 -
FUND BALANCE - END OF YEAR $ 9,234 $ 369,369 $ 504,053 $ 134,684

142



CITY OF CARSON
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
MEASURE R SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

For the year ended June 30, 2016

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
REVENUES:
Intergovernmental $ 1,040,663 $ 1,040,663 $ 1,040,853 $ 190
Investment income 7,584 7,584 10,319 2,735
TOTAL REVENUES 1,048,247 1,048,247 1,051,172 2,925
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Public works 63,057 63,057 26,871 36,186
Capital improvement programs 1,216,999 62,899 2,134 60,765
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 1,280,056 125,956 29,005 96,951
NET CHANGE IN
FUND BALANCE (231,809) 922,291 1,022,167 99,876
FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING OF YEAR 252,777 252,777 252,777 -
FUND BALANCE - END OF YEAR $ 20,968 $ 1,175,068 $ 1,274,944 $ 99,876
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CITY OF CARSON
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
RESTRICTED ADMINISTRATIVE TOW FEE SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

For the year ended June 30, 2016

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
REVENUES:
Licenses and permits $ 56,733 $ 56,733 $ 58,408 $ 1,675
Investment income 639 639 682 43
TOTAL REVENUES 57,372 57,372 59,090 1,718
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Community services 57,758 57,758 41,694 16,064
Capital improvement programs 10,000 10,000 - 10,000
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 67,758 67,758 41,694 26,064
NET CHANGE IN
FUND BALANCE (10,386) (10,386) 17,396 27,782
FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING OF YEAR 67,293 67,293 67,293 -
FUND BALANCE - END OF YEAR $ 56,907 $ 56,907 $ 84,689 $ 27,7182
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CITY OF CARSON

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
YOUTH SERVICES PROGRAM SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

REVENUES:
Charges for services

TOTAL REVENUES
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Community services

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

NET CHANGE IN
FUND BALANCE

FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING OF YEAR

FUND BALANCE - END OF YEAR

For the year ended June 30, 2016

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
$ 3,300 $ 3,300 $ 120 $ (3,180)
3,300 3,300 120 (3,180)
24,150 24,150 - 24,150
24,150 24,150 - 24,150
(20,850) (20,850) 120 20,970
51,112 51,112 51,112 -
$ 30,262 $ 30,262 $ 51,232 $ 20,970
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CITY OF CARSON
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
MTA CALL FOR PROJECTS SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

For the year ended June 30, 2016

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
REVENUES:
Intergovernmental $ 7,022,940 $ 7,022,940 $ 2,054,658 $ (4,968,282)
TOTAL REVENUES 7,022,940 7,022,940 2,054,658 (4,968,282)
EXPENDITURES:
Capital improvement programs 7,022,940 1,350,686 1,350,686 -
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 7,022,940 1,350,686 1,350,686 -
NET CHANGE IN
FUND BALANCE - 5,672,254 703,972 (4,968,282)
FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING OF YEAR 97,266 97,266 97,266 -
FUND BALANCE - END OF YEAR $ 97,266 $ 5,769,520 $ 801,238 $ (4,968,282)
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CITY OF CARSON
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
PARK DEVELOPMENT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

For the year ended June 30, 2016

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
REVENUES:
Investment income $ 8,779 $ 8,779 $ 10,912 $ 2,133
Miscellaneous 173,320 182,855 87,616 (95,239)
TOTAL REVENUES 182,099 191,634 98,528 (93,106)
EXPENDITURES:
Capital improvement programs 1,121,759 29,288 31,545 (2,257)
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 1,121,759 29,288 31,545 (2,257)
NET CHANGE IN
FUND BALANCE (939,660) 162,346 66,983 (95,363)
FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING OF YEAR 1,254,162 1,254,162 1,254,162 -
FUND BALANCE - END OF YEAR $ 314,502 $ 1,416,508 $ 1,321,145 $ (95,363)
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CITY OF CARSON
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
LOS ANGELES COUNTY PARK DISTRICT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

For the year ended June 30, 2016

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
REVENUES:
Intergovernmental $ 866,874 $ 866,874 $ 2,500 $  (864,374)
TOTAL REVENUES 866,874 866,874 2,500 (864,374)
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Public works 61,414 61,414 855 60,559
Capital improvement programs 629,350 97,290 88,384 8,906
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 690,764 158,704 89,239 69,465
NET CHANGE IN
FUND BALANCE 176,110 708,170 (86,739) (794,909)

FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT) -
BEGINNING OF YEAR (44,607) (44,607) (44,607) -

FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT) - END OF YEAR § 131,503 $ 663,563 $ (131,346) $ (794,909)
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CITY OF CARSON
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
BEVERAGE CONTAINER RECYCLING SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

For the year ended June 30, 2016

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
REVENUES:
Intergovernmental $ 24,568 $ 24,568 $ 24,568 $ -
Investment income 350 350 224 (126)
TOTAL REVENUES 24,918 24,918 24,792 (126)
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Public works 51,000 51,000 47,622 3,378
Capital improvement programs 38,505 38,505 14,229 24,276
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 89,505 89,505 61,851 27,654
EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES (64,587) (64,587) (37,059) 27,528
OTHER FINANCING USES:
Transfers out (9,841) (9,841) (9,841) -
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING USES (9,841) (9,841) (9,841) -
NET CHANGE IN
FUND BALANCE (74,428) (74,428) (46,900) 27,528
FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING OF YEAR 74,489 74,489 74,489 -
FUND BALANCE - END OF YEAR $ 61 $ 61 $ 27,589 $ 27,528
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CITY OF CARSON
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
STATE COPS GRANT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

For the year ended June 30, 2016

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
REVENUES:
Intergovernmental $ 150,000 $ 150,000 $ 167,033 $ 17,033
Investment income 579 579 609 30
TOTAL REVENUES 150,579 150,579 167,642 17,063
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Community services 193,394 193,394 193,394 -
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 193,394 193,394 193,394 -
NET CHANGE IN
FUND BALANCE (42,815) (42,815) (25,752) 17,063
FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING OF YEAR 82,710 82,710 82,710 -
FUND BALANCE - END OF YEAR $ 39,895 $ 39,895 $ 56,958 $ 17,063

150



CITY OF CARSON
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
USED OIL STATE GRANT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

For the year ended June 30, 2016

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
REVENUES:
Intergovernmental $ 25,414 $ 25,414 $ 25,690 $ 276
Investment income 53 53 102 49
TOTAL REVENUES 25,467 25,467 25,792 325
EXPENDITURES:
Current:

Public works 15,371 15,371 3,128 12,243
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 15,371 15,371 3,128 12,243
EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER

(UNDER) EXPENDITURES 10,096 10,096 22,664 12,568

OTHER FINANCING USES:
Transfers out (10,043) (10,043) (10,043) -
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING USES (10,043) (10,043) (10,043) -

NET CHANGE IN

FUND BALANCE 53 53 12,621 12,568
FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING OF YEAR - - - -
FUND BALANCE - END OF YEAR $ 53 $ 53 $ 12,621 $ 12,568
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CITY OF CARSON
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
PROPOSITION 1B SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

For the year ended June 30, 2016

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
REVENUES:
Intergovernmental $ 136,259 $ 136,259 $ 22,345 $  (113,914)
TOTAL REVENUES 136,259 136,259 22,345 (113,914)
EXPENDITURES:
Capital improvement programs 136,256 54,649 54,652 3)
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 136,256 54,649 54,652 (3)
NET CHANGE IN
FUND BALANCE 3 81,610 (32,307) (113,917)
FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT) -
BEGINNING OF YEAR 4) 4) 4) -
FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT) - END OF YEAR $ @ 3 81,606 $ (32,311) $  (113,917)
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CITY OF CARSON
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
STATE CIP GRANTS SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

For the year ended June 30, 2016

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
REVENUES:
Intergovernmental $ 860,000 $ 860,000 $ 290,000 $  (570,000)
TOTAL REVENUES 860,000 860,000 290,000 (570,000)
EXPENDITURES:

Capital improvement programs 950,000 385,068 295,068 90,000
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 950,000 385,068 295,068 90,000
EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER

(UNDER) EXPENDITURES (90,000) 474,932 (5,068) (480,000)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:
Transfers in 90,000 90,000 - (90,000)
TOTAL OTHER
FINANCING SOURCES 90,000 90,000 - (90,000)
NET CHANGE IN
FUND BALANCE - 564,932 (5,068) (570,000)
FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING OF YEAR 28 28 28 -
FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT) - END OF YEAR $ 28 $ 564,960 $ (5,040) $ (570,000)
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CITY OF CARSON
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE/OJP GRANT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

For the year ended June 30, 2016

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
REVENUES:
Intergovernmental $ 33,606 $ 33,606 $ 33,606 $ -
TOTAL REVENUES 33,606 33,606 33,606 -

EXPENDITURES:

Current:
Community services 33,606 33,606 33,606 -
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 33,606 33,606 33,606 -

NET CHANGE IN
FUND BALANCE - - - -

FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING OF YEAR - - - -

FUND BALANCE - END OF YEAR $ - $ - $ - $ -
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CITY OF CARSON
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FAMILY SUPPORT GRANT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

For the year ended June 30, 2016

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
REVENUES:
Intergovernmental $ 77,160 $ 77,160 $ 86,236 $ 9,076
Investment income 100 100 - (100)
TOTAL REVENUES 77,260 77,260 86,236 8,976
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Community services 92,160 92,160 86,236 5,924
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 92,160 92,160 86,236 5,924
NET CHANGE IN
FUND BALANCE (14,900) (14,900) - 14,900
FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING OF YEAR 20,088 20,088 20,088 -
FUND BALANCE - END OF YEAR $ 5,188 $ 5,188 $ 20,088 $ 14,900
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CITY OF CARSON
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
HOME GRANT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

For the year ended June 30, 2016

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
REVENUES:
Intergovernmental $ 632,723 $ 632,723 $ 348,000 $  (284,723)
TOTAL REVENUES 632,723 632,723 348,000 (284,723)
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Community development 632,723 632,723 348,000 284,723
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 632,723 632,723 348,000 284,723
NET CHANGE IN
FUND BALANCE - - - -
FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING OF YEAR - - - -
FUND BALANCE - END OF YEAR $ - $ - $ - $ -
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CITY OF CARSON
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

For the year ended June 30, 2016

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
REVENUES:
Intergovernmental $ 685,146 $ 685,146 $ 402,662 $  (282,484)
Investment income - - 4,946 4,946
Miscellaneous 698,777 698,777 773,327 74,550
TOTAL REVENUES 1,383,923 1,383,923 1,180,935 (202,988)
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Community development 1,458,462 1,356,124 996,840 359,284
Capital improvement programs - 150,000 - 150,000
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 1,458,462 1,506,124 996,840 509,284
NET CHANGE IN
FUND BALANCE (74,539) (122,201) 184,095 306,296
FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING OF YEAR 463,484 463,484 463,484 -
FUND BALANCE - END OF YEAR $ 388,945 $ 341,283 $ 647,579 $ 306,296
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CITY OF CARSON
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FEDERAL HIGHWAY PLANNING GRANT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

For the year ended June 30, 2016

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
REVENUES:
Intergovernmental $ 6,881,292 $ 6,881,292 $ 1,335,164 $ (5,546,128)
TOTAL REVENUES 6,881,292 6,881,292 1,335,164 (5,546,128)
EXPENDITURES:
Capital improvement programs 6,881,292 1,636,718 1,703,194 (66,476)
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 6,881,292 1,636,718 1,703,194 (66,476)
NET CHANGE IN
FUND BALANCE - 5,244,574 (368,030) (5,612,604)

FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT) -
BEGINNING OF YEAR (70,543) (70,543) (70,543) -

FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT) -END OF YEAR $  (70,543) $ 5174031 $ (438573) $ (5,612,604)
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CITY OF CARSON
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
WORKFORCE INVESTMENT ACT (WIA) GRANT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

For the year ended June 30, 2016

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
REVENUES:
Intergovernmental $ 641,885 $ 641,885 $ 567,945 $ (73,940)
TOTAL REVENUES 641,885 641,885 567,945 (73,940)
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Community development 641,885 641,885 567,945 73,940
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 641,885 641,885 567,945 73,940
NET CHANGE IN
FUND BALANCE - - - -
FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING OF YEAR 100 100 100 -
FUND BALANCE - END OF YEAR $ 100 $ 100 $ 100 $ -
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CITY OF CARSON
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
NEIGHBORHOOD STABILIZATION GRANT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

For the year ended June 30, 2016

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
REVENUES:
Investment income $ 2,400 $ - $ 2,100 $ 2,100
TOTAL REVENUES 2,400 - 2,100 2,100
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Community development 127,684 127,684 34,551 93,133
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 127,684 127,684 34,551 93,133
NET CHANGE IN
FUND BALANCE (125,284) (127,684) (32,451) 95,233
FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING OF YEAR 292,362 292,362 292,362 -
FUND BALANCE - END OF YEAR $ 167,078 $ 164,678 $ 259,911 $ 95,233
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CITY OF CARSON

AGENCY FUNDS

The Agency funds are used to account for assets held by the City as an agent for individuals, private
organizations and/or other governmental units.

An Agency fund is accounted for in essentially the same manner as governmental funds; however, its
purpose is custodial in nature (assets equal liabilities); therefore, the measurement of results is not
appropriate. The following Agency Funds are funds deposited with the City by various individuals and
private organizations:

The Trust and Agency Fund is used to account for assets that are held in a custodial relationship for
various individuals and private organizations.

The Wilmington Assessment District Fund is used to account for the $2.2 million Assessment
District Limited Obligation Refunding Improvement Bonds, Series 1995. The bonds were used to
finance the installations and construction of certain public improvements within the boundaries of the
District. The City is in no way liable for the repayment of the bonds but is only acting as an agent for
the property owners in collecting the assessments, forwarding the collections to bondholders and
initiating foreclosure proceedings for the benefit of the bondholders.

The Sepulveda Boulevard Assessment District Fund is used to account for the $13.1 million Limited
Obligation Improvement Bonds, Series 1992. The bonds were used to finance the cost of certain street
improvements. The City is in no way liable for repayment of the bonds but is only acting as an agent
for the property owners in collecting the assessments, forwarding the collections to bondholders and
initiating foreclosure proceedings for the benefit of the bondholders.

The Dominquez Technology Center West Assessment District Fund is used to account for the
$32.2 million Limited Obligation Improvement Bonds, Series 2001. The bonds were used to finance
the acquisition costs for improvements within the Assessment District, to establish the Reserve Fund
and to pay the cost of issuing the bonds. The City is in no way liable for repayment of the bonds but is
only acting as an agent for the property owners in collecting the assessments, forwarding the
collections to bondholders and initiating foreclosure proceedings for the benefit of the bondholders.
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ASSETS:
Cash and investments
Cash and investments with
fiscal agents
Receivables:
Taxes

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable and
accrued liabilities
Refundable deposits
Due to assessed parties
Due to other government
Due to bondholders

TOTAL LIABILITIES

CITY OF CARSON

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

June 30, 2016

Wilmington Sepulveda Dominquez

Trust Avenue Boulevard Tech Center Total

and Assessment Assessment Assessment Agency
Agency District District District Funds
$ 3432308 $ 735,101 $ 1,166,545 $ 2,290,171 7,624,125
- - - 2,536,573 2,536,573
$ 3432308 $ 735101 $ 1,166,545 $ 4,826,744 10,160,698
$ 609,793 $ - 8 - % - 609,793
2,822,515 - - - 2,822,515
- 735,101 - - 735,101
- - 1,166,545 4,826,744 5,993,289
$ 3432308 $ 735101 $ 1,166,545 $ 4,826,744 10,160,698

162



CITY OF CARSON

FIDUCIARY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

TRUST AND AGENCY
ASSETS:
Cash and investments

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Refundable deposits
Due to other governments

TOTAL LIABILITIES

WILMINGTON AVENUE
ASSESSMENT DISTRICT
ASSETS:
Cash and investments

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES:
Due to assessed parties

TOTAL LIABILITIES

SEPULVEDA BOULEVARD
ASSESSEMENT DISTRICT
ASSETS:
Cash and investments

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES:
Due to bondholders

TOTAL LIABILITIES

For the year ended June 30, 2016

Balance Balance

July 1, 2015 Additions Deletions June 30, 2016
$ 4,449,165 $ 3,449,665 (4,466,522) $ 3,432,308
$ 4,449,165 $ 3,449,665 (4,466,522) $ 3,432,308
$ 389,906 $ 3,642,321 (3,422,434) % 609,793
2,608,259 3,763,746 (3,549,490) 2,822,515
1,451,000 - (1,451,000) -

$ 4,449,165 $ 7,406,067 (8,422,924) $ 3,432,308
$ 729,161 $ 5,940 - $ 735,101
$ 729,161 $ 5,940 - $ 735,101
$ 729,161 $ 5,940 - $ 735,101
$ 729,161 $ 5,940 - $ 735,101
$ 1,146,524 $ 221,839 (201,818) $ 1,166,545
$ 1,146,524 $ 221,839 (201,818) $ 1,166,545
$ 1,146,524 $ 228,232 (208,211) $ 1,166,545
$ 1,146,524 $ 228,232 (208,211) $ 1,166,545
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CITY OF CARSON

FIDUCIARY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

DOMINGUEZ TECH CENTER
ASSESSEMENT DISTRICT
ASSETS:
Cash and investments
Cash and investments with fiscal agent
Receivables:
Taxes

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Due to bondholders

TOTAL LIABILITIES

TOTAL ALL FIDUCIARY FUNDS
ASSETS:
Cash and investments
Cash and investments with fiscal agent
Receivables:
Taxes

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Refundable deposits
Due to other governments
Due to assessed parties
Due to bondholders

TOTAL LIABILITIES

(CONTINUED)

For the year ended June 30,

2016

Balance Balance

July 1, 2015 Additions Deletions June 30, 2016
$ 2,291,340 $ 2,356,864 (2,358,033) $ 2,290,171
2,537,376 2,270,999 (2,271,802) 2,536,573
28 - (28) -
$ 4,828,744 $ 4,627,863 (4,629,863) $ 4,826,744
$ - $ 7,194 (7,194) % -
4,828,744 4,627,863 (4,629,863) 4,826,744
$ 4,828,744 $ 4,635,057 (4,637,057) $ 4,826,744
$ 8,616,190 $ 6,034,308 (7,026,373) $ 7,624,125
2,537,376 2,270,999 (2,271,802) 2,536,573
28 - (28) -
$ 11,153,594 $ 8,305,307 (9,298,203) $ 10,160,698
$ 389,906 $ 3,649,515 (3,429,628) $ 609,793
2,608,259 3,763,746 (3,549,490) 2,822,515
1,451,000 - (1,451,000) -
729,161 5,940 - 735,101
5,975,268 4,856,095 (4,838,074) 5,993,289
$ 11,153,594 $ 12,275,296 (13,268,192) $ 10,160,698
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STATISTICAL SECTION

(Not covered by Independent Auditors’ Report)

CITY OF CARSON, CALIFORNIA
COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT






CITY OF CARSON

DESCRIPTION OF STATISTICAL SECTION

This part of the City of Carson's comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed information
as a context for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note disclosures, and
required supplementary information says about the City's overall financial health.

Contents

Financial Trends
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the City's financial
performance and well-being have changed over time.

Revenue Capacity
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the City's most significant local
revenue source, the property tax.

Debt Capacity
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the City's current
levels of oustanding debt and the City's ability to issue additional debt in the future.

Demographic and Economic Information
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader understand the
environment within which the City's financial activities take place.

Operating Information
These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand how the
information in the City's financial report relates to the services the City provides and the activities
it performs.

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the comprehensive
annual financial reports for the relevant year.

165



997

GE6'z68'6Yy$  zve'eez'lees  wrl'oveE'v9e$  vve'vze'T.ES  8VL'OTT'E9ES  6.G'vr9'6.€$  09€'98C'6TF$  ¥98',0G'6Sv$  858'998'G0S$  099'0v8'l6Y $

(287'128'89)  (¥€8'06T'79) ¥66'182'0T 78.'1GE'CT TVE'TLS'C (z22's09'02)  (195'822'TY) (Te6'7.8'€T) €€5'290'96 878'S6.'06

T€6'STT'EE G6T'8S0'TS 8/1'969'25 06€'TT8'95 L1Z'Y0T LY 060°2T2'cE 662'1¥5'95 0¥8'€0.'LS 06T'T6L'LY 289'9/0'vY

- - - - €2€'102 ¥9v'0£0'12C 90€'¥61'85 216'212'99 891'€88'vT £6.'9/8'9T

181'16€'C 612'120'C 25€'965'Y €S1'6.€'E 125'909't £62'29%'S €TY'812'9 6SG'€9T'S - -

892'260'8. 1€9's6Y'2y Zrs'6G2'E €16'7/8'T ¥£5'822'9 £€G'TGE'T T0G'2EY £9G'59¢ 281'sG6'L ¥82'992'L

9evy'890'S0Y$  TEO'8YB'S6C$  8/9'CTL'€62$  9¥9'006'96$  2GL'T6E'TOES  TL6'E6T'6EE$  8OV'ZTT'6EE$S TZ6'TOV'ErE$  GBB'ELT'6EE$  €/0'TE€8'8EE$

SyT'cec'ee $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $

TS7'G99'9 - - - - - - - - -

76695561 - - - - - - - - -

0000009 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $

06L'0£9'.68$  zve'eee'lees  wyl'oveE'vIE$  vve'vee'T.ES  8VL'OTT'€9E$  6.G'vr9'6.€$  09€'98C'6Tr$  ¥98',0G'6Sr$  858'998'G0S$  099'0v8'L6v $

(8ee'98y'ss)  (7€8'06T'79) 766'182'0T 78.1'1GE'CT TVe'TLS'C (z22's09'02)  (195'822'TH) (T€6'7.8'€T) €€5'290'96 828'S6.'06

T€6'STT'EE G6T'8S0'TS 8/1'969'25 06£'TT8'95 L1Z'90T LY 060°2T2'cE 662'1¥5'95 0¥8'€0.'LS 06T'T6.'LY 289'9/0'vY

- - - - €2€'102 ¥9v'0£0'12C 90€'¥61T'85 216'212'99 891'€88'vT £6.'9/8'9T

181'165'C 612'120'C 25€'96E'Y €Sh'6.E'E 125'909't £62'29%'S eTY'812'9 6SG'€9T'S - -

¥12'GE5'8¢C 1€9's6Y'2Y ZrS'662'E €16'7/8'T ¥£5'822'9 £6G'TGE'T T0G'2EY £9G'59¢ 281'sG6'L ¥82'992'L

9ey'890'69€$  TEO'8YB'S6CS  8/9'CTL'€62$  9¥9'006'96$  7GL'T6E'TOES  TL6'E6T'6E€$  8OV'ZTT'6EE$S TZ6'TOV'EFE$  GBB'ELT'6EE$  €/0'TE8'8EE$
9702 G102 ¥102 €102 2102 1102 0702 6002 8002 1002

Jea A |edsiH

(Bununoday Jo siseq [eniody)

SIea A [eosld ua] 1se]

wauodwo) Ag uonisod 18N
VINHOH1TvD ‘NOSHVO 40 ALID

T37gavl

uosteD Jo Al :32In0s

uonisod 18u Juswuaanob Arewiad jelo |

pa1dLIIsaIuN
s108foad BuisnoH
juswdojansp o1WOU02T
Sylom a1jgngd
S90IAIBS AlUNWIWOD
110} pajoLNsay
s1asse |ended Ul JuswiIsaAul 19N
Juswuaanob Arewnud

uonisod 1au sanAIoe adAl-ssauisng €101

paloLisalun
S301AJ8S AlUNWWOoD
110} pajoLisey
sjasse [eded ul JusWIISSAUIL 19N
A1Anoe adAy-ssauisng

uonisod 18U S3IIAIOE [elusWUIan0b [e10 |

paloLlsalun
s108foad BuisnoH
Juawdojanap d1wouod3
Sydom a1jgnd
S30IAJBS AlUNWWo)
110y paloLlsey
s1asse [exded ul JUBWISBAUIL 18N
SAIIAILOR [BIUSLLIUIBAOD)



197

EEEEEEEEEE

861'€66'6Y -

(9eT'195'02) $  vesver'ee $ (005'1.6'9) $ (SSv'6L6'.T) $  v88'68E'T  §  (18L'TYo'6E) $  (veL'zeE'SE) $  (68v'ZOV'YS) §  OVI'TO8'8 $  GBL'98LET $

TLTTIZEY $  086'TvY'86 $  209'982'%9 $  L69'V0S'P9 $  6TC'TLS'89 $  29.'008'8L $  GvB'WOS'08 $  0/G'888'T8 $  OT6'€ES'08 $  e€ev'/SL'6L $

969'Sy g _- g _- g _- g _- g _- g _- g _- g _- $ - $

oS  § - s - s - s - s - s - $ - $ - s - $

_9/p'GOT't9 ¢ _086'Typ'86 & _209'982'v9 $ _/6O'POSYI $ _6IZT/9'89 $ _29/'008'8, $ _G¥B'POS08 $ _0/5'888'18 $ _QIA'EES'08 § _E€EvUGL'6L §

mR 669'€ 1€LT9T'C 5 89/ NN? 826 qu 6T mmN 0g8'T E [AA qu 8¢9 €05'€€5 v€1'956

LT0'TL2'0F

958'66T'T 150'8YL 6T€'S62'E 8/8'895' YZy'e9L'T 152'290'€ 280'2v8'y 882'88Y'8 S12'602'6 2€8'8820T

85'2€ 96207 ALY S0v'0S 910'952 118'22 86€'882 LET'VEE €18'eY YTT'TES
198'70T'L 9/8'€ST'L €9Y'5e2'L 256'08L'9 09€'56€'9

SL0'7SL'9 PYT'SET'S 107826 166'S6v'L T¥1'970'8 125'61'L 6T€'22L'9 820'T

£rE'952 LTT'85Y T15'STE oTT'E9Y 009'06€ 9vv'992 S0T'29¢ 670'S0T

869'285'8 806'7.2'8 ¥90'€€6'L 188'060'L L06'9vL'L Lze'esy'L ¥8v'9/8'9 08'989'6 692'65T'8 6v8'02T'8

8L€'8ET'T 0TE'2I8'T 1€0'865'T PLT'ZOY'T 2€L'L08'T 008'L6T'T 260'T2T'T EVS'IYe'T €80'795'T €21'26€'T

150'798'52 821'028'T2 §61'899'€2 yeL'18T'SZ 218'889'02 057'S6T'LT 859'750'ST 212'292'6T 189'8Y9'T2 6.5'990'T2

0TZ'82T'ST ¢ 2L2'0cl'vT $  €L9'T8€'LT $  ¥BOLWT'6T $  20T'902'8T $  06G'LL6'C€ $  LSS'W/8'T€ $  8v9'TEBYE $  00V'20Z'Z€ $  Z¥B'SO0'TE $

uosIeD J0 AN :92In0S

JuswiuIanob Arewnd [ejo
Aunnae adAy-sseuisng

SOIIAIIR [EJUSLUILIBAOD)
uonisod 19N Ul sabuey

JuawuIanoh Arewnd [ejo)

Auanoe adA-sssuisng 2101
3WO2UI JUSWISBAU]
:AuAnoe adAy-sseuisng

S3INIAIOR [eJusWIUISN0D [e10 ]
anuaAsl IBYIO
Aouaby 10S$329NS WIOLY Jajsuel |
pue| JO 3]s U0 ss07
2InjonJiseljul payniisuod hmno_w>mﬁ_
IWOJUI JUBWISBAU|
saljfeuad pue sain)1ajloy ‘sal
snuuad pue sasusor
Xe} 130

SXe) aSIYoUel
saxe) Aouednddo Jusisuel |
Saxe] $3|eS

saxe) Auadoid

Saxe L
:SBNIAINIR [BJUBLULIBA0D)

uonIsod 19N
ut s3BuBYD J3UIO PUE SINUIASY [BI8USD)

le9g'8siee) § (OpT'y6'y0) § E EE. E EE E E E Hmhm 0/6'59) §  senuanal (sesuadxe) 1ou Juawuianob Arewnd fejo L

€v0'876'6 -

(zr9'9zL'e8) $  (9vT'Lv6'v9) $  (20T'v9Z'TL) $  (2ST'v8Y'Z8) $  (Gee'181°29) $  (evG'zvi'8TT)$  (6€9'L68'GTT)$  (6S0'T6Z'9ET)$  (922°2€L'TL) $  (8v9'0L6'G9) $
LIG'VIv'€8  $  LT2'290'0€ $  TTE'600'8C $  €0L'7eG'Gc $  €€9'€CETE $  896'98€‘TE $  0.9'Tee'8c $  8E6'VE9TC $  000WY9ve $  GCITL6'ST &
1619522 § - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $
15T'652'LS ¢ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $
_9ev'6lz9z § /127900 ¢ _T1£'600'82 $ _€0/'729'Gz $ _€€9'eeele ¢ _896'98€'Te ¢ _0/972€'82 $ _8E6'vE9TZ € _Q0Q'v¥o've ¢ _GeI'2/6'82 §
YOT'GEE'T GE0'EELT 99G5'T/8'T 008'687 7.8'8VT'E 910'22€'S 8022907 ¥5€'068'T 860'8L 12e'L
0€Z'65T'TT 68'LG1'ET 68.'960'€T YET'G68'2T 608'€8Y'ET 186'€96'0T 852'€61'2T 2€9'29.°L €L0'€29'CT 289'TL0'LT
2€0'GL'€T ¢ 88Z'OL8'€T $  9S6'0Y0'€T $  B69L'LETTT $  0S6'069YT $  TLE'00T'ST $  vOZT90CT $  2G6'9L6'TT $  628TYETT $  OYT'EC8Tl §
ovT'eSZLTT $  €9€'¥T0'S6 $  €TP'€/2'66 $  GS8'900'80T $  896'v0S'86 $  T1G'6¢8'6YT $  60E'6TCYYT $  L66'GZ6'/GT $  9LL'0/€'906 $  €LLTW6'Y6 $
80108/ & _- $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $
80T'208'L $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $

EEEEEEEEEE

086'GT9'8
- GTE'T0E - LET'TE0'C - 0S0'126'C -
80T'0SE'S 80T'GES'ST 069'858'L L08'627'9 ¥81'028'9 €01'689'G
080'0£€'2T 0v0'TS6'TT 066'GZT'6T G16'818'2€ STT'69v'vT 81€'/56'€S 668'L78'9S £06'0T8°0L G8L'8TY'YT 169'252'8T
€0T'618'6T 8T2'26v'ce 861'9EL'8T 8T.'66L'GT 9/8'090'7T TSP'erL'TT 620'6EY'9T 2LL'Tee'eT 06L'€6€'YT LLT'TVO'ST
6SL'LLV'ey 182'969'8E £22'689'L€ £v8'/¥2'se 029'789'TY 90T'6.1'9E £70'02L'2y 1S2'SEV'OY 9€0'VE6'6E Tv6'681'9E
960'6T€'SE $  60S'€/S'Te $  20L'TeL'€c $  280'6Y0'CC $  66T'0v6'CC $  86¥'8/50c $  8Y9'€SE'0c $ 092’820/ $  186'608'0C $  T9S'69V'6T $
9102 §102 102 €102 ¢10¢ 1102 0102 6002 8002 1002
PLEYNI RN E ]

(Bununoddy Jo siseq [enJody)
SIBAA [e0SI4 U] IseT]

uonIsod 18N Ut sabuey)d

VINYOL1TVD ‘NOSHVD 40 ALID

¢3diavi

Auanoe adAl-ssauisng
S3IIALOR [BJUSLLUIBAOD)
sanuanay (sasuadx3) 18N

sanuanal weibo.d Juswuianob Arewrid [elo

sanuanal weiboid Aanoe adAy-ssauisng [e1o 1
sesf pue suonnquiuod Bunessdo
:AiAnoe adAy-ssauisng

sanuanal weboid senIAoe [elUBWIUIBA0B [B10 |
Sjuesf pue suonnquiuod ended
swelf pue suonngiiuod Bunessdo
$991AI8S J0} sabreyd

SBIMIAIIDE [eJUBWIUIBA0D

sanuanay weahoad

sasuadxe Juswuianob Arewnd |ejo |

sasuadxa AnAnoe adAl-ssauisng [e1o L
Auoyiny uolewejoay
:AiAnoe adAy-ssauisng

sasuadxa SaIIAIE [eJuBWLIBAC [e10 |
JUBWaSINGUIIA) punyalu|
sweiboid soueusjurew |eyded
sabeyo Jay10 pue 1saeiu]
Juswdojansp Anunwwo)
SHI0M 21jgnd
$30IAI8S AHUNWWOD
JuswuIan0b [eJauss)

:SBINIAIDR [BJUBLULIBAOS)

sasuadx3




891

uoste Jo A1) :80In0s

G96'68Y'78 $  L9S'GBO'COT $  9vS'€S6'9. $  8TT'€SC'6. $  29L¥VS'09 $  T2T'LET'TET $ spuny JusWUIBAB €101 pueID
0£T'6/L'€9 G/E'8TS'SL 122'S/S'0v 807'588'Y 158'526'08 0£6'5£9'802 spuny [elusLiuIBA0b Jaylo |[e [elo L
(#0T'119) (029'702) (z82'ce) (£92'18) (¥12'680'T) (#v0'e9€'c) paubisseun
- eeT'YeY T76'€69 L0T'STO'T 299'809 £88'685 paubissy
¥EZ'06€'79 8/T'Z8T'29 ¥6E'785'€E 628'708'€E 80.'88T'ST 186'/60'6.T patoLisey
- ¥69'9v0'8 vLT'0V9'9 6£6'91T'8 T0Z'8TZ'9T 0TT'TTE'ZE a|qepuadsuoN
spuny [eauswu1anob 1ayio ||
GEV'0TL'8T 261'195'22 6TE'8/E'9E 0T0'89€'9€ G06'879'6Z 162'T0S'€Z puny resaush rejoL
- 96/'SLL'T 605'5/8'S 866'6EL'9 0TE'TL6'ST 0T9'T65'0T paubisseun
960'922 TT2'TL0'S ¥9.'912's G2Z'20T'S 000'26L'€ 9/2'7TL'E paubissy
¥05'0T2'9T 9T/'e85'8T 808',56'02 £2T'601'02 G89'50.‘9 190'86T'9 paNIWWoD
E0V'TEY'T 0TL'09L'T 1S5'09L'T 86€'78Y'Z €€0'0TY'Z 9TH'TZEC patoLisey
Zev'eve  $ esl'sle ¢ 189208 $  992'2€9'T $  L/8'%6€L  $  C26'll9 $ a|qepuadsuoN
punj [easus
6TL'V/2'E0C $  ZEE'6EO0VC $  PLT'TV6'88Z $  CTL'GEE'E8Z $  Spuny [eluswiulano [e1ol puedo
G65'260'G8T 6£6'678'61C 197'955'%92 966'/6v'55C spuny [eluswiuIanob Jaylo |[e [el0 L

900'Z8T'60T 202'862'9TT G0.'0¥9'9ST LE9'0VT'ZYT spuny s108foid [ended

18G'Sv0'L zee'veL'9 G/T'296'TT 882'7€0'8 spuny snuaAal [e103ds

:u1 payodal pareubiseq ‘paAlasalun

200'598'89 G16'/28'96 182'€56'56 T20'€2€'S0T panlasay
spuny _SCmE:‘_m>om 13410 ||V
¥21'281'8T £6€'68.'02 100'S8E'vZ 9T/'/€8'12 puny |esaush [eio |

¥TE'7T66'ST S9¥'S0Y'9T ¥59'6.9'TC 9/%'619'92 pareubisspun

2l6'Gve'T 181°692'T - - asodind [e1oads Joy pareubisaq

;U1 payiodal ‘panIasalun

8eg'vy6 ¢ LPL'YTT'E $  €GE€'S0L'C  $ Ove'8ST'T  $ panlasey
punj [eisus9

910¢Z ST0Z y102 €102 2102 1102 0102 6002 8002 1002
Jes A |edsl

(Bununoaay Jo siseq [en1ady PalLIPoA)
SIea A |BaSI4 Ua] 1seT

SpUN4 [BIUBLLIUIBAOS) JO Saduejeg puny

VINJOLITVD ‘'NOSHVO 40 ALID

€31avl



69T

%000 %000 %000 %000 %0.°0T %¥S'9T %05 TT %672 %T0vT %LL'6
(v0.'188'Gz) $  80s'8vz'sz $ (c.G'6627) $ (G69¥8Y'L) $  (0Sv'6Ev've) $  205'298'8z $  (€T9'v9e’/€) $  (€€0Z8F'vW) $  T9¥'S09'S $  09E'68Y'TE $
- LT0TLZ0V - - - 00S'6EE'TY GT9Z68'TT LTE'6TY 2T €5%'G2G'C 000°000'82
- - - - - 005'6.L - - - -

- - - - - - (58e'2L2) (€89'06€) (L¥S'6TEYT) -
- - - - - 000°095'0% 000'G9T'ZT 000°0T8'22 000°68'9T 000'000'82
(L82's¥T) (9£2'816'2) (€29'€90'T) (185'995'T) (9v1'992'52) (925'8€8'22) (5£6'685'8T) (8£9'€£9'92) (626'8£9'€2) (v9v'€z9'eT)
1S1'SPT €52'6vZ'Ey €19'€90'T 185'995'T 9rT'99.'5Z 925'8€8'2Z GE6'685'8T 8£9'€/9'9Z 6.6'8€9'€Z Y9v'€29'eT
(#0.'288'G2) (605'220'2T) (z15'662'2) (569'787'L) (0st'6E7'v2) (866'9L7'2T) (822'152'61) (05€'706'99) 600'080'€ 09€'68Y'E
122'882'STT 689'092'00T G81'S6S V6 6S0'€0Z'26 L6V'0/2'%2T 960'9ZE'6TT ¥06'2.8'9ST £2/'TS0'S.T 229'6/8'S0T 508'89/°90T
- - - (8£2'86T'S) (909'v9¥'€) (¥6€'022€) (562'566') (€99'219') (€86'96T'€)
212'869'9 1SV'TT9TT 086'062'S 161'/8T'S 686'20v'LT GT9'TZC L2 695'292'TS 185'155'2€ 9€8'€50'8 T6G'60.'S
- - - - - ovL'LLS 02T'7Ee 086'7€Z €16'€€0'T 98.'L¥6
- - - - 19/'960'S 079'265'8 TET'TBT'L 850'586'G 8GY've9’L 170'€22'S
- - - - 000'5€2'S 000'06€'t 000'59.2'€ 000'0T9'€ 000'56.'€ 000'S0T‘E
eTT'Y82'se Y06'2LY'8 €8L'6ET'ST ¥66'909'€2 YEZ'99Y' L2 90T'6¥2'ST 656°L€0°L2 06L'9GT'L9 29v'6T2'8T 186'€86'L2
610'929'ST €€2'92T'TZ T6T'TOL'OT 090'%62'¥T 850'TTL'9T SP9'SYT'VT €79'G69'ET 082'98.'2T 166'€72'ST 978'009'%T
660'€2L'LE 002'92T'LE SOv'Tov'SE 720'766'€€ 2€2'99¢'9¢ 200°LLY'YE 166'619'9€ 042'115'9¢ 186'G8£'9¢ 69Y'72E'vE
799'956'62 G68'726'TC 92T'2v0'2e v11'02T'0C G56'069'0C 756'9€T'8T G88'989'0C €80'6ET'0Z 71G'0ET'6T 260'T.0'8T
£25°007'68 08T'8€2'88 £16'562'26 79€'8T.'68 Ly0'TES'66 860'6¥8'90T 9/9'S19'20T €/€'0ST'80T 1£9'656'80T G9T'8GZ°0TT
T6V'TVE'Y 808'819'S 90€'56.'e 929'869't 085'62.'C 122'081'C 69€'051'9 £09'70€'T ¥00'26T'T €0L'eSY'E
- 009'9 L79'9%9 60G'295 - - 1S0'SPT 169'2¢ 001'698 000'22€
€98'T9V'E 90.'8€€'E 108'0L0'€ 16T'106'C 128'196'8 161'290'€ GEE'799'C T2T'656'C ¥22'586'C 75€'686'Z
892'16€'L G28'62.L'TT S72'889°0T 198'76L'L 826'79¢'8 092'9¥L°0T 698'/20°€T 80L'EV'S 819'290'6 682'202'2T
G/T'S82'C 029'ev0'e 216'056'C Z76'652'C yZr'e9l'T v¥L'v8T'e 608'709'Y 8T€/SS'0T 62S'EEV'TT G6.'00°TT
8/9'88S'T 8T.'/86'T 196'9/6'T T.G'€T0'C 892'68.'C 0€L'28T'2 005'682'T 87.'T0L'T 12€'609'T 219'22L'T
029'€L2'L €52'90€'9 925'/ST'9 66T'EEL'S 6TH'0¥Z'9 0ST'2L¥'9 191'99.'y G/8'€Y9'S 1£9'G8¢€'S 696'€62'S
82r'7S0'€9 $  0S9'902'8S $  60S'6Y0'C9 $  €SYEPL'E9 $  L09'8.6'89 $  9€T'STO6L $  0/6'89T¥. $  €0£'L06'08 $  8E8OTF'9L $  SKY'OTTEL $
9102 ST0Z ¥102 €102 2102 1102 0102 6002 8002 1002

Tea A [eosiq

(Bununodoy Jo siseqg [enJd2y PalJIPoOIA)
SIea A [eosId Ua] 1seT]

SpUNH [PIUBLULIBAOS) JO S3ouBleg pun4 ui sabueyd

VINYOHITVO ‘NOSHVO 40 ALID

y3navi

uosIe Jo A9 :821n0s

saanyipuadxa |endesuou
10 afelusoaad e se 82IAJBs 109Q

seoue[eq puny ui sbueyd 18N

(sasn) saaunos Buroueuly Jay1o [e10L
pue| JO 3Jes Uo sso

Jusfe MoJosa 01 JuswiAed

Spasd0ld puog

SPaad0.d UeoT

N0 siajsuel |

Ul slaysuel |

(sasn) saoanos Buloueuly IO

saanypuadxa (4apun) 18A0
sanuanad Jo (Aouaidlap) ssaax3

sainypuadxa |e1o
JUBWISINQUIIB) pungalu|
swresBoud yuswanoidwi feyide)
s1502 Buloueuly puoq J8Y10
1s8J9)U1 puog
lediounid puog
90IAI8S 19
juawdojansp Alunwwod
sylom a11qnd
S9IIAIBS AUnwwo)
JUSWIUIBAOD [elauss)
saamypuadx3

SaNUaAal [e10 ]
SNoaUe||99SIA

spuny Jayio o1 sabreyd
S891AJ8S 10} sebreyd
[eluaWUIBA0BIBIU|

300U JUBLLISAAU|

sanjeusd pue sainiiagio) ‘sauiq
suwiad pue sasuadl]

saxe]

saNuUanay



0T

uosJed 4o A1) :32In0g

‘Rauow (41.1d¥) pund 1sniyt xe] Auadoid Juswdojanapay
panoidde s,21e1S a1 01 pariwi] s Aouale panjossip ayl 01 uoedojfe xe] Auadoid 9z TXGV 01anp ZT0Z/T/Z U0 PaAjossip sem Aouaby Juswidojanspay #

"0T-6002 JeaAk [easty ul ButuuiBag 824n0s aNUBASS MaU e SI Xel siasn) AUjNN - v

"SOXE] S3[es JO Nal| Ul PaAladal saxe) Aladoid sapnjou] - xx

'$99) 9sUa2I| S3]91USA 1010W JO Nal| Ul paAlsoal saxel Aladoad sapnjoul -

SL0'7SL'9 v85'L€ ET9'€LL'T TEV'T6L'C 066'GE8'E evS'LE9 669'285'8 v2L'v0S've 066'7.9'ST 9102
vYT'SET'S 9620V ZEV'YI6'E 28.'869'C T29'€06'C €0T'vvS 806'v.2'8 821'028'1¢C v.€'062'VT ST0Z
T,0'v82'6 9TL'TY 0,£'692'€ 809'9vS'C 097'668'2 EV9'9TL ¥90'€€6'L 96.'899'€C ZIT'Z8T' VT v102
166'S6Y'L S0v'0S Ov0'er0'e 506'829'2 L20'6L€'C LSS'TVE 188'060'L xx VEL'/BT'ST v6E'TT9'ST €102
£€89'086'L 910'95¢ 165'950'C L60'6v9'C 265'68L'C 8€€'/E6 L06'9v.'L xx €18'889'0C # 09g'GSE'6T 2102
Tes'6ey'L T18'CKe SYP'69.'S 090'059'2 0SV'€50'E v€6'808'T Lez'esy'L xx OSY'G6T'LT x 6EE'ESL'Ty 1102
6T€CCL'9 86€'88¢ 091°209°CT 180'282'C TOZ'T06'T £85'678'C ¥8¥'9.8'9 »x 899TS0'GT x G98'6TS'TY 0T0¢
- LET'VEE 0v9'26S'T 2ez'189'C €50'Cey'e Lel'1ve's ¥08'989'6 xx CIC'C9T'6T x LE6'TES'LY 6002
- e18'aey 6EY'6YY'C 8€€295'C 9T¥'162'C 8212hY'6 692'65T'8 xx  LTT'STITC x BEY'096'TY 800¢
- VIT'TES $  66T'E0E'S v/9'8€G'C $ S0T'S6TC $  L208S¥'8 $  9¥B'0CT8  $ xx E9EESOTC $ x L6LBYT6E $ £002

Xe| S994 9SU3IT] Sjuelo) S99 SHuwiad SJUSWISaAU| Xe| Xe| Xe | ‘0g aunp

S1asN CIRIIVENY |elapaH 9SuadIT] uonanisuo) uo awoau| o9SIyouel4 So|es Auadolid papu3

Alnn J010N ssaulsng Buipjing 1Salalu] Jes A

SIE9 A [e9SI4 U3] 1seT
921n0S AQ SBNUBASY [LIUBLLUIBAOYL) [RIBUID)
VINHO4ITVD ‘NOSHVD 40 ALID

S3I1avl



TLT

921JJO S.40SS3ssy AUno) sajabuy SO :92iN0S

"9A0QR PaQ1I0Sap uoneuwl| ayl 01 198lgns si pue Ausdoid ajqexe) JO snjeA 18ysew

[en1oe ay} 01 19adsal ylim aqejrene AJuaiind elep Ajuo ayi sjuasaidal aAoge UMOYS Blep uolenfeA ayl "pjos Auadoud ay Jo aoud aseyound ay 1e
PasSasSe-al Sl aNjeA Passasse Mau ay) ‘Juiod Jeyl 1 “IaUMO Mau e 0} P|OS SI } Jeyl awil 8y} e passasse-al Ajuo si Auadoud ‘suondaoxa ma) e Ui “(%e 40
9SBaJoUl WNWIXewW e 0} pajiwl]) ,, 0108} uoneul,, ue Ag paseatoul aq Aew Auadoud Jo anjea passasse ay) ‘1eak yoeg ‘paxel bulaq Auadoid ay) Jo anjea
passasse ay) uodn paseq 94T 4O 81kl WNWIXewW |10} e 0} saxel Auadold paliwi| ydiym €T uonisodold passed eiuiogieD 40 81e1S a8y} 4O SIs10A 8y} '8/ 6T Ul

310N
%000T  LZE'9vP'Y (TS9'ST) L2%'06S 0S5'T/8'E G8T'2Z6'ET (69¢'68) €0E'YIC'T 162'261'CT 9102
%000T  STOV0E'Y (G28'sT) 858'685 €86'62.'C L9G'V6E'ET (56€'06) orT'182'T 1¢8'161'2T G102
%000T 628702t (€16'ST) 892'595 €1%'G59'€ vZy'T60'€T (612'16) 060'0T2'T €50'€L6'TT 102
%000T  /66'850'Y (210'91) L1¥'81G L€G'96V'E 0S2'8L0'€T (5€5'26) 229'T12'T €91'656'TT €102
%000T  €.V'866'C (2€0'97T) 06'29G 909'TSY'E 600'T60'ET (T16'¢6) €2L'12E'T 96T'2G8'TT z102
%000T  9¥¥'T20'Y (26T'91) 295'2€9 780'S0V'E gee'eye'eT (96T'56) 8T6'6EY'T T0S'268'TT 1102
%000T  0/6'690'7 (590°'97T) 8¥2'6v79 181'9EV'E 0LL'€EE'eT (v2v's6) GET'08Y'T 650'6v6'TT 0102
%000T  TIZ'€T0V (€98'ST) T€G'2Y9 ¥€5'98€'E 98Z'18V'€T (650'56) 20S'v7S'T €78'2€0'2T 6002
%000T  ¥90°CLL'E (6v77'ST) T.¥'18S EY0°0€Z'E 18€'5€9'CT (¥60'6) 088'9TH'T T09'ZIE'TT 8002

%000°T 6.6'cc9'c ¢ (S8LYT) $ 2.5'809 $ ¢e6T'620'C $ G9L'6T6'TT ¢ (98T'¢6) ¢ 6eC6vy'T $ 2TL'E9SOT $ L00¢2

aley anjea suondwax3 paindssun paindas anjea suondwax3  paindasun paindss o€ aunp
xe| 10841d passassy 1S58 passassy 1$S97 papu3
[e101 a|gexe a|gexe Jea A [easiH
Aouaby uswdojanapay A0 ainu3

(srejjop Jo spuesnouys ul)
SIea A [e9SI4 Ua] 1SeT]
Auadold ajqexe Jo anjeA |enloy palewis3 pue anje/ passassy
VINYO4I1TVO ‘NOSHVO 40 ALID

93J1avl



¢l

901JJO S.10ssassy A1unoD sajabuy S0 :32iN0S

"1g9p Buidde|lano |eluaLIUIBA0B-181Ul SNOLIRA JO 1uaWAed ay] 10} Sanjen
Auadoud passasse Jo afiriuadlad e se saxe] pabueyd ale sisumo Aladoad ‘qunowre paxiy 9T SYl 01 UORIPPE U] “UIylM sapisal Auadoud 19algns ayy yaiym
l1oJ sa1ouabe Buixe |je Ag paleys SI 94T SIYL ‘Junowe paxi) 9T e 1e aled Xel Auadoid ayl $19s yaiym €T uonisodoid passed SI1a10A vlulofIjeD ‘g/6T Ul

069T'T 906T'T 61’7 6.¢C'T ¢l0C'T 0TeC'T C6.LT'T ¢IGT'T 99€T'T LEET'T
GE000 GE000 GE000 GE000 LEOOO LEOOO (A70[0N0) €rooo Gv00°0 Lv00°0
00000 00000 00000 00000 00000 00000 00000 00000 00000 T0000
L6ZT0 69110 Yor1°0 9670 28910 048T°0 8T4T0 8v¢10 €ecrTo 890T°0
8G€0°0 ¢0v0°0 Srv0°0 887700 €Ge0°0 €0r0'0 T1€20°0 12200 88000 GT120°0
00000 00000 00000 00000 00000 00000 00000 00000 00000 L0000
000°T 0007 000°T 0007 000°T 0007 000°T 0007 000°T 0007
0000°'T 0000'T 0000°'T 0000°T 0000°'T 0000'T 0000°'T 0000°T 0000°'T 0000°T
9T0¢ GT0C ¥10Z €T0C ¢10¢ T10¢ 0T0¢ 600¢ 800¢ L00¢
Jea A [eosl

SIeaA [eoSI4 U3 1seT]

(angen passasse J0 0OT$ Jad arey)

sarey xe] Auadolid BuiddejisnQ pue 10811Q
VINHO41TVD ‘NOSHVOD 40 ALID

L3719Vl

‘90N

arey 1041 [e10L
101181Q Jarep uenjodossiN
[0J3u0D pool

$1004dS payiun

aba|10D Alunwwo)d
sajabuy S0 Jo Aluno)

:so1ey Buiddejiano
aley 10841 AnQ el

ael a1seq A1

:sajey 10811@ AnD



€LT

921JJO S.10SS3sSy AJunoD sajabuy S0 :821n0S

‘Aouabyy Juswidojanapay ay1 pue A11D 8yl Y10q J0J e1ep anjeA passasse apnjoul UMOYS SIUNOWE aY | x

%€9°GE 862'6TV'29T'Y ¢ %/.G°0¢ T¥2'S06'TCT'Y $

%T16°0 10T'998'G0T %000 - *d10D) J0JON UBSSIN
%¢S'T 0T8'8vY'LLT %000 - D771 susjAdoidn]od auaAouu| sosu|
%vZ'e ¥,0'860'8.€ %000 - 09 sdif]1ydodouod
%EL 9T 992'8/6'7S6'T %000 - $10Npo.d 1Se0D 18\ 49
%¥6°0 788'96£'60T %S8°0 62€'L0T'GTT d1 samadoid zenbuiwoq uosied
%000 - %880 002'Tv.'8TT sn|1ered/d sibojoid
%9¢'T G65'690° LT %€E6°0 L¥9'076'GZT u0dS ‘e "0S ZINYosuy Jeua) Jodsq swoH
%000 %E0'T 9/2'0L7'8ET "ou| suoiesadQ S| [e18USD
%vT¢ 128'618'6Y¢ %E0'T GT8'6/G'8ET D771 sesudisiuz uojinb3
%E9'Y ¥20'090°TYS %08'T €62'ceT'ere '00 uoneIauahio) uosiepn
%0E'T GOT'80E'TST %65°¢ T€9'870'6YE 'd10D sjeulwis L 8beI0IS Mue ) X1
%.6°C 909'c.EL¥E %VL'E LT€'G08°€0S 0D pueT uosiepn
%000 - %S0y S6T'EVT VS 99 sdifjiyd
%000 - $ %.9°€T 8€G'SY6'CY8'T $ '0D Bunaxey pue Buluyey 01oss |
anfeA anfea anfeA +ON[eA 1aRedxe |

passassy a|qexel
AuD [e10] 40 1usdied

passassy a|gexe |

passassy a|gexe
AuD [e10] 4o 1usdied

passassy a|gexe |

L00¢

9102

0BV SIea A SUIN PUe Jea A uaiind
s1aked xe] Auadoid edioulid

VINYOLI1TVO 'NOSHVO 40 ALID

g 31avl



Y.Ll

9|(e|leAY 10N - V/N
19]]01U0D Jo)pny Auno) sajebuy SO :821n0S

*sa1ouabe Jayjo 01 ybnoayl-passed
aJam 1ey) Aousby Juswidojanapay pue A11D ay1 AQ pal09|09d Slunowe sapnjoul 0s|e ajnpPayds Siy L
uawaloul xe] Aoushyy Juswdojanapay pue sexel Auadoid A110 apnjoul pajuasaid sjunowre ay | 810N

%00°00T 9t9'698'8¢ LLE'TOS %9¢'86  692'89€'8¢ 99'698'8¢ 9102
%00°00T 0T9'¥0T'9€ AT AA %99'86 991'C29'GE 0T9'v0T'9€ GT0C
%00°00T 0v.'692'SE 2€0'20L'T %.T'G6  L0L',19S°€E Tv.'692'SE v10¢
%00°00T €96'G28'EE 8/0°€9.L'T %6.76 G88'C90°CE £96'G28'€E €10C
%00°00T 0GZ'€TIE'EE 875'G/6'T %.L0'v6 ¢CL'LEE'TE 0GC'€TE'EE ¢10¢
%00°00T GEG'GST'EE G¥8'111'C %EY'E6  069'L.6°0€ GEG'GST'EE T70¢
%00°00T 29€'068'€E 1G2'09¢'¢ %EE'E6  SOT'0E9'TE 29€'068'€E 0T0C
%00°00T 0G9'0€0'VE 90t'299'¢C %8T'C6 ¥¥Z'89E'TE 0G9'0€0'VE 6002
%00°00T TG0'S9T'TE ¥69'999'C %Py'T6  LSE'867'8C 0G0'S9T'TE 800¢
%00°00T 800'8/8'9¢ $  620'00€C $ %Yy'T6 6.6'2.5v¢ $ 800'8.89Z $ L00¢
Ana Jo unowy SIBAA Ana7 JO Junowy Iea A [eosl 0€ aung
ERIER Juenbasgns  usdled ay1 1o} papu3 Jea A
aleq 01 SUOII93]|0D |10 Ul SUOI93||10D AN37 JO Jea A |edsl palIAeT Saxe | [easi

au} UIYNIM Pe19s]|0D

SIea A |ROSIH Ua] 1Se7]
Su0I199]|0D pue Salna xe] Auadold
VINHO41TVD ‘NOSHVOD 40 ALID

6 319VL



7R

"UOISIAIQ d2UeUIH ‘Uosie) Jo AID 8yl pue "au| ‘sonsiels jedidiuniy eluloed :92IN0S

*Al19 By} JO SassauIsng pue sjuapisal ay) Ag auloq
sl reys syuawuianob Buiddepano ayy Jo 1gap Buipurisino ay) Jo uoniod 8yl Sarewsa 1gap papuoq 1au ayl
*A19 ay1 Jo salrepunoq diydeiboab ayr yum ‘ued ul 1Se9| 18 ‘aplouluod eyl asoy) ate sjuawuianob buiddepano (2)
"A119 8y} JO Sanuanal pun4 [elauao ay) isurebe wie|d e juasaidal
10U 0p pue AlD ay) Jo spuoq uonebijgo [esauab Jou are yoiym spuod Juasaidal suoisnjoxa 1qap 10aa1q (T)

'S3I10N
€ee'068'29¢ $ 108 Buiddepanp pue 19811q 101
€€€'068°29¢€ saxe] Auadoid yum preday-1gaq Buiddeang [e1o1
/688TS'GE (19N) 192 pun4 [eJaus9
ocy'T.LE'2€EE 102 JUBWISSasSSY pue xe]

soxe] Auadoid yum preday-1geq buiddepano

- £98'0rv'eE €980V e 199Q 10211 [e101L
- £98°09T'202 £98°09T°202 Aouaby Juswidojenspay uosied
- $ 0000829z $ 000'082'9Z $ spuog 19V GT6T - uosre Jo AuD
199 193lig
areys A suoIsnjox3 192Q papuog
109 papuog SS0I9)

19N

9T0Z ‘0€ aung
109@ Sa1IANOY 1UsWUIBA0S) BulddejtsnQ pue 12a11Q

VINYO4ITVO 'NOSHVD 40 ALID

0T 31avl



vE2'¥08'TTC

$ ¥ET'66L'G9T

9.1

“Juswiiedaq aoueUIS ‘UOSIED JO AIID pUR UOISIAIQ XB [ /SIUBWasINgsId/1a]|0AU0D-101pNnYy ‘sajabuy S0 J0 Aluno) :90Inos

$ 00T'ZGE'2LT ¢ €98'0/8'08T ¢ €98'G09'08T ¢ €98'0vE'Z6T ¢ €98°0LT'OST ¢ €98'0LLL¥T ¢ €98°0/5'82T ¢ €98'S9E'0ET  $

652'6,9'02T'C

$ 062'G/8'T¥0'C

$ €/G'0vE'L66'T $ €96'GTY'E66'T $ 809'€IT'V66'T $ OPSTEY'9T0'Z $ 82T'9Y'620C $ 96E'6TLCS0C $ 660'TVL'€Z6T $ L6EVB6'EIB'T $

652'6,9°02T'C

$ 062'G/8'TV0'C

$ €LS0VE'L66'T $ €96'STY'E66'T $ 809'€IT¥66'T $ OVSTE'9TOC $ 8CT'G9V'620C $ 96€'6TL'CSOC $ 660 TyL'€C6'T $ L6EVBE'EIST $

62L'T98'LETYT § VEB'TOSZIOET $ CC8'E09'STE'ETS OSL'6EV'68C'ETS 2¢S0VCh'V6C'ETS GE6'9/82vy'€TS 61GZ9L'62S'€TS 9L6'G6L'VBI'ETS 6S9'0v6'v28'TT$ C1E'622'€60'2T $

090'229'STZ 989'7€6'LTZ v26'6.1'v22 SG'68T'TTZ LST'STY'E0Z £0v'759'002 18V'166'G6T 590016261 811'25'68T 020'v9Y'eLT

699'V8T'ZT26'CT $ 8VvZ'L9G'VEE'ST $ 868'CIY'TE0'CTS G66'6VC'8L0'CTS S6L'S800'T60'STS 2€5'2722'Tve'sT$ ZEO'0LL'ESC'STS TT6'G8T'Z8Y'ETS T88'98E'GEQ'TTS 262'S9L'6T6'TTS
%000 %00°0 %000 %000 %00°0 %000 %000 %000 %00°0 %000

652'6,9'02T'C

$ 062'G/8'T¥0'C

$ €/G'0vE'L66'T $ €96'GTY'E66'T $ 809'€IT'V66'T $ OPSTEY'9TO'Z $ 82T'9Y'620C $ 96E'6TLCS0C $ 660'TVL'€Z6T $ L6EVB6'EIB'T $

652'6,9°02T'C

$ 062'G/8'TV0'C

$ €LG'0vE'L66'T $ €96'GTY'E66'T $ 809'EIT'V66'T $ OPSTEY'9TO'Z $ 82T'S9Y'620C $ 96E'6TLCS0C $ 660'TVL'EZ6T $ L6EVBE'EIBT $

9102

§10C

¥102 €102 ¢102 T10C 0102 6002 8002 1002

JeaA |eosiq

SIea A |edsld Ua] 1se]
uonew.ou] uibep 1gaq ebe
VINHOLITVD ‘NOSHVD 40 ALID

T137gvl

(uonyedo||v xe L) 1g3p papuoq
sey Aouaby Juswdojanspay uosied ayL
"Jgep papuog ou Sey uosted Jo AN ayL

190N

uibrew 1gop |eba]
Hwi| 03 8|qeat|dde 1gap ¥au [el0L
198p uonebijqo essusb jo
JuswAedal 104 apISE 18S IUNOWY SS9
spuoq uoiebi|qo [esaus
w1 01 9|qeatjdde 19eQ

(anfeA passasse [e101 O 94GT) HWI| 1930

an[eA Passasse [ej0 L

Auadoud jeal 1dwiaxe :yoeq ppv
anjeA passassy

uone|nae) uibae 19aq [eba

1w 1g9p Jo abeiuadiad e se

Jwi| 8y 03 3jqenjdde 1gap 18U [el0 L
utbrew 1gap jeba]

1w 03 3)qearjdde 1gap Jo unowy

anfe/\ Passassy [€10] JO %GT - Hwl| 1g9d



LT

x4 60°¢ [4%4 1T°¢ 971 Tee c9'¢ 4R 98¢ [4A> abelanod

Evr'ye8'vT $ v¥85'602'ST $ L66'8TC'ST ¢ TEQ'ST8YT $ 9GE'GS0'GT $ 8ITV8LCT $§ 9£2'0¥6'0T$ 996'8G'6 $ 029'92.'6 $ GSG'GL6'L $

Ei'606'L 78G'6TT'8 166'€18'8 TE9'€80'6 9G€'02€E'6 8TT'V6E'8 9€Z'GLT . 996'8¥8'G 029'TE6'S GGG'0/8'Y 1saJalu|
000'GT6'9 ¢ 0000602 $ 000'SO¥'9 $ 000'GEL'S ¢ 000'GEL'S $ 000°06EY $ 000'G9L'€ $ 000°0T9'C $ 000'G6L'E $ 000GOT'E $ [ediounid
901AJI3S 109

vEY'Or9'cc $ 6€6°2CT0T $ vCC'e8Y'LT $ 696'72E'0C $ 6€9°982'8T $ GE9'06'0C $ 885°GL6'0c$ GC9LE8'EC $ €25°'S0C°0C $ ¢8C'C89'SC S juswiaoul Xe} 19N
26T1'268°0T 276'669'T¢C Zr6'TeLYT 199'796'0T 219'€20'9 EVP'9.LE'L 896'0€L'L 1S7'T11'6 656'059'L - [eloL
- - - - - 9T#'T99'G TIETYL'S GT8'6%79'9 L62'TLS'S - apise 1S BuisnoH %0¢
26T'/68'0T $ ¢v6'669Tc $ 2w6'TeL'vT $ T99'T96°0T ¢ <2L9'€20'9 $ [LCO'GTLT $ 2596867 $ 9£9'79.C $ ¢99'6.0C $ - $ NIY_L-SSed 7§ UlWpy

151500 AlojepuelAl Ssa

9z9'evS'ee ¢ T188/28'TE $ 99T'¥0Cc€ $ 0€9'982'TE ¢ TIE0IEvZ $ 6.0°20€'8C $ 955'90.'8C$ 9.0'6v2'cE $ 28V'998°/C $ ¢8¢'289'Ge$ Juswialoul Xe} ssol9
970¢ GT10¢ 102 €10¢ ¢10¢ 1702 0T0C 6002 800¢ L00¢
1e3 A |e0siq

SIea A [eOSI4 Ua] 1S
abriano) anuanay-pabpald
VINYOHITVD ‘NOSHVDO 40 ALID

cranavi



8.1

d](E|IeAY 10N - V/N

Juswiedaq swdojanaq JuswAojdw3 eruioyife) jo a1eis (g)
(WD ‘sajabuy s07 10J SI UMOYS Blep) SIsAjeuy d1louod3 Jo neaing 's'n (2)

aoueuId Jo Juswredsq a11S (1) :$92JN0S

V/N V/N V/N £66'C6 910¢
%9'8 T2S'es 006'2E 7S 8rT'c6 G10C
%9°0T 0€.'0G 6.,°9¥8'CTS 9€9'26 ¥10¢
%L, ovT'8y ¥6G'8.5'€8Y 96126 €T0¢
%V'6 818'8t 80G'€€L'98Y 8¢8'16 ¢10¢
%¥'CT 696 'St €€G'GE6 VS 8vG'T6 11702
%8¢T veZ'ey GTO'ET8'Vey L¥0'86 0T0¢
%.L'TT evo'cy TASI A NN 6ST'86 6002
%S, GTL'EY 0LT'€LS'Sey 8.7'86 800¢
%T'S 667 $ AR WATAAN A 0TT'86 L00¢

(€) (2) awoouj (2) (spuesnoyy ur) (1) IEEIN
arey [euosiad awoau| uonrejndod lepusjed

wswAojdwaun euded [euosiad
lad

SIea A Jepus|e) ua] 1seT]
SO11S17€1S d1Wou0d3 pue ailydesbowsq
VINHO4ITVO ‘NOSHVO 40 ALID

€T anavl



6.7

"3|qR[1eAR 10U SI /002 J0) WawAojdwsa A1ID Uo ereq 8|qe|ieAy 10N - W/N

(022'8¢ - paisnipe Ajjeuoseas 10U SI UMOUS ®l1ep)
juswiredaq uswdojans uswAojdw3 eiuloied Jo a1e1s (2)

uosse) Jo AIp (T) :seaunos

0./2'8€ (p JuswiAojdwz AnD reloL

%C6°ET 7509 %.9°TT 28s'y |eloL
%160 6 96€ S9JIAJIBS UoneINP3I S OV
%T0'T 8 8el uoneiodio) 18bIe]
%S0T L LSy "0u| BIUJOJIIRD JO 3ISeM VSN
%vi'T S 8¢9 S10NpoId YifesH Jauia]
%97'T 1% ¥€9 *d10D [93YM UBp|0D
%0L'T € ovL -ou] 09 Juawdinb3 aioysaxe]
%TL'T 4 1472 uewwnio) dniyuoN
%¢eL0 0T 8/¢ Aoushy Juswabeue|A 19e1U0D 8SUd)eQ

%060 0T T6€ %920 6 062 dnoio Buimog Isded ayL
%960 8 99¢ saLisnpu| adedsolay Beln

%680 L 69¢ uoiresodio) |93y awlid

%€E0'T 9 96€ *OU| JeuoljeulsIul YonH

%1C'T 9 LZS %CT'T S Ley ou| sdoys Apue) s,09S
%¢T'T 14 8zy "0U| SPO0S [eInleN auejtepa)d

%.T'T € *l4% Bulures atoysexe]

%EC'T I [AA74 Buigels 10919S

%ES'T T 660'T %99'C T 0TT'T 07171 Auedwiod BunsyleiN % Buluyay ososaL

wawAojdw3 Muey (1) seakojdwz wawAojdw3 Muey (1) seakojdwz Jakojdwz
Ao el 10 Ao eloL 10
0 1U8018d JaguinN 0 1U8018d JaguinN
L00¢ 970¢

0BV SIea A BUIN pUR JB3 A JU3LIND
siakojdw3 jedioulid
VINHO4ITvD ‘NOSHdVD 40 ALID

1 379vL



081

00°veEE 00°0€E 00°8¢€ 00°0€E T0'8¥€ 00°G6€ 00°G6€ 00°86€ 00°'86€ 00°L6€ [elol
0088 0088 0088 00'v8 00¥ST  008ST  008ST  00'8ST  00'6ST  00°'8ST $80IAJIBS Alunwiwo)
00°'TE 00°0e 00°'TE 00°¢ce €0¢t 00Ty 00TV 0c'oe 66'8¢ 8T1°6¢ uswdojans@ Anunwiwod
00'0€T 00€ET  00'TET  009ET  ST'TL 00'¢8 00'Z8 08'G6 0096 0676 SYI0M 211qNnd
00've 00'v¥ 00'v¥ 00°9% <05 00°¢a 00°¢s 00°¢a 00°¢s 00°¢s S93INIBS BAIIEISIUIWPY
00'TT $324N0S9Yy UeWNH
00'9¢ 00°T¢ 00°0¢ 00°0¢ QoG 00,y 00,y 00,y G6°9% €6°87 1abeuey A1D
00'S 00'S 00'S 00'S 76’y 00'S 00'S 00'S 00'S 00'S Jainseall AD
00V 00y 00V 00y 009 009 009 009 009 009 810 Ao
- - - - - - - - - - Asuiony A1D
00°'s 00 00°'s 00t 00y 00y 00V 00y 9a0'v 66°¢ [1ounod Ao
1usWUIBA0B [elausD)
dnoub.aopp/uonoun

9102 G102 ¥102 €102 ¢10¢ 1102 0T0Z 6002 800¢ L00¢

0€ aunr Jo se sasAojdw3 JuajeAinb3-awn-|n4

SIea A |BISIH4 U] 1SeT]
dnoubxiopn/uonoung Ag
seaAo|dw3 uswulanos) Al jusjeAinb3-awin-|n4
VINHO41TVD ‘NOSHVOD 40 ALID

qT 31avl



181

[ T V/IN V/IN T 0 8T LZ 99 LS
86V 209 0257 V/IN 2/9'T GTL'T 6TL'T CTL'T 988'T 12587
668'90¢ S'6LT LT0'8.T vEL'EST 89/'G8 10G'T62 ¥G.'9%9 69'€SS LvE'CLS G09'G89
9G62'Te 298'6T eve'ee 94792 eveEYT 96661 eT0'ey £62'69 0z29°ce 169°€6
LE6 698 €6 .18 't 288'T 0502 T2€'C 6€6'C 822'C
€ 0 [4 0 0 LT S 1% 0T 4
[4) 0S¢ o€ [4) ot 08¢ 09 14 6T 9
S6 0ct qact €T TT LC 00T 18T 06 00T
€88'S 192'SE GEO'SE 2ee'se st 018'9T v12'7 G¥G'T 59 V/IN
L 9 L TT 6 €T TT TT 6 9
6v5'9€€$ GLZ'6ET$  0S5'68% 000'0€2$ 00S°LT$ G8T'6ET$  000°0S$ 000'G¢T$ 000'G5€$  000°G88%
14 8 €¢ 0¢ €T [44 [4 91 9¢ 69
4 a1 o1 0¢ 9¢ o1 79 €9 09 68
G6G'/ST$ 0TL'99T$ G90'GZT$ 00SC.T$ 000'G8% G0.'.E€T$ 68E'STT$  000°G8$ 000'0¥T$ 000'G5c$
0¢ T¢ 0¢ €¢ 8T 4 14 LT €e TS
6¢ 0¢ €¢ Ge T¢ qg 8¢ 61 8¢ <7

970¢ ST10¢ 102 €102 102 T10Z 0T0Z 600¢ 800¢ L00¢

Iea A [eosI-

SIe3 A |easiq ua] 1se
dnoubxiom Aq
sJo1e21pu| Buneisdo

VINHOLITVO ‘NOSHVD 40 ALID

9T 3119vl

9|gejleny 10N - V/N
uosied Jo AuD :821n0s

panssi $I13YanoA
pala|dwo? 1sanbau a21AIaS
:UOISIAIQ @2urUBUIR|A adeaspueT pue Buipjing

Jano Bunured Ag panowsal 1314Jeib Jo 183} asenbs
15e|qU81eM AQ panowal nijjelh Jo 189} asenbs
pala|dwoa 1sanbau a21AI8S
:UOISAIQ JUBWaleqy Niyelo
S9JIAIBS daNd

palenobau syuswasaibe Juswdojanag
:uoISIAIQ Juswdojanapay

pa1onNpuod SUONEIISIA ssaulsng
:uoIsIAIQ Juswidolanaq ssauisng

paJiy seafojdwa yinoA Jswwng
passaooid siuearjdde qor
:UOISIAIQ Juswdojanaq wswAojdw3

passa004d sasealoul [043U09 Jual aWoy al|qoIA

(anpen Jejjop) paiueib sueo| geyal Ajiwey sjbuls

pajueib sueo| geyal Ajiwey s|buls

paAIadal suonealjdde ueoj geyal Ajiwey sjbuls

(anpena Jejjop) siuelb geyas swoy s[IqoIN

(pauyijenb) syuelf qeyas swoy 3JIqoIN

paAIadal suonealjdde 1uelb qeysas swoy 3JIqoIN
:UOISIAIQ JURID Xo0|g pue BuisnoH

JUSWdOJ3ASQ 21WOU00T




¢81

"9|qe|leAY 10N - V/N
uosse Jo Al :92In0S

€ €c € €c € €c € €c € €c s10] Burjred
14 1 1 14 14 1 S L L A sjood Buipepn
LT LT LT LT LT LT LT LT LT LT sojodbe|4
€ € € € € € € € € € surejunoj fejusweulQ
0)% 0T 0)% ot 0T ot 0T 14" 14" 14 sleq 3oeus
4 4 4 4 4 4 14 4 4 4 SUN09 [[edAs]|OA
8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 suNoo [leqianboey
8¢ 8¢ 8¢ 8¢ 8¢ 8¢ 8¢ 8T 8T 8T SHLIN0J |[eqlexseq
8T 8T 8T 8T 8T 8T 8T 8T 8T 8T SLNOJ siuus L
€ € € € € € € € € € swiniseuwA9
T T T T T T T T T T 181U saoINIBS A18jesS 21jgnd
T T T T T T T T T T pJeA aresodiod
T T T T T T T T T T leH Auo
14 1 14 14 17 17 174 7 € € sjood Bulwims
T T T T T T T T T T xa1dwo) suods
€ € € € € € € € € € uIW - sxjed
¢t Zt ¢t Zt A4} Zt A4} Zt A4} Zt SHied
¥00'0¢€ +00'0¢€ +00'0CE ¥00°0C€ ¥00'0CE ¥00'0CE #00'0CE ¥00'0ZE ¥00'0ZE +00°0ZE afejooy asenbs san|1oe4
8'LYT 8Lyt 8'LYT 8Lyt 8'LYT 8Lyt 8'LYT 8Lyt 8'LYT 8Lyt abea.oe syled
6t 61 6t 61 6t 61 6t 6l 6t 6l sa|iw asenbs Auo

:$99IA13S 21|gNd

910¢ GT0C v10¢ €T0¢ ¢10¢ 1102 0T0C 600¢ 800¢ £00¢

Jea A [eoslH

SIBB A |BOSIH U] 1seT]
uonoun4 Aq
SO1ISIIE]S 19SSy [ended
VINJO4ITVO ‘NOSHVOD 40O ALID

LT 319Vv1L








